
AGENDA FOR

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Contact:: Keren Murphy
Direct Line: 0161 253 5130
E-mail: k.m.murphy@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : J Black (Chair), A Matthews, Y Wright, 
R Skillen, C Preston, E O'Brien, J Harris, M D'Albert, 
R Caserta, A Cummings, S Haroon, S Kerrison and I 
Schofield

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control 
Committee which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 28 June 2016

Place: Peel Room, Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

The Head of Development Management will brief the 
Committee on any changes to be made to the Planning 
Applications since the issue of the Agenda.  This 
information will be circulated to Members and made 
available to the public on the Council’s Website on the 
day of the meeting.

Notes: Food will be available from 5.00 pm (Balcony Bar)
Pre-meeting briefing/virtual site visits at 6.00 pm 
(Lancaster Room).
Details of Site Visits/Member Training will be circulated 
separately for the information of Members and 
Officers.

Public Document Pack



AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider 
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if 
so, to formally declare that interest.

3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24 MAY, 2016  (Pages 1 - 4)

4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (Pages 5 - 116)

5  DELEGATED DECISIONS  (Pages 117 - 132)

A report from the Head of Development Management on recent delegated 
planning decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control 
Committee. 

6  PLANNING APPEALS  (Pages 133 - 138)

A report from the Head of Development Management on recent planning 
appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control 
Committee.

7  SECTION 106 OBLIGATIONS  (Pages 139 - 170)

A report from the Development Manager on the contributions made by 
Section 106 Obligations since 1 April, 2015 which also provides a 
summary on agreements that are outstanding.

8  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



7

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 24 May, 2016

Present: Councillor J Black (In the Chair) 
Councillors  R Caserta, A Cummings,  M D’Albert, S 
Haroon, J Harris,  S Kerrison, C Preston, I Schofield, R 
Skillen 

Public attendance: 22 members of the public were in attendance 

Apologies for 
absence: Councillors Matthews, O'Brien and Wright

_____________________________________________________________________

PCC.14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Schofield declared a prejudicial interest in respect of Planning 
application 59550 as a personal acquaintance of the Applicant.

PCC.15      MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 April, 2016 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.

PCC.16 PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted in relation to the 
applications for planning permission.  Supplementary information was also 
submitted in respect of application numbers: 59550, 59661, 59811, 
59896, 57104.
The Committee heard representations from applicants and/or objectors in 
respect of the applications submitted.  This was limited to three minutes 
for each speaker. 
Ward Councillors spoke on planning applications as follows:-
Councillor Daly on planning applications 59896 and 57104.
Prior to the Committee meeting, Site Visits had taken place in relation to 
Planning Applications 59550, 59896 and 59897.

Delegated decisions:

1. That Approval be given to the following applications in accordance with 
the reasons put forward by the Head of Development Management in the 
report and supplementary information submitted and subject to the 
conditions included:

59550  The Paddock, Sheep Hey Farm, Leaches Road, 
Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom - Ramsbottom and Tottington - 
Ramsbottom Ward
Change of use of field to camping site including siting of 2 no. moveable 
portaloos and shower block

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Planning Control Committee, 24 May 2016

8

The decision to Approve with Conditions this application is subject to 
the addition of the following condition:-

Condition 12: No development shall commence unless or until a plan 
detailing 20 pitches has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved plan and number of pitches.
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and highway safety pursuant to 
Policy EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 9 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.  

(Note: Councillor Schofield, having declared a prejudicial interest in 
respect of this application, left the room during consideration of the 
application).

59661  260 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester - Whitefield & 
Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward
Change of use from bank (Class A2) to restaurant and bar (Class A3/A4), 
single storey extension at the side and rear; associated parking

59756  Rico House, George Street, Prestwich, Manchester - 
Prestwich - Sedgley Ward
Erection of extension to create a mansard roof to provide additional floor 
to existing building; external covered staircase; creation of 15 no. Car 
parking & 10 cycling spaces

59811  Ryalux Carpets, Mossfield Mill, Chesham Fold Road, Bury - 
Bury East - Moorside Ward
Infilling of existing loading bay and extension of access road; installation 
of vehicle wash bay

59863  Slatterys Pattissier, 197 Bury New Road, Whitefield, 
Manchester - Whitefield & Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward
Store room extension at side

The decision to Approve with Conditions this application is subject to 
the addition of the following condition:-

Condition 7:  No development shall commence unless and until a scheme 
for the provision of the storage of refuse bins has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme 
only shall be implemented and made available for use on first 
commencement of the development hereby approved.
Reason. Information has not been provided at application stage to 
demonstrate there is sufficient area within the site to store refuse bins, 
pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies HT2/4 - Car Parking 
and New Development and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

59896  Units 1-4, Westgate Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury - North 
Manor Ward

Page 2



Planning Control Committee, 24 May 2016

9

Change of house types on plots 1-7 inclusive of planning permission 
57104

59897  Units 1-4, Westgate Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury - North 
Manor Ward
Change of house types on plot 8 of planning permission 57104

59919  Bury and Whitefield Jewish Primary School, School Close, 
Bury - Whitefield & Unsworth - Unsworth Ward
Erection of 2.4m high security fence/small section 3m high with manual 
and electronic gates

59928  Former garage colony sites at Mayfair Avenue, Radcliffe, 
Manchester - Radcliffe North Ward
Erection of 8 no. Dwellings with 2 no. sites

PCC.17 DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted 
listing all recent Planning application decisions made by Officers 
using delegated powers.

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

PCC.18 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT

The Head of Development Management submitted a report which provided  
statistical information on Enforcement activity between 1st January, 2016 
and 31st March,  2016.

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

PCC.19 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE

The Head of Development Management submitted an annual update 
report which set out the key matters and changes that affect the
Development Management Team and processes and therefore by default,
the Planning Control Committee.

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.
 
CHAIR
COUNCILLOR JANE BLACK

(Note: The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 8.16pm)

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
 
Title 
 

 
Planning Applications 

To: 
 

Planning Control Committee 

On: 
 

28 June 2016 

By: 
 

Development Manager 

Status: 
 

For Publication 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the 
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved. 
 
My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports. 
 
This report has the following implications 
 
Township Forum/ Ward: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Policy: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Resources: 
 

Not generally applicable. 

Equality Act 2010:  All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and 
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for: 
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and person who do not share it; 
The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.    
    
Human Rights:  All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 
 
Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the 
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments. 
 
Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a 
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include 
a person's home, and other land and business assets. 
 
In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and 
all material planning considerations, I have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon 
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First 
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is 
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the 
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council 
under the Town & Country Planning Acts. 
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on 
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the 
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country 
Panning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions. 
 
 
 
Development Manager 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith. 
2. Certificates relating to the ownership. 
3. Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties. 
4. Responses from Consultees. 
 
 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT 
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE. 
 

Page 6



 
01  Township Forum - Ward:  Ramsbottom and Tottington - 

Ramsbottom 
App No.   59005 

 
  Location: Land off Factory Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9BT 
  Proposal: Demolition of buildings and redevelopment for Use Class C2 residential 

accommodation with care comprising 57 apartments for persons aged 65 
and over  

  Recommendation: Minded to Approve  Site 
Visit: 

Y 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
02  Township Forum - Ward:  Ramsbottom and Tottington - 

Ramsbottom 
App No.   59501 

 
  Location: Land at rear of 4 Carr Bank Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9DW 
  Proposal: Change of use of land to residential garden with erection of decking/steps 

and pond structures  
  Recommendation: Split Decision  Site 

Visit: 
Y 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
03  Township Forum - Ward:  Ramsbottom and Tottington - 

Ramsbottom 
App No.   59715 

 
  Location: Redisher Works, Holcombe Old Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NQ 
  Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 22 no. dwellings including 

works to culverted watercourse 
  Recommendation: Minded to Approve  Site 

Visit: 
Y 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
04  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury East App No.   59971 
 
  Location: Garage site off Hewart Drive, Bury, BL9 7NF 
  Proposal: Erection of 3 no. dwellings with associated parking and access  
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
05  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury West - Elton App No.   60002 
 
  Location: 60-78 Tottington Road, Bury, BL8 1LL 
  Proposal: Addition of 11 no. apartments to existing assisted living scheme including 

means of access and relocation of car park  
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
Y 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
06  Township Forum - Ward:  Prestwich - Sedgley App No.   60069 
 
  Location: 8 Hardman Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0HB 
  Proposal: Single storey extension to ground floor flat; Loft conversion with rear 

dormer to first floor flat 

Page 7



  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 
Visit: 

N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
07  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury East - Redvales App No.   60129 
 
  Location: Redvales Childrens Centre, Dorset Drive, Bury, BL9 9DN 
  Proposal: Removal of 1 no. storage container, retention of 1 no. storage container 

and relocation of 1 no. storage container 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Page 8



  
 
Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - 

Ramsbottom 
Item   01 

 
Applicant:  Gladman Care Homes Ltd. 
 
Location: Land off Factory Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9BT 

 
Proposal: Demolition of buildings and redevelopment for Use Class C2 residential 

accommodation with care comprising 57 apartments for persons aged 65 and over  
 
Application Ref:   59005/Full Target Date:  22/12/2015 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
It is recommended that this application is Minded to Approve subject to the signing 
and completion of a Section 106 agreement for loss of employment land in 
accordance with Policy EC2/1 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan and SPD14 
and to control and regulate the use of the building. If the agreement is not signed 
within a reasonable timeframe, then delegated authority is sought by the 
Development Manager to determine the application. 
 
A site visit has been reqested by the Development Manager. 
 
Description 
The site is located within an Employment Generating Area and is a former Council yard, 
which has been used for storage of plant and machinery. There is a building in the south 
western corner of the site, which is constructed from profiled metal sheeting and the 
remainder of the site is a hardstanding. The site is bounded by a 2 metre high concrete 
panel fence and trees to the all boundaries. There are two vehicular accesses to the site 
from Factory Street. 
 
Factory Street, Ramsbottom Lane and Stubbins Lane for the boundary to the west with 
residential properties beyond. There is a bus terminus and Porrit Way to the north with a 
petrol station beyond. Ramsbottom pool and fitness centre and associated recreation land 
is located to the east with the East Lancashire Railway line and River Irwell beyond. There 
are industrial buildings to the south, which form part of the EGA. 
 
The proposed development involves the demolition of the existing building and the 
redevelopment for residential accommodation (class C2) with care. The building would 
contain 57 apartments for persons aged 65 or over and would offer various care packages. 
The proposed building would be predominantly three storeys in height with some two storey 
elements, where there would be living accommodation in the roofspace. The proposed 
building would be constructed from stone and render with concrete roof tiles.  
 
Vehicular access to the site would be taken from Factory Street at the southern end of the 
site leading to a car park of 37 spaces, including 6 disabled parking bays. Two pedestrian 
accesses would be created from Factory Street and an outdoor recreational area would be 
provided to the north and south east of the site. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
35747 - Change of use from waste transfer station to open storage of civil engineering plant 
and machinery at GMWDS waste disposal site, Stubbins Lane, Ramsbottom. Approved with 
conditions - 16 November 1999. 
 
45117 - Mixed use - residential/offices/workshops at Storage yard, Stubbins Lane/Factory 
Street, Ramsbottom. Approved with conditions - 15 November 2005. 
 
Publicity 

Page 9



The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 25 September 2015 and a 
press notice was published in the Bury Times on 1 October 2015. Site notices were posted 
on 9 October 2015. 
 
3 letters have been received from the occupiers of 26 Market Place, 11 Stubbins Lane and 
30 Factory Street, 69 Ramsbottom Lane, which have raised the following issues: 
• Strikes as a company that wants to squeeze as many homes as possible onto this site 

to maximise profit; 
• Likely that the development would not be affordable to ordinary people requiring care; 
• The site is not vacant - it serves a useful purpose as a car wash, tyres and storage; 
• The idea that 29 parking spaces is sufficient for 57 properties is laughable - many older 

people still use a car; 
• Should not be entertaining an application that have found legal ways to circumvent the 

moral duty of providing affordable homes, for the benefit of the community; 
• No objection to the proposed development but would like the following comments to be 

taken onto consideration: 
• Would like the 2m fence proposed to the south of the site which bounds our property to 

be erected at the top of the embankment not the bottom, in order to provide screening 
and the residents with screening and a safe border as the embankment is very steep.  
Concern of headlights from incoming cars will shine into our ground and 1st floor rooms 
otherwise.  The fence could be constructed first to provide screening as construction 
activities will be very close.  Fencing drawings do not appear to be included - would like 
to see what is proposed; 

• Would like attention to be given to the attenuation of noise that we may experience from 
extractor fans from the kitchens and air conditioning units fitted to outside walls so that 
noise is minimised; 

• The use of heavy plant must take into account the impact on the 4m high 150+ year old 
vertical stone wall bounding the south of our driveway; 

• Concern there would not be enough parking spaces for occupants and staff for the 
proposed 57 flats, particularly due to the shift patterns, which will not enable staff to use 
public transport as it does not run alt all times.  Parking on Factory street often causes 
problems when events are held in town and the development may exacerbate the 
problems if sufficient parking is not provided on site; 

• Note the bins would be located directly to the north side of the boundary wall on our 
driveway - would like the bins to be under cover and enclosed to reduce odour and 
likelihood of vermin.  

• The development would be better use of the land than some uses; 
• However, am concerned about the increase in traffic on nearby roads and significant 

lack of parking - just 29 for a 57 apartment complex with staff, restaurant, hairdressers 
and medical personnel is woefully inadequate - will increase pressure, stress and 
inconvenience on already crowded roads; 

• Access to Factory Street is difficult due to parked vehicles and surrounding busy roads - 
will cause hold ups, hazards and dangers. 

• Concern that the trees and rose beds located between the pavement and the Muovitech 
yard would be retained. 

 
The neighbouring properties were notified of revised plans by letter on 18 April 2016. 
 
4 letters have been received from the occupiers of 29 Stubbins Lane, 42 Crow Lane, 1 
Heatherside Road and 69 Ramsbottom Lane, which have raised the following issues: 
• The proposal will increase traffic on a sharp bend near a bus stop used by children and 

near to Ashton Lodge. 
• Access and volume of flats for locality.  
• Crow Lane has flooded on 3 occasions due to the incapacity of existing mains drainage. 
• The additional properties and additional hard surfacing for parking will add to the 

problems of rain saturation as well as pressure on existing drains. 
• The site is designated as an industrial site, but it should be considered as prime building 

land. 
Page 10



• This area has been blighted by being a storage area and appears to resemble a 
caravan park of late. 

• Prefer the proposed building to be constructed from stone. 
• Older people would bring money into the area. 
• The Council has done a great job for Ramsbottom. The existing use cannot be 

considered to be a 'good introduction' to Ramsbottom 
 
The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to access 
improvements, construction traffic management plan, measures to prevent mud from 
passing onto the highway, visibility splays, turning facilities, travel plan and car parking. 
Drainage Section - No objections in principle. Further comments will be reported in the 
Supplementary Report. 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land and air quality.  
Environment Agency - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to 
controlled waters and contaminated land.  
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and 
surface water drainage.  
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to bats, 
nesting birds and landscaping. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EC2/1 Employment Generating Areas 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H4/1 Affordable Housing 
H4/2 Special Needs Housing 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas 
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
CF3 Social Services 
CF3/1 Residential Care Homes and Nursing Homes 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD5 DC Policy Guidance Note 5: Affordable Housing 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
SPD14 Employment Land and Premises 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 

Page 11



there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle (Employment) - The application site sits within the Ramsbottom Employment 
Generating Area (EGA) as designated under UDP Policy EC2/1. Under this Policy, the 
Council will only allow development for the uses specified. In the case of this EGA, the 
acceptable uses being business (B1), general industrial (B2), warehousing (B8) and leisure 
and tourism uses (subject to the NPPF). Other uses will only be allowed where they 
constitute limited development or where they would not substantially detract from the area's 
value as an EGA. 
 
A C2 residential use is not one of the uses specified as being acceptable within the EGA 
and the site covers an area of 0.7 hectares, which is not considered to be 'limited'. As such, 
the loss of the site to a non-employment use would detract from the value of the EGA due to 
the loss of a significant opportunity for new employment uses. 
 
However, it is recognised that paragraph 22 of the NPPF specifies that planning policies 
should avoid the long term protection of sites allocated for employment use where there is 
no reasonable prospect of a site being used for that purpose. Whilst SPD14 was not 
originally intended to apply to sites within an EGA, the subsequent publication of the NPPF 
and, in particular, paragraph 22, means that the approach set out within SPD14 is now 
considered to be appropriate to EGAs and the tests within it to be a robust way of assessing 
whether there is any reasonable prospect of a site being used for employment purposes. 
 
The applicant commissioned Nolan Redshaw to prepare a supporting statement in relation 
to the prospects of the site being used for employment purposes. This concludes that the 
site has been actively marketed for a significant (3 year) period with limited interest from 
employment end-users and that, commercially, the reuse of the site for new employment 
uses is not currently viable. 
 
From an employment perspective, it is accepted that under current market conditions and 
using current build costs, there would be little prospect of the site being used for 
employment purposes even as part of a mixed use scheme. In these circumstances, SPD14 
requires the applicant to make a one-off payment to offset the loss of the employment land. 
These monies are then used to help to bring forward employment opportunities on other 
sites elsewhere. 
 
In light of viability issues, the applicant has offered to make an employment contribution of 
£50,000 and, given the specific circumstances of this site, this is considered acceptable to 
overcome the loss of the employment land. Therefore, the proposed development would not 
conflict with Policy EC2/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Principle (Housing) - Policy CF1/1 states that proposals for new and improved community 
facilities will be considered with regard to the impact on residential amenity, traffic 
generation and parking provision, scale and size of the development, access to shops and 
other services, accessibility by public transport and the needs and requirements of the 
disabled. 
 
Policy CF3/1 states that residential care homes will be located in residential areas and will 
be permitted where they do not conflict with the amenity of adjoining areas. 
 
Policy H4/2 states that the Council would encourage the provision of special needs housing 
and would be assessed with regard to the location of health care facilities, the location of 
local shops, public transport, the gradient of the site and the provision of car parking and 
amenity space. 
 
The proposed building would be located within a mixed use area comprising residential 
properties, leisure uses and commercial properties. Given the mix, the proposed 
development would not conflict with the surrounding land uses and there would be adequate 

Page 12



infrastructure. The site would have good access to public transport and would be in walking 
distance of the town centre. The site was last used as a storage yard and would constitute 
previously developed land. Therefore, the proposed development would be acceptable in 
principle and would be in accordance with Policies CF1/1, CF3/1 and H4/2 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Recreation provision - Policy RT2/2 states that developers of new housing for 10 or more 
dwellings will be expected to provide for the recreational needs of the prospective residents, 
by providing and laying out recreational open space within the development. For larger 
developments (50 or more), such provision should be provided on site, where possible in a 
single plot. SPD1 states that, for C2 schemes, on-site amenity land or  
communal space will be required as part of the development, such as through landscaping  
or the provision of benches. 
 
The proposed development includes an area of amenity space of 0.33 hectares with a 
single seating area to the north and west of the building which has been designed for and  
would be suitable for over 65s accommodation. There would be several paths 
within the landscaped area, which would connect to the proposed building, Stubbins Lane 
and to the access road. The landscaping plan indicates that there would be a substantial 
amount of planting and a patio area would be provided near the proposed dining room. 
Therefore, the proposed development would comply with Policy RT2/2 of the adopted 
Unitary Development Plan and SPD1. 
 
Design and layout - The proposed building would be two to three storeys in height and 
would be located in a 'S' shaped block. The proposed building would be traditional in 
character with a pitched roof. The proposed building would be constructed from stone and 
render with grey roof tiles, which would match the surrounding buildings. The provision of 
recessed areas, pike details, balconies, headers and cills and the mixture of materials add 
visual interest and break up the elevations. As such, the proposed building would not be a 
prominent feature within the streetscene. 
 
The amount of private amenity space provided would be acceptable and there would be 
space to store bins within the proposed enclosed bin store. A dwarf wall, constructed from 
stone with railings would be provided along the northern and western boundaries and a 2 
metre high timber fence would be provided to the southern boundary. The proposed 
boundary treatments would reflect the locality and would be acceptable. Therefore, the 
proposed development and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of 
the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect distances between 
residential properties and would be relevant in this case. The aspect standards states that 
there should be a minimum of 20 metres between directly facing habitable windows and 13 
metres between a habitable room window and a two storey blank wall. For each additional 
storey in height, 3 metres should be added to the separation distance, i.e. for a three storey 
building, there should be 23 metres between directly facing habitable room windows. 
 
There would be 44 metres between the proposed building and the buildings to the south 
and there would be 36 metres between the proposed building and No. 73 Ramsbottom 
Lane. There would be 36 metres between the proposed building and No. 3 - 7 Stubbins 
Lane at the closest point and 67 metres at the furthest point. All of these distances would be 
in excess of the aspect standards.  
 
There would be a minimum of 10 metres between the proposed building and the western 
boundary. The land to the west of the site slopes steeply to the recreation space and is 
covered with trees. As such, given the topography of the site, the proposed distance of 10 
metres would provide a suitable separation distance should the adjacent site come forward 
for redevelopment in the future. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon residential 

Page 13



amenity and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 
 
Bats/ecology -The site is currently a hardstanding and as such, has low ecological value. 
The proposed landscaping works would provide greater ecological value than the current 
site and GM Ecology Unit has no objections to the scheme, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to bats, nesting birds and landscaping plan. Therefore, the proposed 
development would not cause harm to a protected species and would be in accordance with 
Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Highways issues - Vehicular access to the proposed development would be taken from the 
existing access on Factory Street and the required levels of visibility would be provided. The 
existing vehicular access located opposite No. 71 Ramsbottom Lane would be closed and 
used for pedestrian access. The Traffic Section has no objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to access improvements, construction traffic management plan, 
measures to prevent mud from passing onto the highway, visibility splays, turning facilities, 
travel plan and car parking. Therefore, the proposed development would not be detrimental 
to highway safety and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Parking - There are no specific parking standards in SPD11 for this type of use. However, 
the proposed development would provide 37 parking spaces for a development of 57 
apartments within the C2 class, where occupation is restricted in terms of age and for those 
assessed to be in need of care.  
The agent has provides a statement in support of the level of parking provision: 
• The average age of residents is over 80 and as such, there is a low level of car 

ownership 
• Facilities on site, such as mobility scooter store and a on-site pool car, reduce the need 

for car ownership. 
• Provision of other schemes by the applicant have varied between 41% and 87% parking 

provision. 
• Provision of parking on C2 schemes in the north west varied between 39% and 50% 
• Initial demand tends to be high during first occupation and reduces over time. 
 
It is acknowledged that the level of car ownership would be lower than a residential 
development given the average age of the residents. However, appropriate parking 
provision for staff and visitors would need to be considered. Given the sustainable location 
of the site, which is inclose proximity to the town centre, it is considered that the level of 
parking provision would be acceptable in this instance. Therefore, the proposed 
development would have an acceptable level of parking provision and would be in 
accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD11.  
 
Planning Obligations - The Section 106 agreement would include provision of a one off 
contribution of £50,000 pursuant to Policy EC2/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and 
SPD14 and would secure the use of the building and apartments as a C2 use (residential 
care home/nursing home): 
• Occupancy is restricted to: 

• Approved occupiers meeting the following criteria: 
• over 65 years of age; 
• have completed a written assessment of their care and support needs and are 

contracted into a care package (sample of assessment requirements to be 
appended to S106); 

• they have entered into a lease (heads of terms to be specified in the S106, but to 
include the definition of approved occupier, an obligation to pay both a service 
charge and a wellbeing charge, and for the restriction to be entered on the title 
registered at the Land Registry); 

• written confirmation has been provided to the Council confirming that they meet 
the above criteria; 

Page 14



• persons living with an approved occupier as part of a single household; 
• a person who was living as part of a single household with an approved occupier 

who has since died and who satisfies the above criteria 
• Occupation of each apartment shall only be by way of a lease; 
• Information to be provided on an annual basis detailing the number of care and support 

hours provided to each resident and details of staff levels at the Development, with 
further information to be provided on request in the event of complaints regarding non 
compliance with this Agreement; 

• Use of each apartment restricted to Class C2; 
• The Owner to procure services from the Care Provider in accordance with the Care 

Statement - the Care Statement needs to be specific to this scheme; 
• Removal of permitted development rights. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered P1-101, S14-010 Rev A, 

06570-P1-102 A, 06570-P1-111 A, 06570-P1-122 A, 06570-P1-121 A, 
06570-P1-131 A, 06570-P1-132 *, 06570-P1-141 A and the development shall not 
be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
Page 15



the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 
5. All instances of contamination encountered during the development works which 

do not form part of an approved Remediation Strategy shall be reported to the 
Local Planning Authority (LPA) immediately and the following shall be carried out 
where appropriate:    
• Any further investigation, risk assessment, remedial and / or protective works 

shall be carried out to agreed timescales and be approved by the LPA in 
writing; 

•  A Site Verification Report detailing the conclusions and actions taken at each 
stage of the works including validation works shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the LPA prior to the development being brought into 
use. 

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy 
Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
6. The precautionary measure for bats shall be carried out in accordance with the 

details contained in the Ecological appraisal by FPCR, dated July 2015 (Sections 
4.12 to 4.16). 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
7. No development shall commence unless or until a landscaping scheme has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The contents 
of the plan should include elements that benefit wildlife. The approved plan shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details, not later than 12 months 
from the date the building is first occupied; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying 
or becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of 
planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those 
originally required to be planted. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 
– Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan, and Section 
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 
8. No development shall commence unless or until details of a scheme for the 

disposal of surface water drainage have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The proposed scheme must be based on the 
hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and be 
designed in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015). This must include assessment of 
potential SuDs options for surface water drainage with appropriate calculations 
and test results to support the chosen solution. Details of the proposed 
maintenance arrangements must be provided. Only the approved scheme shall be 
implemented prior to occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. 
Reason. No details of the drainage have been submitted and to ensure a 
satisfactory means of drainage pursuant to Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water 

Page 16



Management of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 

9. The restaurant shall be for the use of residents of the care home and their guests 
and employees, and shall not be open to the general public. 
Reason.To control and regulate the use of the building to ensure there is adequate 
parking provision pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and SPD11. 

 
10. The hair salon shall be for the use of residents of the care home and shall not be 

open to the general public. 
Reason.To control and regulate the use of the building to ensure there is adequate 
parking provision pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and SPD11. 

 
11. No development shall commence unless or until details of a scheme for the 

disposal of surface water drainage have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The proposed scheme must be based on the 
hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and be 
designed in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015). This must include assessment of 
potential SuDs options for surface water drainage with appropriate calculations 
and test results to support the chosen solution. Details of the proposed 
maintenance arrangements must be provided. Only the approved scheme shall be 
implemented prior to occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. 
Reason. No details of the drainage have been submitted and to ensure a 
satisfactory means of drainage pursuant to Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water 
Management of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
12. Notwithstanding the details shown indicatively on approved plan reference 

1419/01 Revision C, no development shall commence unless and until full details 
of the have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: 
• Realignment of the junction of Factory Street with Ramsbottom Lane/Stubbins 

Lane to a specification to be agreed, incorporating the reinstatement of the 
redundant site access, provision of a 2.0m min. footway, demarcation of the 
limits of the adopted highway and all associated highway, street lighting, road 
marking and highway drainage remedial works; 

• Formation of the proposed development access road onto Factory Street to a 
specification to be agreed incorporating the provision of a 2.0m min. wide 
footway, demarcation of the limits of the adopted highway and all associated 
highway, street lighting, road marking and highway drainage remedial works; 

• Reconstruction and widening of the existing footway abutting the site on 
Factory Street to a minimum of 2.0m in width between the junction of Factory 
Street with Ramsbottom Lane/Stubbins Lane and the proposed development 
access road to a specification to be agreed; 

• Provision of a street lighting scheme for the realigned junction and length of 
Factory Street abutting the site. 

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed 
programme. 
Reason. To ensure good highway design and maintain the integrity of the adopted 
highway, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to the following Policies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
13. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 

Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 

Page 17



Access route for construction traffic from the highway network; 
Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 
Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage of 
the site; 
Parking on site or on land within the applicant's control of operatives' and 
construction vehicles together with storage on site of construction materials. 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the 
measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the 
duration of the construction period. The areas identified shall not be used for any 
other purposes other than the turning/parking of vehicles and storage of 
construction materials 
Reason. To mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by the 
proposed development on the adjacent highway and ensure adequate off street 
car parking provision and materials storage arrangements for the duration of the 
construction period, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to the following 
Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
14. Before the development is commenced, details shall be submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority to cover measures to ensure that all 
mud and other loose materials are not carried on the wheels and chassis of any 
vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the 
operations. The approved details shall be implemented and maintained thereafter 
during the period of construction. 
Reason. To ensure that the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material 
from the ground works operations pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New 
Residential Development of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
15. The visibility splays indicated on approved plan reference 1419/01 Revision C 

shall be implemented before the development is brought into use and 
subsequently maintained free of obstruction above the height of 0.6m.   
Reason. To ensure the intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent 
highways in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
16. The turning facilities indicated on approved plan references 06570 P1-102 

Revision B, 1419/SP/01 Revision B and 1419/SP/02 Revision B shall be provided 
before the development is first occupied and there areas used for the manoeuvring 
of delivery/service vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at 
all times 
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
17. The car parking indicated on approved plan reference 06570 P1-102 Revision B 

shall be surfaced, demarcated and made available for use prior to the 
development hereby approved being brought into use.   
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
18. The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless and until 

Page 18



the measure and facilities indicated on the approved plans and detailed in the 
submitted Travel Plan Statement have been implemented to the written 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. In order to deliver sustainable transport objectives pursuant to the 
following Policy Ht2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253 
5322

Page 19



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59005

Land off Factory Street
Ramsbottom

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Works

Works

Millfield House

Works

44

T
el

ep
ho

ne

Works

Nursery

E
xc

ha
ng

e

40

Works

1

51

41

O
X

 H
E

Y
 C

LO
S

E

61

3

59

40

& Fitness Centre
Swimming Pool

37

1 
to

 1
2

5

2

14

7

23

3
9

73

Park

Skateboard

Playground

Council Yard

Builders Yard

E
ast Lancashire R

ailw
ay

R
A

M
S

B
O

T
T

O
M

 L
A

N
E

F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

H
E

A
T

H
E

R
S

ID
E

 R
O

A
D

S
T

U
B

B
IN

S
 L

A
N

E

PORRITT WAY

130.6m

135.8m

Viewpoints

2

1

3

Page 20



59005 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 

Page 21



Photo 3 

 

 

 

Page 22



P
age 23



P
age 24



P
age 25



P
age 26



 
 
  
 
Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - 

Ramsbottom 
Item   02 

 
Applicant: Mr Bryan Farlow 
 
Location: Land at rear of 4 Carr Bank Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9DW 

 
Proposal: Change of use of land to residential garden with erection of decking/steps and pond 

structures  
 
Application Ref:   59501/Full Target Date:  07/07/2016 
 
Recommendation: Split Decision 
A site visit has been recommended by the Development Control Manager. 
Description 
The application, which is retrospective,  relates to a small area (0.04ha) of land in the north 
west corner of the pond. There are semi-detached houses, including the applicant's house, 
to the north and east along Carr Bank Avenue. To the west are residential properties 
fronting Spring Wood Street.  To the south is the pond itself. The area is within 
Ramsbottom Conservation area and is designated a recreation area as the pond is used by 
local anglers and is frequented by a variety of wildlife including ducks, geese and 
kingfishers. The route of a designated public footpath runs along the northern side of the 
pond, between the applicant's rear garden and the site. This footpath in practice is not 
evident and not used, in part due to the fact that it is blocked off at the Spring Wood Street 
end by the existing stone wall.  
 
The proposal is to retain the area of land that has been infilled and resurfaced and use it as 
domestic garden for the resident at No.4 Carr bank Avenue. The applicant has stated that 
he has lived at 4 Carr Bank since 1982 and that over the past 34 years the land subject to 
this application, has gradually eroded due to the rise and fall of water levels. To protect the 
land, he has stabilised the land by fixing timber sleepers around its perimeter and infilling 
with material. Work has also included the formation of three small fish ponds near the inlet 
into the lodge and creation of three small bridge structures, decked areas and a couple of 
benches and raised planting beds down the east side where a small tree is located.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
None relevant. 
 
Publicity 
Site notice posted 16/05/2016, press notice in Bury Times 26/05/2016 and the following 
neighbours notified by letter dated 13/05/16: Nos.5-31(odd) Spring Wood Street, 2-12 
(even) Carr Bank Avenue.  
Representations received from 13, 17 Spring Wood Street, 10, 11 Carr Bank Avenue, 8 
Uppingham Drive and 6 Carr Bank  Avenue. Comments are summarised below: 
• The site is part of the Conservation area and has ecological value - as such it shouldn't 

be used as a domestic garden. 
• The development is an eyesore.  
• The painted structures on the land are out of keeping with the natural character of the 

area. 
• Concern about the effect on the wildlife and ecosystem -  the previously frequent visits 

of birds such as kingfishers and herons seem to have all but disappeared. 
• Concern about the effect of the structure on the ability of water to flow into the lower 

lodge from the higher lodge as freely as it might require at times of excess rainfall - as 
the event on December 26th 2015 demonstrated, this road is not immune from flooding 
from the lodges on it and the free flow of water from top to bottom lodge is pivotal to this. 

Page 27



• It is also disappointing that permission for this development is being sought several 
months after the completion of the work.  

• Need to know the possible effects on the flow of water into the lower lodge and potential 
effects for the wildlife. 

 
Those making representations have been notified of the Planning Control Committee. 
 
Consultations 
Drainage - The land is within a 'Critical Drainage Area' and prone to flooding. Given that the 
application does not involve a sensetive end use, this is not such a concern. Anyfurther 
comments shall be reported in the Supplementary Report. 
Public Rights of Way - Route of Public Right of Way crosses site although not in everyday 
use. 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - Objects to the proposed use of the land as domestic 
garden although the site could be made more natural by an appropriate landscaping. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control 
TC1/1 Open Space in Town Centres 
Area 
RM1 

Market Place/Carr Street/Ramsbottom Lane 

RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas 
EN5 Flood Protection and Defence 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN10 Environmental Improvement 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Use - Given the site is within a Conservation Area and is a designated recreation site with 
some ecological importance within the locality, the principle of converting part of the land 
into domestic garden raises some concerns. Creating a formal garden area would lead to 
the loss of important marginal land around the lodge and in extending out into the pond, 
would appear rather incongruous. Whilst the applicant is clearly sympathetic to wildlife and 
ecological issues, future tenants may not be and therefore the permenant change of the use 
of the land to garden is unacceptable in principle and contrary to the NPPF and UDP 
Policies. 
 
Visual amenity and Character of the Conservation Area - It is a fact that the area of land 
at its margins was eroding prior to the hard edges being created and area turfed. Whilst this 
has prevented further erosion, the effect of the new edging, decking, turfing and various 
structures gives the area a very domestic character that detracts from the character of the 
pond area which has a more natural appearance. It is recognised that the applicant has not 
finished landscaping the site and further planting would no doubt soften the impact of the 
site, however some aspects of a domestic garden such as formal planting beds, decking, 

Page 28



garden furniture and even washing lines which could be erected for example, would 
seriously detract from the character of the area. The works already carried out by the 
applicant are too domestic in appearance and would be improved by more natural 
landscaping. If the Committee are minded to approve the works, it would be appropriate 
therefore to attach a condition requiring landscaping and further groundworks to be carried 
out. 
 
Ecology - In its current state, the area of land appears stark and domestic. To become 
more atuned to the surrounding pond area, there would need to be a significant amount of 
changes to the surfacing and  landscaping would be required to 'naturalise' the area and 
soften the impact of the land, particularly around the margins to encourage wildlife.  
 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit, whilst objecting to the principle of the change of use to 
garden ground, are not against its landscaping. It is suggested that with appropriate planting 
and landscaping to create more of a natural and uncultivated area, the groundworks would 
be more acceptable in terms of ecology and, whilst it would not form a domestic garden, 
would not be out of keeping with the surrounding pond area and comply with Section 11 of 
the NPPF and UDP Policies EN6 and EN6/3 relating to ecology. 
 
Recreation Provision - The site lies within an area designated as Protected Recreation 
under UDP Policy RT1/1. This Policy states that development will not be allowed if it results 
in the loss of existing outdoor recreation facilities. Exceptions to the policy may be permitted 
where: 
• facilities can be retained with the redevelopment of a small part of the site, 
• alternative provision can be provided or 
• it can be demonstrated that there is excess open space provision in the area. 
 
Paragraph 74 of the NPPF also resists development on open space, sport and recreation 
land and specifies three exceptions to this including where: 

• An assessment has been undertaken which show the land is surpluss to 
requirements. 

• The loss resulting from the propoosal would be replaced in a suitable location. 
• The development is for alternative recreation provision. 

 
The proposal to use the land as a domestic garden does not strictly meet any of the above 
exceptions. However, the size of the site at 0.04ha is not significant in relation to the wider 
pond area, and with increased public access, possibly via the public right of way crossing 
the site, the proposal may be more acceptable. 
 
Flood Risk/ Drainage - The site is within a Critical Drainage Area and being on the 
northern edge of the large pond, close to the inlet from local lodges, is prone to occasional 
flooding. The proposed use of the land as garden, or even public landscaped area, would 
not be a particularly serious concern. The creation of ponds near the inlet into the pond 
would not have a seriously detrimental impact on flow into the pond. 
 
Public Right of Way - There is a public right of way running in a NW to SE direction 
between the site and the applicant's rear garden boundary. Although this is not used in 
practice, in theory it could be used in the future, particularly if a new point of access onto 
Spring Wood Street is created. If this were to be the case, the extension of the land into a 
domestic garden would not be appropriate as it would be dissected by the Public Right of 
Way. The proposal to change the use of the land into garden area would not be acceptable 
and be contrary to UDP Policy RT3/4 Recreational Routes. 
 
Residential amenity - There are no serious residential amenity issues arising from the 
proposal.  
 
Representations - The planning related issues raised by those making representations 
have been addressed in the above report. 
 

Page 29



Conclusion - Given the conservation/recreation area, public right of way and ecological 
issues raised by thos application, the change of use to garden ground would not be 
appropriate although the groundworks would, with further landscaping and groundworks, be 
acceptable. As such a split decision, to refuse the change of use but approve the 
groundworks is the recommendation. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal would not improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the 
area nor does it comply with the development plan and therefore does not comprise 
sustainable development. There were no amendments to the scheme, or conditions which 
could reasonably have been imposed, which could have made the development acceptable 
and it was therefore not possible to approve the application. The Local Planning Authority 
has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation: Split Decision 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. Within one month of the date of this decision notice, a landscaping scheme, 
including details of levels, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. It shall be implemented not later than 12 months from 
the date of this decision notice; and any plants and trees removed, dying or 
becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of 
planting shall be replaced by plants of a similar size or species to those originally 
required to be planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policies EN1/1 Visual amenity and EN1/3 Landscaping 
Provision  of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 

 
1. The proposed change of use to domestic garden area would have a seriously 

detrimental impact on the character, appearance and ecology of the pond area 
and wider Conservation Area of which the site forms part by virtue of its use and 
domestic appearance and would set a dangerous precedent with regard to similar 
garden extensions around the pond area. The proposal therefore conflicts with the 
following policies of the Unitary Development Plan: EN2/1 Character of 
Conservation Areas,  EN2/2 Conservation Area Control, EN6 Conservation of the 
Natural Environment, EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value. 

 
2. The proposed change of use to domestic garden would mean the unacceptable  

loss of Protected Recreation Area as designated under UDP Policy RT1/1. Without 
a sufficient justification for the change of use of the land, the proposal would be 
seriously detrimental to the Protected Recreation Area. The proposed change of 
use would be contrary to NPPF Paragraph 74 and UDP Policy RT1/1 Protection of 
Recreation Provision in the Urban Area. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

Page 30



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59501

Land rear of 4 Carr Bank Avenue
Ramsbottom



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Weir

Weir

95

23

99

37

Hotel

4

16

38

13

9

1

Olivet Pentecostal
Church

2

56

19

23

21

52

17

2

25

46

1

7

10
7

17

10
3

1

9

51

53

13

3

Grant Mews

14

82

7a

2

23

Mill

23

The Old

31

27

Kibboth Crew
85

94

Rose

Crown
(PH)

26

and

CARR

Pond

Pond

Car Park

Bowling Green

W
O

O
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
P

R
IN

G

C
A
R

R
 F

O
L
D

CARR STREET

P
IN

N
E
R
S
 C

L
O

S
E

G
u
tte

r L
a
n
e

D
U

G
IE

 S
T

R
E

E
T

DRIVE

CARR B
ANK A

VENUE

C
AR

R B
AN

K A
VENU

E

C
A

R
R

 B
A

N
K

 R
O

A
D

CARR

K
IB

B
O

T
H

C
R

E
W

BANK

(P
ath)

141.1m

158.8m

1

2

3

4

5

6

Viewpoints

Page 31



59501 

 

 

Photo 1

 

 

Photo 2

 

 

 

Page 32



59501 

 

 

Photo 3

 

 

Photo 4

 

 

Page 33



59501 

 

Photo 5

 

 

Photo 6

 

Page 34



P
age 35



 
 
  
 
Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - 

Ramsbottom 
Item   03 

 
Applicant:  Morris Homes Ltd 
 
Location: Redisher Works, Holcombe Old Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NQ 

 
Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 22 no. dwellings including works to 

culverted watercourse 
 
Application Ref:   59715/Full Target Date:  20/05/2016 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
It is recommended that this application is Minded to Approve subject to the signing 
and completion of a Section 106 agreement for recreation provision in accordance 
with Policy RT2/2 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan and SPD1. If the 
agreement is not signed within a reasonable timeframe, then delegated authority is 
sought by the Development Manager to determine the application. 
 
A site visit has been requested by the Development Manager 
 
Description 
The application site is located within the Green Belt and the Holcombe Conservation Area. 
The site contains existing portal industrial buildings, which were last used for vehicle 
exhaust manufacturing (B2 use) and have been vacant since 2003. The floorspace of the 
buildings is 5,230 square metres. 
 
The site is predominantly flat with steep sloping sides. There are mature trees to all 
boundaries, many of which are protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). The 
buildings and a large area of hardstanding is located on the flat area and the site is 
accessed form Holcombe Old Road. This access is shared with existing residential 
properties.  
 
There are open fields to the north and south and there are residential properties to the south 
east with the Hare and Hounds pub beyond. Redisher woods is located to the north and 
northwest of the site. There is a public footpath to the south west of the site, which connects 
to Park Road and a bridleway, which passes across the access to the site.  
 
The proposed development involves the demolition of the existing industrial buildings and 
the erection of 22 dwellings. The proposed dwellings would be detached and would be two 
storeys or two and a half storeys in height. The proposed dwellings would be constructed 
from red and buff brick with a tile roof. The proposed development would be accessed from 
Holcombe Old Road. As part of the proposal, a section of the Holcombe Brook would be 
de-culverted and opened up. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
41597 - Outline - demolition of existing industrial buildings and erection of 49 residential 
units including improvements to highway at Redisher Works, Holcombe Old Road, 
Holcombe Brook. Refused - 21 January 2004. 
 
43327 - Demolition of existing premises and regeneration for mixed residential/employment 
scheme, including highway improvements, new footpath links and river restoration (Approx 
45 dwellings) at Redisher Works, Holcombe Old Road, Holcombe Brook. Refused - 10 
November 2004 

Page 36



No case for very special circumstances was provided, detrimental to highway safety and 
insufficient information in relation to emergency access was provided. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 19 February and a press 
notice was published in the Bury Times on 25 February 2016. Site notices were posted on 
26 February 2016. 
 
3 letters have been received from the occupiers of 402A Bolton Road West, Dawes Bank 
Farm (300) Bolton Road West and the Holcombe Society, which have raised the following 
issues: 
• Strongly object as the junction at Holcombe Old Road is already extremely dangerous. 
• The speed of traffic on the roads that join it is frightening and a lot of the traffic does not 

even indicate. My daughter and I have almost been run over crossing the road and more 
traffic and residents will make the junction more congested and lethal. 

• It is only a matter of time until there is a fatality. 
• The road system in this area cannot cope with an increase in traffic.  
• There is an existing problem with cars using the bottom half of Holcombe Old Road as a 

cut through, turning onto Branch Road and driving down the cobbles lane when traffic 
backs up on Lumb Carr Road. 

• It will cause problems when cars are trying to exit the proposed development and will 
encourage cars to use Holcombe Old Road. 

• Holcombe Old Road is a narrow cobbled bridleway used by horseriders and walkers. If 
this proposal is passed, the extra cars will be a danger to the users. 

• With a proposal of 22 dwellings, there will be a minimum of 44 extra vehicles and some 
of these will use Holcombe Old Road as a cut through. 

• Holcombe Old Road is "access only" to residents of properties on the lane. 
• The site lies within the Holcombe Conservation Area. The site is a derelict vacant 

industrial facility that detracts from the Conservation Area and does need improvement. 
The Society supports the principle of redevelopment. 

• The proposal for residential use appears appropriate, but would request a greater mix of 
units, including 2-3 bed housing to improve affordability and meet housing need.  

• Given its situation within a river valley, the impact on ‘open-ness’ within the Green Belt 
is considered to be limited, and the beneficial prospect of regenerating the dilapidated 
current site outweighs in our opinion any perceived damage to Green Belt.  The LPA 
would need to be very clear in the wording of any planning approval however as to what 
the ‘Exceptional Circumstances’ were, in order to avoid setting an unruly local precedent 
for inappropriate development in the Green Belt. 

 
The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to access 
improvements , a construction management plan, measures to prevent mud from passing 
onto the highway, visibility splays, turning facilities and driveway lengths.  
Drainage Section - No objections in principle. Further comments will be reported in the 
Supplementary Report. 
Environmental Health Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land. 
Environmental Health - Air Quality - No comments.  
Public Rights of Way Officer - No objections. 
Waste Management - Comments awaited. 
GM Ecology Unit - Additional bat survey to be assessed. No objections, subject to 
conditions relating to method statement to protect the Holcombe Brook from spillages, 
Himalayan Balsam and landscaping plan. 
Environment Agency - Assessing revised Flood Risk Assessment. Further comments to 
be reported in the Supplementary Report. 
Designforsecurity - No objections.  

Page 37



National Grid - No objections. 
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul water,  
surface water drainage and SuDS and informatives.  
The Coal Authority - Assessing revised information. Further comments to be reported in 
the Supplementary Report. 
GM Fire Service - Comments awaited. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EC2/2 Employment Land and Premises 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas 
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8/1 Tree Preservation Orders 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
EN9/1 Special Landscape Areas 
OL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
RT3/4 Recreational Routes 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD8 DC Policy Guidance Note 8 - New Buildings in the Green Belt 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle (Employment) - The site was last used as an employment site and, as such, the 
principle of any proposed development needs to be assessed against UDP Policy EC2/2.  
 
Under Policy EC2/2, the Council will seek to retain the employment use of such sites unless 
it can be clearly demonstrated that the land and premises are no longer suited, in land use 
terms, to continued employment use. 
 
The Council produced a development brief in 2009 for the site, which concluded that the site 
was no longer suitable for modern day employment uses. The Employment Land Review 
was undertaken in 2013 and concluded that the site performed so poorly, it was 
'inappropriate in land use terms for employment use'. As such, the site should not be 
retained for employment use as there is no realistic prospect of the site coming forward for 

Page 38



such a use. Therefore, the proposed development would not conflict with Policy EC2/2 of 
the Bury Unitary Development Plan and would be in accordance with the NPPF. 
 
Principle (Green Belt) - Paragraph 89 of the NPPF states that the construction of new 
buildings within the Green Belt should be regarded as inappropriate development unless it 
meets one of the following exceptions; 
• buildings for agriculture and forestry; 
• provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation and for 

cemeteries, as long as it preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict 
with the purposes of including land within it; 

• the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in 
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building; 

• the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not 
materially larger than the one it replaces; 

• limited infilling in villages, and limited affordable housing for local community needs 
under policies set out in the Local Plan; or limited infilling or the partial or complete 
redevelopment of previously developed sites (brownfield land), whether redundant or in 
continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would not have a greater impact 
on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within it than the 
existing development. 

 
Policy OL1/2 states that the construction of new buildings within the Green Belt will be 
inappropriate development unless it is for agriculture, forestry, essential facilities for outdoor 
recreation, limited extensions of existing dwellings and for other uses of land which do not 
conflict with the purposes of including land in it. Proposals for buildings, which do not fall 
into one of the above categories are inappropriate development and will only be permitted in 
special circumstances. 
 
The application site contains industrial buildings and a large hardstanding and as such, is 
previously developed land. As such, the proposed development involves the erection of 22 
dwellings on land that is previously developed. 
 
The floorspace of the existing industrial buildings is 5,230 square metres and the floorspace 
of the proposed development is 2,017 square metres. The proposed development would 
represent a reduction of 61% in terms of floorspace. The proposed dwellings would be lower 
in height than the existing industrial buildings and there would be a break between the 
individual dwellings.  
 
The reduction in the floorspace of the built development represents an improvement to the 
openness of the Green Belt, especially when combined with the reduction in the height of 
the proposed dwellings and the breaks in the built form between the proposed individual 
dwellings. In addition, there would be a reduction in the amount of hardstanding. Therefore, 
it is considered that the proposed development would have a positive impact upon the 
openness of the Green Belt. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would represent the redevelopment of a previously 
developed site, which would not have a greater impact upon the openness of the Green Belt 
and would be appropriate development. Therefore, the proposed development would not 
conflict with Policy OL1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and would be in 
accordance with paragraph 89 of the NPPF. 
 
Principle (Residential) - Following revocation of the North West Regional Strategy on 20 
May 2013, there is no statutory housing target for Bury. Work has commenced on the 
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework and this will bring forward a new statutory housing 
target for the Borough. This will subsequently be incorporated into Bury’s future Local 
Plan.    
In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material 
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the 
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a 

Page 39



particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year 
supply of deliverable housing land.  
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The proposed development is located within walking distance of the urban area and there is 
residential development to the south/south east. As such, the proposed development would 
not conflict with the surrounding land uses. The site is within walking distance of public 
transport and as such, is in a sustainable location. The site contains industrial buildings and 
an area of hardstanding and is previously developed land. Therefore, the proposed 
development would be acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Design and layout - The proposed development would include detached dwellings, which 
would be a mix of two and two and a half storeys in height. The proposed dwellings would 
be constructed from red brick with a slate roof, which would be appropriate and would 
preserve the character of the Conservation Area. The use of headers, stone cills, bay 
windows, pike details, canopies, small dormers and chimneys would add visual interest to 
the elevations. As such, the proposed dwellings would not be a prominent feature in the 
locality. 
 
All of the proposed dwellings would have a side or rear garden, which would provide a 
suitable level of private amenity space. There would be space within the rear gardens for 
bin storage and the proposed boundary treatments of timber fencing, railings and brick walls 
would be acceptable. As such, the proposed development would preserve the character of 
the conservation area and would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene. Therefore, 
the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1, H2/2, EN2/1 
EN2/2 and OL1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon the Conservation Area - The application site is located within the Holcombe 
Conservation Area. 
 
The national legislative framework for development affecting listed buildings and 
conservation areas is provided by the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990. This sets out the duty on local planning authorities with regard to listed buildings 
and any buildings or land within a conservation area, when determining applications for 
planning permission. It is essential that these legal duties are considered, alongside the 
contents of the NPPF and other planning policies and guidance. 
 
The Town and Country Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Area) Act 1990 imposes 
a duty under Section 72 on Local Planning Authorities to pay ‘special attention to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area’ (section 
72(1)) 
 
Paragraph 131 of the NPPF states that when determining planning applications, Local 
Planning Authorities should take account of: 
• the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and 

putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 
• the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make sustainable 

communities including their economic vitality; 
• the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 

distinctiveness. 
 
Paragraph 133 of the NPPF states that where a proposed development would lead to 
substantial harm or total loss of significance of a designated heritage asset, local planning 
authorities should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm 

Page 40



or loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or 
all of the following apply: 
• the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and 
• no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through 

appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and 
• conservation by grant funding or some form of charitable or public ownership is 

demonstrably not possible; and 
• the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use. 
 
The disused works buildings are constructed from profiled metal sheeting and do not 
contribute to the historical or architectural importance of the Conservation area or its setting. 
The study site is located in the valley bottom and is enclosed by the steeply sloping valley 
sides. As such, there are no significant outward views into or from the conservation area 
and the application site. Given the above, the impact of the proposed development on the 
setting of the conservation area is negligible and would cause negligible levels of harm to its 
significance. As the existing buildings contribute little to the appearance of the Conservation 
area, it is considered that the demolition of these buildings would enhance the character of 
the Conservation Area. 
 
There is a moderate potential for 19th and 20th century industrial structures, which may be 
of regional significance but there is a nil potential of evidence of prehistoric, Roman, 
Medieval periods as industrial development of the site is likely to have removed any 
archaeological evidence. There are no objections to the proposed development, subject to 
the inclusion of a condition relating to archaeology. 
 
The proposed development would bring the site back into use and the design of the 
dwellings would respect the conservation area. The proposed materials and boundary 
treatments would be appropriate within the Conservation Area. Therefore, the proposed 
development would preserve the character of the Conservation Area and would be in 
accordance with Policies EN1/1, EN1/2, EN2/1 and EN2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between 
residential properties and as such, would be relevant in this case. The aspect standards 
states that there should be a minimum of 20 metres between directly facing habitable 
windows and 13 metres between a habitable room window and a two storey blank wall.  
 
There would be 21 metres and 28 metres between the proposed development and Redisher 
Croft and Holcombe Old Road respectively. These distances would exceed the aspect 
standards and would be acceptable. 
 
The remaining relationships would comply with the relevant aspect standards. Therefore, 
the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon the amenity of the 
neighbouring properties and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of 
the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Trees - The trees surrounding the site are protected by Tree preservation Orders (TPO) and 
a arboricultural assessment was submitted with the application. 5 groups of trees would 
need to be removed to facilitate the development. All of these trees are classed as 
unsuitable for retention and are of low quality. The proposed development includes the 
planting of 99 trees within the development site. Given that the trees are of low quality and 
the number of trees being planted as part of the proposed landscaping works and the 
retention of the trees on the perimeter of the site, it is considered that the proposed 
development would preserve the character of the locality and conservation area. Therefore, 
the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN8/2, EN1/1, EN1/2 and 
EN1/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Ecology - A phase 1 habitat survey and bat survey has been undertaken and submitted 
with application. The buildings and trees were assessed for bat roosting potential and the 

Page 41



majority of the buildings were assessed as having negligible bat roosting potential. 
However, one building was assessed as having negligible to low roosting potential and 
another as low to moderate risk. An emergence survey has been carried out and further 
comments will be reported in the Supplementary Report. 
 
The proposed development includes the de-culverting of the Holcombe brook and 
associated landscaping. These works would be positive in terms of the North West river 
basin management plan, the water frameworks directive and would enhance the Holcombe 
Brook wildlife corridor. Notwithstanding the emergence bat survey, GM Ecology Unit has no 
objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to method statement to protect the 
Holcombe Brook from spillages, Himalayan Balsam and landscaping plan. Therefore, the 
proposed development would not cause harm to a protected species (notwithstanding the 
bat survey) and would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Flood risk/drainage - A revised Flood Risk Assessment has been received and is being 
assessed by the Environment Agency. The Drainage Section has no objections to the 
principle of the proposed development and further comments will be reported in the 
Supplementary Report. 
 
Public right of way - There is an existing public right of way to the south east of the site, 
which would be unaffected by the proposed development. There is a bridleway (No. 26) 
which currently crosses the proposed access (Holcombe Old Road). The proposed 
development would generate less traffic than the previous use and the proposed access 
improvements would slow the speed of the traffic in the vicinity of the bridleway. The Public 
Rights of Way Officer has no objections to proposal. Therefore, the proposed development 
would be in accordance with Policy RT3/4 of the  Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Highways issues - The existing access to the site is via Holcombe old Road, which was 
used by HGVs until the premises closed in 2003. The proposed development would utilise 
the same access and would generate less traffic than the previous use. The proposed 
development would provide improvements to the pedestrian access, whilst retaining the 
stone wall and would ensure forward visibility is retained. The Traffic Section has no 
objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to access improvements, a 
construction management plan, measures to prevent mud from passing onto the highway, 
visibility splays, turning facilities and driveway lengths. Therefore, the proposed 
development would not be detrimental to highway safety and would be in accordance with 
Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum number of parking spaces is 3 spaces per 4 and 
5 bed units. This equates to 66 parking spaces. 
 
The proposed development would provide 52 parking spaces and 24 parking spaces in the 
form of integral or detached garages, which equates to 76 spaces. Whilst the proposed 
development would be over providing by 10 parking spaces, it is considered that given the 
location and the need to avoid on-street parking, that this is acceptable in this instance. 
Therefore, the proposed development would comply with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and SPD11. 
 
Planning obligations - A contribution for recreation provision would be required of 
£64,261.88 in accordance with Policy RT2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and 
SPD1. This would be secured through a Section 106 agreement.  
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 

Page 42



sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered N257/P/LP01 #, N257/P/PL01 *, 

N257/P/HTALD/01, N257/P/HTALD/02, N257/P/HTAPP01, N257/P/HTAPP/02, 
N257/P/HTBRA/01, N257/P/HTBRA/02, N257/P/HTBRID/01, N257/P/HTBRID/02, 
N257/P/HTSEV/01, N257/P/HTSEV/02, N257/P/HTSTRA/01, N257/P/HTSTRA/02, 
N257/P/HTWILSA/01, N257/P/HTWILSA/02, N257/P/HTWIL/01, 
N257/P/HTWIL/02, F1-1, F1-2, F2-3, F3-4, J9A, 3963/300, 3963/301 A, 
M2672.01_B, MH.TO.23 - EXISTING DRAINAGE, MH.TO.23 - TOPOGRAPHICAL 
LAND SURVEY, 
BTC1026-TIP and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance 
with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations, 

together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development 
is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the 
construction of the development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity. 

 
4. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 

Page 43



development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 
6. Notwithstanding the details shown indicatively on approved plan reference PL01, 

no development shall commence unless and until full details of the following have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
• Alterations at the interface between the unadopted site access and the 

adopted highway at Lumb Carr Road, including all necessary improvements to 
visibility and pedestrian facilities at this junction and the access to the adjacent 
public house; 

• Improvements to the existing carriageway and pedestrian facilities on the 
southerly side of the route between the adopted highway and the development 
site, including all appropriate remedial works at the junction with Bridleway No. 
26, Ramsbottom; 

• Provision of the priority give-way arrangements proposed in the position 
indicated, including all necessary road markings and signage; 

• A scheme of traffic calming measures on the site access/unadopted estate 
road; 

• Provision of a street lighting scheme for the proposed private residential 
development to include all necessary improvements to lighting levels on the 
adopted highway at the junction of the site access with Lumb Carr Road and at 
the interface with Bridleway No. 26, Ramsbottom/Holcombe Old Road; 

• Swept path analysis of the proposed private estate roads to ensure a refuse 
collection vehicle can pass a private car and manoeuvre at the turning head. 

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented in accordance with a 
programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. No details have been provided and to ensure good highway design and 
maintain the integrity of the adopted highway, in the interests of highway safety 
pursuant to the following Policies of the Bury UNItary Dveelopmetn Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
7. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 

Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
• Access route for demolition/construction traffic from the highway network; 
• Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 
• Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 

of the site; 
• Parking on site or on land within the applicant's control of operatives' and 

demolition/construction vehicles together with storage on site of construction 
materials. 

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition and construction 
periods and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended 
purpose for the duration of both periods. The areas identified shall not be used for 
any other purposes other than the turning/parking of vehicles and storage of 
construction materials. 
Reason. No details have been provided and to mitigate the impact of the 
demolition/construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the 
adjacent residential streets and ensure adequate off street car parking provision 
and materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period, in 
the interests of highway safety pursuant to the following Policies of the Bury 
UNItary Dveelopmetn Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 

Page 44



Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 
 

8. Before the development is commenced, details shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to cover measures to ensure 
that all mud and other loose materials are not carried on the wheels and chassis of 
any vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by 
the operations. The approved details shall be implemented and maintained 
thereafter during the period of construction. 
Reason. No details have been provided and to ensure that the adopted highways 
are kept free of deposited material from the ground works operations pursuant to 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 
9. The visibility splays indicated on approved plan reference PL01 shall be 

implemented before the development is first occupied and subsequently 
maintained free of obstruction above the height of 0.6metres. 
Reason. To ensure the intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent 
highways in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policicies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
10. The turning facilities on approved plan reference PL01shall be provided before the 

development is first occupied and shall subsequently be maintained free of 
obstruction at all times. 
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
11. A minimum hardstanding of 5.5m measured between the footway and any 

proposed garage doors shall be provided and thereafter maintained.   
Reason. To enable a vehicle to stand clear of the highway whilst the garage doors 
are opened and to allow adequate space to maintain a vehicle clear of the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
12. All trees to be retained on site shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837:2012 

"Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction". The development shall 
not commence unless and until the measures required by the British Standard are 
implemented and all measures required shall remain in situ until the development 
has been completed. 
Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant 
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree 
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
13. No trees, unless indicated otherwise on approved plan - N257/P/PL01 * - shall be 

felled, lopped or topped before or during the construction period without the 
previous written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant 
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree 
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
14. Notwithstanding the plans submitted, a landscaping scheme, including the removal 

Page 45



ofall hornbeam and all wild cherry and replacement with bird cherry (Prunus 
padus) and guelder rose (Virburnum opulus) shall be submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the 
development. It shall be implemented not later than 12 months from the date the 
building(s) is first occupied; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming 
severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting 
shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally 
required to be planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 
– Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
15. No development shall commence until full details of a scheme for the eradication 

and/or control of Himalayan Balsam (Impatiens Glandulifera) is submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved management 
plan shall include a timetable for implementation. Should a delay of more than one 
year occur between the date of approval of the management scheme and either 
the date of implementation of the management scheme or the date of 
development commencing, a further site survey must be undertaken and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of 
Himalayan Balsam in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 - Landscape and pursuant to 
National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the 
natural environment. 

 
16. No development, site clearance or earth moving shall take place or material or 

machinery brought on site until a method statement to protect the Holcombe Brook 
from accidental spillages, dust and debris has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved measures shall be 
implemented in full prior to the commencement of the development and shall be 
maintained for the duration of the construction period in accordance with the 
approved details. 
Reason.  In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a feature of ecological 
value pursuant to Policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and 
EN6/3 – Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and 
Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
17. No development, building work or demolition shall take place unless and until a 

desk study, scoping report for a watching brief and a program of archaeological 
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. These works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
scoping report unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To make a record of buildings and features of archaeological interest 
pursuant to policies EN3/1 – Impact of Development on Archaeological Sites, 
EN3/2 – Development Affecting Archaeological Sites and EN3/3 – Ancient 
Monuments of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
18. The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated 

and made available for use prior to the dwellings hereby approved being brought 
into use. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253 
5322

Page 46



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59715

Redisher Works
Holcombe Old Road



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

FB
Sluice

LB

11

21

18

20

20
a

B
ank

21a

21

30

2

Brookfield

House

40
5

40
2

40
2 

40
4

407

1 9
 to

 2
1

1
7

439441

437443

1
8

1

3

2

447

445

1

2

449

4

Herbert

3

465
461

1

463

12

2

473

467

480

488

475

1
3

2
5

1

402b

Shelter

19

(PH)

Hotel

39
9

1

El Sub Sta

1

7

Holcombe Mews

20
4

402a

House

Hare and Hounds

40
6

a

40
8

41
2

41
4

a

40
6

11

9

41
0

416

7

2

Holcombe Brook

9

2

2
00

10

45

40

Works

Lumb Carr

8

4
6

8

2

Emerald Cottages

426

21

438

31

455

El Sub Sta

Dawes Bank Farm

29
6

29
8

B
ro

ok
H

o lco
m

b e

Sinks

Issues

Pond

Issues

Sinks

Sinks

Car Park

Precinct

Redisher Wood

Holcombe

Car Park

Redisher Wood

C
R

O
F

T
L
A

N
D

S

CLO
SE

D
A

L
T

O
N

L
U

M
B

C
A

R
R

 R
O

A
D

H
U

N
T

E
R

S
G

R
E

E
N

BOLTON R
OAD W

EST

R
e
d
ish

e
r C

lo
se

Ivy S
treet

H
O

L
C

O
M

B
E

 O
L
D

 R
O

A
D

REDISHER CROFT

PARK ROAD

Path

162.2m

167.0m

176.4m

167.7m

180.4m

Viewpoints

1
2

3

Page 47



Page 48



59715 

 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2

 

Page 49



59715 

 

Photo 3

 

Page 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



300mm

Top of Wall - Varies

Existing Site

Gledhill Gritstone to be
taken down min 300mm
below bed level

600min

300mm wide free draining stone 5-28mm size ( not
limestone ) with Terram 1000 ( or similar approved )
surround .

'Stepoc' 325 Basement Block by Forticrete infilled with
concrete Grade C35. Refer to Structural Engineers
Details for reinforcement details.

50mm Class 1 mortar filler

30mmØ upvc weephole
at 2m centres

Wall Coping :
600mm x 600mm ,100mm deep,
Gledhill Gritstone bedded on
10mm Class 1 mortar.

Dense Concrete Block
7N/mm² min.

compressive strength.

100mm
50mm

325mm

600mm 1200mm

250min

50mm
Blinding

Concrete Grade C35
10mm Max aggregate
size min slump of
150mm min 300kg /m³
cement content.

Gledhill Gritstone , 140mm high ,
pitch faced stone , random lengths
to be tied to Stepoc using Safety
Heavy Duty SS Strip tie with Vertical Twist at
900mm centres horizontally and 450mm vertically

Refer to Structural
Engineers Detail for
reinforcement detail

300mm

Gledhill Gritstone to be
taken down min 300mm
below bed level

Dense Concrete Block
7N/mm² min.

compressive strength.

Proposed Watercourse
Bed Level - Varies

30mmØ upvc weephole
at 2m centres

Wall Coping :
600mm x 600mm ,100mm deep,
Gledhill Gritstone bedded on
10mm Class 1 mortar.

600mm1200mm

50mm
Blinding

Concrete Grade C35
10mm Max aggregate
size min slump of
150mm min 300kg /m³
cement content.

Refer to Structural
Engineers Detail for
reinforcement detail

325mm
50mm

100mm

Width 3500mm

H
e
ig

h
t 
5

0
0

m
m

Re-grade existing
embankment and
provide 150mm
Topsoil

150mm

1 IN 2 MAXIMUM GRADIENT

Stonework bedded on
200mm Class ST4
concrete

300mm Concrete
Class C15

Top of Wall

Proposed Watercourse
Bed Level

Proposed Watercourse
Bed Level

1.5m

1.5m

Top of Wall

Width Varies

Width Varies

Varying Distance
0.6m - 0.9m

Max

Top of Wall

Proposed Watercourse
Bed Level

Proposed Watercourse
Bed Level Down
Stream of Weir

Gledhill Gritstone , 140mm high ,
pitch faced stone , random lengths.

150mm

10mm Class 1 Mortar Bedding

Stonework bedded on 200mm
Class C30 Concrete

300mm Class C15 Concrete

Proposed G.L.

Dense Concrete Block
7N/mm² min.
compressive strength.

Top of Wall

Top of Wall

Top of Wall
Down Stream of Weir

Down Stream of Weir

Stonework bedded on
200mm Class ST4
concrete

300mm Concrete
Class C15

10mm Class 1 Mortar
Bedding

400mm

100

20

10

10

300 100

200

300

Varying Distance
0.6m - 0.9m

Max

Gledhill Gritstone

Section
Scale 1:20

manchester@ironsidefarrar.com

EnvironmentalPlanners
CivilEngineers

LandscapeArchitects
GraphicDesign

EnvironmentalConsultants

EDINBURGH                  BELLSHILL

Tel. 0161 703 8801  Fax. 0161 703 8279
3 Worsley Court MANCHESTER M28 3NJ

IronsideFarrar

Checked ByDrawnOriginal Size Copyright Acknowledgement Drawing No.

Ordnace Survey©
©Crown Copyright.
All rights reserved.
Licence No. AL100017966.

Date Scale

Title

Quality Ass. Client

North Point Project

Revision

UKAS 005
Quality
Assurance
ISO 9001:2008
SGS Certificate
GB02/54539

Redisher Works
Holcombe Brook

Morris
Homes

Proposed Water Course
Diversion Typical Details

NB SRG

May 15 As Shown

3963/203A1

Detail
Scale 1:10

Front Elevation
Scale 1:20

Section
Scale 1:20

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



 
 
  
 
Ward: Bury East Item   04 

 
Applicant:  J and D Jenkinson Ltd 
 
Location: Garage site off Hewart Drive, Bury, BL9 7NF 

 
Proposal: Erection of 3 no. dwellings with associated parking and access  
 
Application Ref:   59971/Full Target Date:  29/06/2016 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application relates to the site of a former garage colony in a  backland area measuring 
approximately 0.08ha (approx 31m by 22m). The site is currently vacant, the garages 
having been demolished.   
 
The site is bounded on four side by residential properties fronting Hewart Drive (west), 
Topping Fold Road (North-east) and Duxbury Drive (South and east). It is accessed from 
Hewart Drive in the south-west corner. The land, which is relatively flat, comprises part 
rough grass/scrub with some small self seeded shrubs/small trees at points around the 
boundary. No.11 Duxbury Drive has a vehicular access from the rear onto the site. 
 
The originally submitted scheme for a row of four houses was not considered to be 
particularly appropriate in scale or layout. The revised scheme now proposes to erect a 
block of three, 3-bed terraced houses. Including additional accommodation in the 
roofspace. The houses would be three storey with a maximum height of just less than 9m. 
The properties would be positioned centrally on the site, facing south-west and leaving 
space on either side measuring 3m and 6m . The houses would be constructed in red brick 
and tile. Each unit would have a small front garden with a parking space. Two visitor spaces 
would be provided to the on the west side of the site. 
 
The proposed access point would be as existing but resurfaced and a new footpath formed 
on the north side which runs into the site to access the rear gardens of the properties. Bins 
would be kept at each property and collected from Hewart Drive on collection day.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
01567/E - Proposed residential development of private vehicular colony garage site  - 
Enquiry completed 27/10/2014. 
 
Publicity 
The following neighbours were notified by letters dated 06/05/16 (initial) and 24/05/16 
(revised plans). Nos.13 - 25(odd) and 26 - 34(even) Hewart Drive, 5 - 19(odd) Duxbury 
Drive, 78 - 92(even) Topping Fold Road.  
 
Representations received from residents at 21 and 25 Hewart Drive. Objections are 
summarised: 
• Impinge on views. 
• Increase crime. 
• Access road isn't wide enough. 
• Disruption to local wildlife. 
• Site is too small to accommodate development (4 houses) 
• We oppose any kind of housing on off Hewart Drive      
• Increase in overlooking  

Page 71



• concerns about bin store 
 
• All those neighbours making representations have been notified of the Planning Control 

Committee.  
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objection subject to conditions 
Drainage Section - No objection subject to conditions.. 
Environmental Health - No objection subject to conditions. 
Waste Management - No objection. 
United Utilities - No objection. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
EN1/5 Crime Prevention 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
SPD3 DC Policy Guidance Note 3: Planning Out Crime 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
SPD16 Design and Layout of New Development in Bury 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
National Policy -The NPPF indicates that there should be a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development and focus on housing delivery.  
 
Principle - Following revocation of the North West Regional Strategy on 20th May 2013, 
there is no statutory housing target for Bury.  Work has commenced on the Greater 
Manchester Spatial framework and this will bring forward a new statutory housing target for 
the Borough.  This will subsequently be incorporated into Bury's future Local Plan. 
 
In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material 
consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the supply 
of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term.  There is a 
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year 
supply of deliverable housing land.  
 
UDP Policy H1/2 - Further Housing Development relates to sites not identified specifically 
within the UDP. It states that sites should be within an urban area with available 
infrastructure and be suitable in terms of amenity and surrounding residential land uses. 
The site is within the urban area with available infrastructure, the area is a vacant backland 
site that does not have high amenity value and would only become more of a problem over 
time. It is considered that the principle of residential development on the site is acceptable 
subject to other development plan policies. 

Page 72



 
Layout - The layout of the application will need to be considered against the criteria listed in 
Policies H2/1 - Form of New Residential Development and H2/2 -Layout of New Residential 
Development as well as guidance provided in SPD16 - Design and Layout of New 
Development.   
 
Policy H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development sets out factors to be assessed, 
including 
• height and roof style, 
• impact on residential amenity, 
• density and character of the locality, 
• position in relation to neighbours and materials to be used. 
 
Policy H2/2 The layout of New Residential Development relates to layout and states that 
proposal should take account of; 
• car parking and access, 
• density, 
• space between dwellings, 
• landscaping, 
 
Policy EN1/2 relates to general design of a new build on the streetscene and states that 
proposals should not have an adverse impact on the character of the townscape. 
 
Visual amenity - The proposed houses are relatively traditional in appearance and would 
be generally in keeping with the character of the surrounding residential estate in terms of 
design and massing. 
 
The proposed houses sit relatively comfortably within the site with sufficient open space 
around them and there is adequate access and parking and sufficient private amenity 
space. The layout and access details submitted would be acceptable and conform with the 
requirements of policies H2/1 and H2/2 where relevant.   
 
Residential Amenity - The surrounding neighbours on Hewart Drive, Duxbury Drive and 
Topping Fold Road are a sufficient distance away as not to be seriously affected by the new 
development. The front corner of the side/west gable of the new building would be a 
minimum 12m from the corner of the properties 21 and 23 Hewart Drive. The distance 
increases to 14m as the buildings footprint lies at an angle to the neighbours on this side. A 
similar relationship exists to properties at the rear, along Topping Fold Road. Here the 
separation would be a minimum 19m, extending to 26m. These separation distances are 
considered to be acceptable in relation to habitable room windows in that a sufficient level of 
residential amenity and privacy would be secured and this would comply with adopted policy 
and guidance. 
 
On the other/east side, the gable is set back 3m off the rear boundary with No.13 Duxbury 
Drive. Given the position of the property in relation to the house and garden of No.13 and 
the fact that there are no windows in the gable, there are no overlooking or other residential 
amenity issues arising. The proposal is acceptable and complies with UDP Policies H2/1 
and H2/2 in relation to residential amenity.   
 
Permitted Development Rights - Given the fact that the site is a small backland area and 
individual house plots are not large, it is considered appropriate to attach a condition 
removing household permitted development rights in order to retain control of development 
on the site. 
 
Crime - The development of the site for residential purposes is considered an acceptable 
use and one which allows a derelict site to be brought back into effective use. It would 
prevent the area becoming a magnet for flytipping and other anti-social activities. As such 
the proposal is acceptable and complies with UDP Policy EN1/5 and guidance in relation to 
crime.   

Page 73



 
Access and Car Parking - Each residential unit would have one off-road parking space 
and with two communal visitor spaces, parking provision is considered to be acceptable and 
compliant with UDP Policies H2/2 and HT2/4 in relation to parking. The Traffic Section has 
no objection to the proposal subject to conditions. 
 
Trees - There are no significant trees or shrubs on the site that would require protection or 
retention. There are a couple of trees (not TPO) on adjacent land whose canopies overhang 
the site. These trees should not be seriously affected by the development although a 
condition will be attached to the decision notice requiring tree protection measures during 
construction. 
 
Servicing - As the access road would not be adopted, refuse would be collected from the 
the site's junction with Hewart Drive on collection day. 
 
Public Representations - Those planning issues raised by surrounding residents have 
been addressed in the above report. 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered Location Plan 00, 6752/A, .01B, .02B 

The development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. Details of the materials to be used in the external elevations, boundary treatment 

and areas of hardstanding, (manufacturer, type/colour and size), shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the 
development is commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used for the 
construction of the development. 
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory 
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 
4. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 

Page 74



submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 
• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 

Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider environment and pursuant to 
National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the 
natural environment.  

 
5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 
6. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where ground 

gas remediation / protection measures are required, the approved Remediation 
Strategy must be carried out to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority within approved timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To alleviate any possible risk associated with the production of landfill gas 
and ground gas in accordance with the recommendations of the Environment 
Agency and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - 
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
7. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 

present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has 
submitted a remediation strategy to the local planning authority detailing how this 
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and obtained written approval from 
the local planning authority. The remediation strategy shall be implemented as 
approved. 
Reason. To prevent the pollution of controlled waters from potential contamination 
on site pursuant to UDP Policy EN7 Pollution Control. 

 
8. No development shall commence unless and until a ‘Construction Traffic 

Management Plan’ (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
• Access route for construction traffic from the highway network; 
• Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 
• Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 

of the site; 
• Parking on site of operatives' and construction vehicles together with storage 

on site of construction materials. 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the 
measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the 
duration of the construction period. The areas identified shall not be used for any 
other purposes other than the turning/parking of vehicles and storage of 
construction materials. 
Reason. In the interests of road safety and ensure adequate construction facilities 

Page 75



are provided pursuant to UDP Policy H4 New Development. 
 

9. Before the development is commenced, details shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority to cover measures to ensure that all 
mud and other loose materials are not carried on the wheels and chassis of any 
vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the 
operations. The approved details shall be implemented and maintained thereafter 
during the period of construction. 
Reason. To ensure that the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material 
from the ground works operations pursuant to UDP Policy H2/2 The Layout of New 
Residential Development. 

 
10. The pedestrian and vehicular access improvements indicated on approved plan 

reference 01 Revision B shall be implemented to the written satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority before the development is first occupied.  
Reason. To ensure good highway design in the interests of highway safety 
pursuant to UDP Policies H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development and 
HT4 New Development. 

 
11. The car parking and turning facility indicated on approved plan reference 01 Rev B 

shall be surfaced, demarcated and made available for use to the written 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to the development hereby 
approved being brought into use.   
Reason. To ensure appropriate car parking and turning provision pursuant to UDP 
Policy Ht2/4 Car Parking and New Development. 

 
12. Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order 1995, as subsequently amended, no development shall be 
carried out within the terms of Classes A to G of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Order, 
without the submission and approval of a relevant  planning application. 
Reason. In the interests of residential and visual amenity pursuant to UDP 
Housing Policies H2/1 and H2/2.  

 
13. No development shall take place until a surface water drainage scheme for the 

site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the 
hydrological and hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The drainage strategy 
should demonstrate the surface water run-off rate generated up to and including 
the 100 years critical storm will be reduced by 30% for the corresponding rainfall 
event. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details before the development is completed.  
Reason. To reduce the increased risk of flooding, both on and off site pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk.  

 
14. Tree protection measures shall be installed along the south east boundary in 

accordance with BS 5837:2012 "Trees in relation to design, demolition and 
construction". The development shall not commence unless and until the 
measures required by the British Standard are implemented and all measures 
required shall remain in situ until the development has been completed. 
Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant 
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree 
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

Page 76



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59971

Garage site of Hewart Drive
Bury



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Posts

Posts

4 7

1 to 3

9 to 11

Court

5 6 8

Gate House

The Gatehouse

Tank

19

72
74

76

70

86

90

92

28

16

14

26

12

9

28
13

9

19
1

15

30 32
26

17

25

7

10

2 4
32

12
6

4

44

4 6
42

24

38
40

1

5

3

50

52
48

54

34

2

43

39

56

62

6
8

2
4

63
61

64

3

78

34

8

36

41

521

50

66

30

11

11

18

22
20

2

54

16

House

Bridge

14 68

B
R

ID
G

E
FIE

LD

C
U

C
K

O
O

L
A

N
E

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 D
R

IV
E

H
E

W
A

R
T

 D
R

IV
E

D
U

XBU
R

Y D
R

IVE

Post

Path (um
)

94.8m

99.1m

1

2

3 4

5

6

Viewpoints

Page 77



59971 

 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



59971 

 

 

Photo 3 

 

 

Photo 4 

 

 

Page 79



59971 

 

 

Photo 5 

 

 

Photo 6

 

Page 80



P
age 81



P
age 82



P
age 83



 
 
  
 
Ward: Bury West - Elton Item   05 

 
Applicant:  Abbeyfield Bury Society Ltd 
 
Location: 60-78 Tottington Road, Bury, BL8 1LL 

 
Proposal: Addition of 11 no. apartments to existing assisted living scheme including means of 

access and relocation of car park  
 
Application Ref:   60002/Full Target Date:  13/07/2016 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
A site visit has been requested by the Development Manager. 
 
Description 
The site contains an existing building which is in use as a sheltered accommodation/care 
home. The building is a mix of single and two storeys and is located on the south eastern 
part of the site. The building is constructed from red brick with a tile roof. The site is 
accessed from Cottam Street, which is part adopted and the northern half of the street is 
unadopted. The adopted section of the street is cobbled and includes a footpath and the 
unadopted section is unmade. The car park is located adjacent to the building. 
 
There is residential development to the southeast, south west and north west of the site. 
There is a watercourse to the north with residential properties beyond.  
 
The proposed development involves the erection of a two storey extension to the north west 
of the existing building to contain 11 apartments for use by the over 55s. The proposed 
development would be constructed from red brick with a tile roof. The car park would be 
relocated to the northern part of the site.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
34424 - Extension at rear and external alterations at Abbeyfield (Farraday House), 78 
Tottington Road, Bury. Approved with conditions - 6 August 1998 
 
36056 - Two storey extension at rear with single storey link building; alterations to existing 
elevations at Abbeyfield (Farraday House), 78 Tottington Road, Bury. Approved with 
conditions - 17 January 2000 
 
37722 - Single storey extension to provide administration area at Abbeyfield, Tottington 
Road, Bury. Approved with conditions - 5 June 2001. 
 
59329 - Addition of 11 no. apartments to existing assisted living scheme at 60 - 78 
Tottington Road, Bury. Withdrawn - 13 April 2016 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 19 April 2016 and a press 
notice was published in the Bury Times on 21 April 2016. Site notices were posted on 19 
April 2016. 
 
1 letter has been received from the occupiers of 80 Tottington Road, which has raised the 
following issues: 
• All of the original comments from the previous application are still relevant. 
• Concerned about the height of the new structure. The proposed structure will take 

considerable light form the back garden and from the gable end bathroom window. 
Page 84



• The proposed development will overlook the rear garden and residents will be bale to 
see over the fence into the private space. In addition, the garden will be overshadowed 
by the proposed extension. 

• Concerns about parking. Currently there is a car park for 5 vehicles. Only 2 cars park 
there and the remaining staff and visitors park on the side street (next to the houses). 
The street is congested during weekends already. How will this be managed by 
Abbeyfield? 

• It is not clear who is responsible for the road and the lower section of Cottam Street is 
not owned by anyone according to land register records. Who will be responsible for the 
access leading to the car park? 

• The access is close to the public right of way which is used mid-week and at weekends, 
which may be dangerous. 

• Not against Abbeyfield expanding their business, but am concerned about the issues 
listed above. 

 
The objector has been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to access 
alterations, construction traffic management plan, car parking and measures to prevent mud 
from passing onto the highway. 
Drainage Section - No objections in principle and further comments will be reported in the 
Supplementary Report. 
Environmental Health Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land.  
Public Rights of Way Officer - No objections. 
Waste Management - No objections. 
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to bats  
Canal & River Trust - No objections. 
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and 
surface water drainage. 
The Coal Authority - No objections, subject to the inclusion of an informative in relation to 
coal mining. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H4/2 Special Needs Housing 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
CF3/1 Residential Care Homes and Nursing Homes 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 

Page 85



considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Policy CF1/1 states that proposals for new and improved community facilities 
will be considered with regard to the impact upon residential amenity and the local 
environment; traffic generation and car parking; the scale and size of the development; 
accessibility by public and private transport; the needs and requirements of the disabled. 
 
Policy CF3 states that the Council will, where appropriate, consider favourably proposals for 
the provision of new, and the improvement of existing social services facilities for children, 
young people, elderly people, people with mental and/or physical handicaps and illnesses, 
and other groups with special needs. 
 
The proposed development would provide a two storey extension to the existing care home 
to provide an addition 11 apartments and ancillary accommodation. The site would be 
accessible by public and private transport and the issues of residential amenity, traffic 
generation, the scale and size of the development and the needs and requirements of the 
disabled will be discussed below Therefore, the proposed development would be 
acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policies CF1/1, CF3 and CF3/1 of 
the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Recreation provision - Policy RT2/2 states that developers of new housing for 10 or more 
dwellings will be expected to provide for the recreational needs of the prospective residents, 
by providing and laying out recreational open space within the development. For larger 
developments (50 or more), such provision should be provided on site, where possible in a 
single plot. The Council’s SPD1 states that, for C2 schemes, on-site amenity land or  
communal space will be required as part of the development, such as through landscaping  
or the provision of benches. 
 
The proposed development includes an area of amenity space within the central courtyard, 
which would be landscaped and suitable for use by the residents of this assisted living 
scheme. There would be paths within the landscaped area, which would connect to the 
proposed building and to the access road via the car park. The proposed site plan indicates 
that there would be a patio are anear the communal lounge and a condition requiring 
additional landscaping would be included. Therefore, the proposed development would 
comply with Policy RT2/2 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan and SPD1. 
 
Design and layout - The proposed extension would complement the existing building, 
which is of a traditional design with regularly spaced openings and a pitched roof. The 
proposed extension would be the same height as the existing two storey elements of the 
building and as such, the scale of the building in terms of height would be acceptable. The 
provision of headers, cills and the corner feature would add visual interest to the building.  
 
The proposed development would create a courtyard area internally, which would be utilised 
as amenity space by the existing and proposed residents. A 1.8 metre boundary fence 
would be erected on the boundary between the proposed amenity space and the car park. 
Therefore, the proposed development would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene 
and would be in accordance with Policies CF1/1, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between 
residential properties and as such, would be relevant in this case. 
 
There would be 22 metres between proposed extension and properties on Tottington Road 
(Nos 85 - 103), which would comply with the aspect standards. 
 

Page 86



Agent provided plans which indicate that the window in the gable elevation of 1 Bank Place 
relate to a lobby and landing and are not habitable room windows. There would be 14.3 
metres between the proposed building and the gable elevation, which would be acceptable 
and would comply with the aspect standards in SPD6. In addition, the agent has included an 
oriel window to apartment 9, which would reduce any overlooking or loss of privacy. 
 
There would be 13 metres between the proposed extension and the gable elevation of No. 
80 Tottington Road. The opening within the gable elevation of No. 80 Tottington Road is a 
bathroom and as such, is not a habitable room window. As such, the proposed development 
would comply with the aspect standards. 
 
The proposed development would create a courtyard development and there would be 
habitable room windows opposite with a separation distance of 12 metres. The proposed 
site plan confirms that the windows within the proposed extension would be fitted with 
perforated one way film to prevent overlooking, which would be secured by a condition.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon the amenity  
of the neighbouring properties. 
 
Highways issues - The proposed development is currently accessed from Cottam Street, 
which is adopted until the junction of Back Tottington Road North and there is adequate 
levels of visibility. The proposed development would continue to be accessed from this 
street and the car park would be relocated to the northern end of the site. The proposed site 
plan includes the provision of a new footpath to connect to the proposed car park and the 
re-surfacing of Cottam Street. The Traffic Section has no objection, subject to the inclusion 
of conditions relating to access alterations, construction traffic management plan, car 
parking and measures to prevent mud from passing onto the highway. Therefore, the 
proposed development would not be detrimental to highway safety and would be in 
accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards are 1 space per 4 beds, which 
equates to 3 spaces. 
 
The existing parking provision is 4 spaces, which would be relocated and 9 spaces 
provided. The proposed development would provide an overprovision of car parking. 
However, taking into account the existing rooms at the home as well as the proposed 
development, there would be 26 bedrooms, which equates to a maximum number of 
parking spaces of 6.5. 
 
The proposed development would exceed the maximum number of parking spaces. Given 
the concerns from the local resident with regard to parking, it is considered that the level of 
parking proposed would be acceptable in this instance. Therefore, the proposed 
development would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan and SPD11.  
 
Access - The proposed development would incorporate a lift and the corridors and doors 
would be wide enough to facilitate wheelchair use. A disabled toilet and bathroom would be 
provided on each floor. Therefore, the proposed development would be accessible for all 
and would be in accordance with Policy HT5/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Response to objectors 
The issues relating to design, loss of light, privacy, overlooking and parking have been 
addressed in the main report. The issue of future maintenance to the unadopted section of 
Cottam Street is not a material planning consideration and cannot be taken into 
consideration. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 

Page 87



 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 557/FHA/LP A, 557/FHA/PL1, 

557/FHA/PL2, 557/FHA/PL3 B, 557/FHA/PL4 A, 557/FHA/PL5 C, 557/FHA/PL6 G, 
557/FHA/PL6a A, 557/FHA/PL7 B, 557/FHA/PL8, 557/FHA/AT1 B, 557/FHA/AT2 
B, 557/FHA/AT3 B, 557/FHA/AT4 B, 557/FHA/AT5 B and the development shall 
not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. No development, other than demolition, shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 
5. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where ground 

gas remediation / protection measures are required, the approved Remediation 
Strategy must be carried out to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority within approved timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 

Page 88



development being brought into use. 
Reason. To alleviate any possible risk associated with the production of landfill gas 
and ground gas in accordance with the recommendations of the Environment 
Agency and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - 
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
6. No development shall commence, other than demolition, until details/samples of 

the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations, together with details of 
their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be 
used for the construction of the development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity. 

 
7. The development herbey approved shall be carried out in accordance with 

paragraphs 4.2.1 and 4.2.2 of the Bat survey - emergence and activity survey 
report, dated 9 June 2016. The mitigation measures shall be implemented in full 
prior to first occupation of the extension hereby approved. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
8. No development, other than demolition works, shall commence unless or until 

details of a scheme for the disposal of surface water drainage have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
proposed scheme must be based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the 
National Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in accordance with the 
Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 
2015). This must include assessment of potential SuDs options for surface water 
drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support the chosen 
solution. Details of the proposed maintenance arrangements must be provided. 
Only the approved scheme shall be implemented prior to occupation of the 
dwellings hereby approved. 
Reason. No details of the drainage have been submitted and to ensure a 
satisfactory means of drainage pursuant to Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water 
Management of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
9. Before the first occupation of the extension hereby permitted the windows on the 

north eastern elevation shall be fitted with a perforated one way film and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition thereafter. 
Reason. To protect the privacy of adjoining occupiers and to accord with Policy 
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
10. Before the development is commenced, details shall be submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority to cover measures to ensure that all 
mud and other loose materials are not carried on the wheels and chassis of any 
vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the 
operations. The approved details shall be implemented and maintained thereafter 
during the period of construction. 
Reason. To ensure that the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material 
from the ground works operations pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New 
Residential Development of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
11. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 

Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
• Access route for construction traffic from the highway network; 
• Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 

Page 89



• Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 
of the site; 

• Parking on site or on land within the applicant's control of operatives' and 
construction vehicles together with storage on site of construction materials. 

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the 
measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the 
duration of the construction period. The areas identified shall not be used for any 
other purposes other than the turning/parking of vehicles and storage of 
construction materials 
Reason. To mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by the 
proposed development on the adjacent highway and ensure adequate off street 
car parking provision and materials storage arrangements for the duration of the 
construction period, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to the following 
Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
12. Notwithstanding the details indicated on approved plan reference 557/FHA/PL6 

Revision G, no development, other than demolition, shall commence unless and 
until full details of the proposed access alterations and pedestrian improvements 
on Cottam Street, incorporating the reinstatement of the redundant car park 
access to adjacent footway levels and revised footway width/alignment between 
the former and new car park accesses, have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details subsequently approved shall 
be implemented to an agreed specification before the development is first brought 
into use. 
Reason. To ensure good highway design and maintain the integrity of the adopted 
highway, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to the following Policies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
13. No development, other than demolition works, shall commence until the car 

parking indicated on approved plan reference P3902 10 (or alternative temporary 
provision to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) has been 
surfaced, demarcated and made available for use. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253 
5322

Page 90



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 60002

60 - 78 Tottington Road
Bury



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Outfall

FB

LB

23

1

31

28

38

14

29

24

11

25

15

Sub Sta
El

36

51

9 
to

 1
2

18
 to

 2
1

Rive
rb

an
k 

Gar
de

n

7

Faraday House

48

41

1

67

54

61

78

Riverbank Garden

14 to 17

1 to 8

89

83

87

75

85

84

11

12
1

48

62

1
1

4

2

3

6

16

88

Bank Place

80

12
3

92

12

2

1

10
3

10
5

72

2

3

12

70

67

67
a

75

65

69a

Refuse
Tip

BACK MERTON STREET

W
H

IT
T
L
E
 S

T
R

E
E
T

C
O

T
T
A
M

 S
T
R

E
E
T

BACK

B
A
C
K
 T

O
T
T
IN

G
T
O

N
 R

D
 N

W
H

IT
T
L
E
 S

T
R
E
E
T

VALE

WOODHILL

MERTON STREET

T
O

T
T
IN

G
T
O

N
 R

O
A
D

R
O

A
D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
L
L
 S

A
IN

T
S
 P

LA
C
E

96.0m

100.0m

1

2

3

4

Viewpoints

Page 91



60002 

 

Photo 1

 

Photo 2

 

Page 92



60002 

 

Photo 3

 

Photo 4

 

Page 93



P
age 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



 
 
  
 
Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley Item   06 

 
Applicant: Mr Mark Sassoon 
 
Location: 8 Hardman Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0HB 

 
Proposal: Single storey extension to ground floor flat; Loft conversion with rear dormer to first 

floor flat 
 
Application Ref:   60069/Full Target Date:  21/06/2016 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The property is a two storey semi-detached building consisting of one ground and one first 
floor flat.  There is a small walled front garden with parking on the road side only.  At the 
rear there is a small enclosed garden which is shared by the occupiers of both flats.  
Number 6 Hardman Avenue, attached to the north side of the property is a two storey 
house.  Number 6 has an existing single storey extension on the rear of the house to the 
north side of the garden.  There is also a small out building to the rear of the extension.  At 
ground floor level there is one window close to the boundary with a bedroom window above. 
 
Houses to the rear are within 20m and there is a brick wall along the rear boundary with 
some planting as well.   Number 10 to the south of site has a small out-rigger on the rear of 
the house with a door facing the shared boundary and one small ground floor window and a 
bedroom window at first floor level. 
 
The applicant  proposes to build a single storey extension on the rear of the property and a 
dormer on the rear of the roof.  The extension would project 3.9m from the original rear 
elevation and would extend across the whole of the rear elevation.  Along the shared 
boundary with number 6 it would project 3m and the corner would be chamfered at a 45° 
angle away from the shared boundary.  It would have a mono pitched roof with two 
rooflights with patio doors and one window in the rear elevation.  The north side elevation 
would be built approximately 157mm from the shared boundary with number 6 Hardman 
Avenue.  The proposed dormer would have a flat roof.  It would measure 6.69m wide and 
would be set down from the ridge by approximately 200mm.  At the sides it would be set in 
by approximately 237mm on the north side and approximately 250mm on the southern side. 
There would be three windows in the dormer, two to a bedroom and one to a bathroom. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
59674 - Single storey extension to ground floor flat; Loft conversion with rear dormer to first 
floor flat - Refused 18/03/2016 
59774 - Single storey extension to ground floor flat; Loft conversion with rear dormer to first 
floor flat. - ZZZ Special deleted application 17/02/2016 
 
Publicity 
Immediate neighbours notified on 29.04.16 - one objection from the attached neighbour at 6 
Hardman Avenue.  They object on the grounds that the single storey extension would block 
out views and light from their rear living room window adjacent to the boundary and it would 
also have a detrimental effect on their disabled daughter who has limited mobility. 
 
Consultations 
None 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 

Page 99



SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
H2/3 Extensions and Alterations 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
The main considerations of this application are the impact of the proposal on visual and 
residential amenity. 
 
Visual Amenity -  
With regards to the proposal both the dormer and extension would be built with designs and 
materials that would compliment the existing property. The dormer would be built on the 
rear of the property and as such would not have any detrimental impact on the existing 
street scene at the front and it was similar to other such structures in the immediate vicinity. 
The design of the proposal is considered acceptable in this location.   
 
Given the above the proposal conforms to Bury UDP Policy H2/3 - Extensions and 
Alterations and the guidance in Supplementary Planning Document 6 – Alterations and 
Extensions to Residential Properties in terms of visual amenity. 
 
Residential Amenity -  
Houses to the rear would be within 20m of the proposed single storey extension.  As the 
windows in the rear elevation of the extension would look on to the existing brick wall and 
not over the gardens or properties to the rear there would not be any detrimental impact on 
residential amenity at these properties.  With regards to the dormer it would be set back 
from the rear wall.  As such the separation distance from this extension to houses at the 
rear would be acceptable in this instance. 
 
The extension would project a total of 3.9m from the original rear elevation but would only 
project 3m directly along the shared boundary with number 6, attached to the north.  At the 
3m point the corner of the extension would be chamfered at a 45° angle to satisfy the 
requirements of SPD 6.   There is a ground floor habitable room window adjacent to the 
boundary in the rear of number 6 and the proposed extension would have some detrimental 
impact on light availability to this room but as the extension would project a total of 3m along 
the shared boundary this would be considered acceptable in terms of SPD 6.    
 
With regards to number 10 to the south of the site there are no habitable room windows 
close to the boundary which would be affected by this development.  The proposed ground 
floor bedroom window in the side elevation of the property would look directly on to a blank 
gable wall at number 10, over a short fence along the shared boundary.  As any views from 
this window would be directly towards a blank gable wall and not over any amenity space in 
the rear garden any detriment would be to the users of the bedroom only and not the 
adjacent neighbours.  The rear dormer could be built under Permitted Development rules 
and would be a sufficient distance from properties at the rear not to have any detrimental 
impact on residential amenity in the immediate vicinity.  With this in mind the proposal 
conforms to UDP Policy H2/3 - Extensions and Alterations and the requirements of 
Supplementary Planning Document 6 – Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties 
in terms of that it is no more than 3m on the boundary and separation distances to 
surrounding properties. 
 
Neighbour Objection - 

Page 100



The objection from the next door neighbour has been addressed in the report above. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 1 and 2 and the development shall not 

be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury UDP Policy H2/3 - Extensions and 
Alterations and the guidance in Supplementary Planning Document 6 – Alterations 
and Extensions to Residential Properties. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Amanda Uhunmwagho on 0161 
253 5323

Page 101



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 60069

8 Hardman Avenue
Prestwich



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

123

115

146

22

20

19

117

21

9

1

12

120

11

2

114

12

1

116

2

97
2

108

1

106

12

22

105

99

107

KING'S ROAD

H
A

R
D

M
A

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

F
O

R
T

 R
O

A
D

W
IL

T
O

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

74.4m

Viewpoints

2 5
1

3
4 6

Page 102



60069 

 

Photo 1

 

Photo 2

 

Page 103



60069 

 

Photo 3

 

Photo 4

 

Page 104



60069 

 

Photo 5

 

Photo 6

 

Page 105



Kitchen

Hall

Up

Bedroom

Lounge

Hall Up

Bathroom

Boundary Line Boundary Line

Demolish Brickwork

1800 x 1200
UPVC Window

Proposed
Bathroom

New 1200 x 1200
UPVC window

Proposed Bedroom

MK08  VELUXMK08  VELUX

1800 x 2000
French Doors

A..

A..

Exg S+VP

Exg S+VP

New S+VP

Exg S+VP

Proposed Kitchen/

Dining Area

Heat Detector

Smoke Detector

R.C lintels Over
125 Bearing

Assumed Line of
FWD (To be agreed
on site after
exposure
of EXG Drainage)

B.I Gulley

Inspection chamber

New S+VP

T1= 2no 178 x 102 x 19
kg/m U.B 150 Bearing on to
250 x 250 Conc Padstones

Proposed
Lounge Area

Proposed Bedroom

1/2 HOUR FIRE DOORS

Encase EXG
Partition with
12.5mm Fireline
Boards each side.
Underdraw Stairs
with 12.5 Fireline
Boards

Flat 1Flat 1

New 1800 x 2000
UPVC French Doors

1800 x 1200
UPVC Window

Brickwork
to match

Tiles to match

Tiles to match

Proposed Extension

Proposed Dormer

Hardman Avenue

86

Demolish Exg
Lean to

12

Size and depth of footing to be
agreed on site with building
inspector

Mk08 Velux roof light
780x1400

Astos DPC 150 above G.L

100 PVC gutter
on PVC fascia

Encase Steel in 12.5
plasterboards + skim
1/2 hour fire res.

150 x 50 Rafters
Fixed to Wallplates

Code 4 Lead Flashing

100 x 75 wallplate rawl
bolted at 1m crs

Feet of rafters
strapped to wallplate

1200 x 1200
UPVC WindowBrickwork to match

Tiles to match

1200 x 1200
UPVC WindowBrickwork to match

Tiles to match

Brickwork to match

Tiles to match

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLANEXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

SPECIFICATION
PITCHED ROOF
(BERKDALE FIBRE CEMENT SLATES OR SIMILAR SLATE WITH MIN PITCH OF 15°)
TILES TO MATCH ON 38 X 19 BATTENS ON 1 LAYER TYVEC FELT LAID TO MANUFACTURERS
SPECIFICATION ON 150 X 50 RAFTERS AT 400 CRS 50 CELOTEX 50 AIR GAP OVER 1 LAYER
THINSULUX 50 X 24 BATTENS 12.5 MM PLASTERBOARD AND SKIM

NEW EXTERNAL WALLS
BRICKWORK TO MATCH 85mm DRI THERM 100mm CELCON OR SIMILAR INNER SKIN 12.5
mm PLASTERBOARD + SKIM ON DABS.
STAINLESS STEEL WALL TIES AT 450mm VERTICAL AND 900mm HORIZONTAL CRS.
STAGGERED.
SCREW TYPE TO CONNECT TO BRICKWORK. THERMABATE CAVITY CLOSERS.

INTERNAL STUD WALLS
12.5mm PLASTERBOARD + SKIM  ON 75mm X 50mm AT 400mm CRS`
100mm ROCKWOOL

GROUND FLOOR
75 SAND CEMENT SCREED ON 100mm CONCRETE ON 1200g VISQUEEN 100mm CELOTEX ON
1200g VISQUEEN ON 50 SAND BLINDING ON 200mm WELL CONSOLIDATED HARDCORE.

WINDOWS + DOORS
WINDOWS TO HAVE 10,000mm TRICKLE VENTS AND LOW 'E' DOUBLE GLAZING.
DOOR + GLAZING PANELS TO HAVE TOUGHENED LOW E DOUBLE GLAZING
PROVIDE CATNIC LINTELS OVER NEW OPENINGS. 150 mm BEARINGS.

DRAINAGE NOTES
50mm PVC WASTE PIPES FROM BASIN WITH 100mm ANTI-SYPHON DEEP SEAL TRAP.
100mm PVC S AND VP CONNECTING INTO NEW S+VP 1:40 FALLS.  NEW S+VP IN TO I.C OVER
EXG FWD. GROUND FLOOR BATHROOM TO HAVE NEW 100 mm PVC S+VP WITH STUB STACK+
DURGO VALVE RUNNING THROUGH FLOOR, INCASE IN 150 CONCRETE, PROVIDE LINTELS
WHERE PASSING THROUGH WALLS.
PROVIDE RODDING ACCESS.
ENCASE BELOW GROUND S & VP IN 100mm CONCRETE. PROVIDE CONCRETE LINTEL WHERE
PASSING THROUGH WALLS. PROVIDE MECHANICAL VENTILATION
TO WC (17 l/s).

EXTEND EXG 50 mm WASTE PIPE FROM SINK TO OUTSIDE OF PROPERTY TO NEW BACK
INLET. GULLEY  ENCASE SOIL PIPE IN 150 CONCRETE + PROVIDE LINTELS WHEN PASSING
THROUGH WALL.
(ALL TO BE AGREED ON SITE WITH INSPECTOR AFTER EXPOSING EXISTING)

GENERAL NOTES
ELECTRICAL WORK TO BE DESIGNED, INSTALLED AND INSPECTED BY A COMPETENT PERSON
TO COMPLY WITH PART 'P' A BS 7671 CERTIFICATE MUST BE PROVIDED ON COMPLETION.
NEW RADIATORS TO BE FITTED  WITH THERMOSTATIC RADIATOR VALVES
NO LIABILITY IS ACCEPTED FOR ANY WORKS COMMENCING WITHOUT FULL BUILDING
CONTROL APPROVAL.
LATERAL RESTRAINTS PROVIDE M.S STRAPS ACROSS 3 NO JOISTS + 400 DOWN BLOCK WORK
TO SIDES OF EXTENSION AT 1M CRS
NEW 100 X 75 WALLPLATE TO BE FIXED WITH SIMILAR STRAPS.
75% OF NON LIGHT FITTINGS TO BE HIGH EFFICACY 40 LUMENS PER CIRCUIT WATT.
EXG HEAT DETECTOR TO NEW KITCHEN.
MECHANICAL EXTRACT VENTILATION IS TO BE PROVIDED TO THE KITCHEN e.g BY FAN
PROVIDING AN EXTRACT RATE OF 60 L / SEC OR IF BY A COOKER HOOD AT A RATE OF 30 L
A SEC.
PROVIDE MAINS OPERATED SMOKE ALARM, MAINS OPERATED INTERLINKED WITH BATTERY .
BACK UP TO DINING AREA. HEAT DETECTOR TO KITCHEN SHOWN THUS;

INSULATION AND DRAUGHT EXCLUSION
INSULATION TO BE INTERLINKED TO PREVENT COLD BRIDGING.
DRY LINING TO BE SEALED TO MASONRY AT EDGES OF DOORS & WINDOW OPENINGS & AT
ALL JUNCTIONS WITH FLOORS, WALLS & CEILINGS.
BOXING IN OF SERVICES TO BE SEALED FLOOR AND CEILING. PIPES THROUGH WALLS TO BE
SEALED.

BLOCK PLAN
1:500 SCALE

SECTION A.A

DRAWING No 1

CLIENT: MR MARK SASSOON
PROJECT:
PROPOSED EXTENSION AND
LOFT CONVERSION AT
8 HARDMAN AVENUE,
PRESTWICH,
MANCHESTER
M25 OHB
SCALE: 1:50, 1:100, 1:10
1:500

DATE: DECEMBER 2015

Beam T1 Span= 3M
W = 4.6 / 2 = 3 X 1.7 =11.7 KN Pitch roof
2.9 X 3 X 2.2 = 19.1 KN Brickwork
4.7/2 X 3 X .25 = 1.8 KN Ceiling
32.6 KN Total

BM= 32.6 x 3 /8 = 12.2
TRY= 178 x 102 x 19 KG/M U.B
L/Ryy= 3 x 100/ 2.39 = 125.5
D/T = 22.5 pbc= 112.3
Therefore Adopt with 2 no Steels Max EM
153 x 2 = 306 Therefore Adopt

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATIONPROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION

P
age 106



Lintel over Doorway

150 x 50 Floor Joist
at 400 Crs

200 x 50 Floor Joist
at 400 Crs

4

5

6

7

9

11

1 2 3

12

8

Reposition Door

10

1314

2 3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

1314

2 no MK08
Top Hung VELUX

Lounge

Kitchen

Bedroom

Landing

Proposed Bedroom

Proposed Bedroom

Shower Room

Bathroom

1200 x 1200
UPVC Window

1200 x 1200
UPVC Window

900 x 1200
UPVC Window

150 x 50 Floor Joist
at 400 Crs

1/2 HOUR FIRE DOORS

1/2 HOUR FIRE DOORS

A..

A..

Double Joist
Trim to Stairs

Kitchen

Hall

Up

Bedroom

Lounge

Bathroom

Boundary Line

Exg S+VP

Exg S+VP

T3 = 178 x 102 x 19
K.G/m U.B

T1 = 300 X 150
(2 X no 300 x 75)

B1= 203 x 133 x 30 kg/m U.B
Spliced at 13 points (See Detail)
300 x 100 M.S Spreader Plates
to ends

New S+VP

New S+VP

T2 = 178 x 102 x 19
K.g/m U.B

T4 as T3

400 x 100 x 12.5
M.S spreader plates

200 x 100 x 12.5
M.S spreader
Plate to end

250 x 100

Flat 1
Flat 2 Flat 2

Proposed Extension

Proposed Dormer

Hardman Avenue

86

Demolish Exg
Lean to

12

New 1800 x 2000
UPVC French Doors

1800 x 1200
UPVC Window

Brickwork
to match

Tiles to match

Tiles to match

150 x 100
Header

1200 Deep
Window

Bat Joist HangersStraps To pick up
Ceiling

175 x 50 Joists 100 PVC Gutter  on
200 UPVC Fascia

Remove Rafters
and Purlin

New 125 x 50
Rafters

Remove Purlin
2 X Top Hung
Mk08 Velux

B1= 203 x 133 x 30 kg/m U.B

1200 x 1200
UPVC WindowBrickwork to match

Tiles to match

RL RR
3.7

W1

2 1.7

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION

BLOCK PLAN
1:500 SCALE

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SECTION A.A

DRAWING No 2

CLIENT: MR MARK SASSOON
PROJECT:
PROPOSED EXTENSION AND
LOFT CONVERSION AT
8 HARDMAN AVENUE,
PRESTWICH,
MANCHESTER
M25 OHB
SCALE: 1:50, 1:100, 1:10
1:500

DATE: DECEMBER 2015
EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLANSTEEL SPLICE

DETAIL 1:10

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATIONEXISTING SIDE ELEVATION

Roof Binder B1 Span = 6.6m
W= 3.8/2 x 6.6 x 1.45 = 18.4 KN Flat Roof
2.5/2 x 6.6 x 1.7 = 14 Kn Pitched Roof
32.2 KN Total

BM= 32.2 x 6.6 /8 = 26.6
TRY= 203 x 133 x 30 kg/m  U.B
L/Ryy = 6.6 x 100 / 3.05 = 216.4
D/T = 21.5 pbc= 122
EM=  26,600/122 = 218
MAX Em = 278.5
Therefore Adopt

Floor Trimmer T1 Span= 3.9m
w= 1.9/2 x 3.9 x 1.9 = 7 KN Floor
4.2/2 x 3.9 x 1.7 = 13.9 KN Pitch Roof
20.9 Total

BM= 20.9 x 3.9 /8 = 10.2
Zxx= 10,200/ 5.3 = 1924.5
Max Deflection= 3.9 x 0.003 x 1000 = 11.7
Ixx= 5 x20,900 x 3.9³ x 1000³/
384 x 5800 x 11.7= 237.9
Therefore use 300 x 150
Zxx= 2240 Ixx= 338

T2 Span= 3.7m
W1 = 20.9/2 = 10.5 K From T1
Rl/ 3.7 = 10.5 x 1.7 / 3.7 = 4.8
Bm Max at W1 = 4.8 x 2 = 9.6
TRY 178 x 102 x 19 K.G/m U.B
L/Ryy= 3.7 x 100/2.39 = 154.8
D/T= 22.5 pbc= 94
Em=9,600

94  = 102.1
Max EM= 153
Therefore Adopt

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

SPECIFICATION

DORMER CHEEK
TILES TO MATCH ON 38MM X 19MM BATTENS ON ONE LAYER SLATERS FELT ON 12.5MM PLYWOOD O 12.5
MASTER BOARD TO PARTY WALL SIDE 100MM X 50MM STUDS AT 400MM CRS.100MM CELOTEX, 12.5MM
PLASTERBOARD + SKIM .
PROVIDE CODE 4 LEAD FLASHINGS AND SOAKERS AROUND DORMER. 75MM PVC GUTER ON 200MM X 25MM
UPVC FASCIA, 75MM PVC RAINWATER PIPE.

DORMER ROOF
12.5 BITUMEN BEDDED CHIPPINGS ON 3 LAYERS FELT ON 19MM PLYWOOD LAID TO FALLS ON  ON AS PLAN
JOISTS 100MM CELOTEX BETWEEN 50 AIR GAP OVER 1 LAYER THINSULUX UNDER JOISTS. 50X 25 BATTENS
12.5MM PLASTERBOARD + SKIM .

ROOFSLOPES
12.5mm PLASTERBOARD + SKIM ON 50mm X 25mm BATTENS ON 1 LAYER THINSULUX ON AS PLAN RAFTERS.
50mm CELOTEX BETWEEN 50 AIR GAP OVER.

PERIMETER STUD WALLS
12.5mm PLASTERBOARD + SKIM ON 100mm X 50mm STUDS AT 400mm CRS. 100mm CELOTEX BETWEEN.

VELUX ROOF LIGHTS
VELUX ROOF LIGHT TO HAVE DOUBLE RAFTER TRIM , LOW 'E' DOUBLE GLAZING + 10,000 TRICKLE
VENTS

WINDOWS TO BE LOW 'E' DOUBLE GLAZING + 10,000 TRICKLE VENTS.

INTERNAL STUD WALLS
12.5mm PLASTERBOARD + SKIM  ON 75mm X 50mm AT 400mm CRS`
100mm ROCKWOOL

GABLE WALLS
12.5mm PLASTERBOARD + SKIM ON 50 X 50 STUDS 50 mm CELOTEX

PROVIDE TILE VENTS ADJACENT TO RIDGE EQUIV TO 12.5m CONTINUOUS. TILE VENTS EQUIVILENT TO 25mm
CONTINUOUS ADJACENT TO EAVES.

STAIRCASE ENCLOSURE
12.5mm PLASTERBOARD + SKIM ON 75mm X 50mm STUDS AT 400mm CRS 100mm ROCKWOOL 1/2 HOUR
FIRE RES.  INSTALL MAINS OPERATED INTERLINKED SMOKE ALARMS TO HALL AND LANDINGS  WITH HEAT
DETECTOR TO KITCHEN WITH BATTERY BACKUP
NO GLAZING TO STAIRWELL.

STAIRCASE 760mm WIDE
15 NUMBER RISERS AT 202mm. 14 NUMBER TREADS AT 228mm.
228mm TO CENTRE OF TAPERED TREADS AND 50mm MIN. GOING PITCH 42 DEGREES.
MAINTAIN 2000mm HEADROOM. HANDRAIL HEIGHT = 900mm MAX. 100mm GAP BETWEEN RAILS.

FLOOR
22mm T AND G CHIPBOARD ON AS PLAN JOISTS. 100mm ROCKWOOL ON WIRE MESH , 16mm LATH AND
PLASTER 12 HOUR FIRE RES.

GENERAL NOTES
ELECTRICAL WORK TO BE DESIGNED, INSTALLED AND INSPECTED BY A COMPETENT PERSON TO COMPLY WITH
PART 'P' A BS 7671 CERTIFICATE MUST BE PROVIDED ON COMPLETION.
NEW RADIATORS TO BE FITTED  WITH THERMOSTATIC RADIATOR VALVES.
75 % OF NEW LIGHT FITTINGS TO BE LOW ENERGY LIGHTS]

TIMBER PACKER BOLTED TO WEB OF STEEL BEAM FOR JOIST HANGER FIXING.

BUILDER TO CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS BEFORE COMMENCEMENT.
NO LIABILITY IS ACCEPTED FOR ANY WORKS COMMENCING WITHOUT FULL  BUILDING CONTROL APPROVAL.

INSULATION AND DRAUGHT EXCLUSION
INSULATION TO BE INTERLINKED TO PREVENT COLD BRIDGING.
DRY LINING TO BE SEALED TO MASONRY AT EDGES OF DOORS & WINDOW OPENINGS & AT ALL JUNCTIONS
WITH FLOORS, WALLS & CEILINGS.
DRAUGHT STRIPS TO BE FITTED IN THE FRAMES OF ALL OPENABLE ROOFLIGHTS, WINDOWS & DOORS. LOFT
HATCHES TO BE SEALED.
BOXING IN OF SERVICES TO BE SEALED FLOOR AND CEILING. PIPES THROUGH WALLS TO BE SEALED.

DRAINAGE NOTES
100MM PVC S+VP CONNECTING IN TO EXISTING S+VP 1 TO 40  FALLS DISCHARGING 900 ABOVE WINDOWS PVC
CAGE ON TOP 40 MM WASTE PIPES TO SHOWERS AND BASINS WITH 100MM DEEP SEAL ANTI SIPHON TRAPS.
PROVIDE RODDING ACCESS EXTRACTOR FANS CONNECTED TO LIGHT SWITCH 16L/SEC

SEPARATING FLOOR
IMPROVEMENT DETAIL

T3 Span= 3.4
W=4.2/2 x 3.4 x 1.9 = KN Floor
2 x 3.4 x .85 = 5.8 Stud
3.8/ 2 x 3.4 x 1.45 = 9.4 Kn Flat Roof
0.6/2 x 3.4 x 1.7 = 1.7 KN Pitched Roof
30.5 KN Total

BM= 30.5 x 3.4 / 8 = 13
TRY 178x 102 x 19 kg/m U.B
L/Ryy = 3.4 x 100/2.39= 142.3
pbc= 104 D/T=22.5
EM= 13,000 / 104 = 125
Max Em = 153
Therefore Adopt

T4 as T3P
age 107



 
 
  
 
Ward: Bury East - Redvales Item   07 

 
Applicant:  Bury MBC - Architectural Services 
 
Location: Redvales Childrens Centre, Dorset Drive, Bury, BL9 9DN 

 
Proposal: Removal of 1 no. storage container, retention of 1 no. storage container and 

relocation of 1 no. storage container 
 
Application Ref:   60129/Full Target Date:  08/07/2016 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application relates to a community facility which operates as a children's centre and 
which is sited on land allocated as Protected Recreation Provision in the Urban Area, as 
defined in the Bury UDP Policy RT1/1.   There are associated outdoor amenity and play 
areas which are bounded by paladin fencing around the site, and  2 car parks for staff and 
visitors, one to the east behind houses on Alfred Street, and one to the south west off 
Dorset Drive.   
 
The centre is located within a predominantly residential area at the end of a cul de sac 
which serves houses on Dorset Drive, with land directly to the north and west also 
designated as Protected Recreation,  comprising a public park, pathways and playground 
areas. There are houses to the north of the site beyond the recreation area which are in an 
elevated position.  
 
The application involves 3 existing storage containers which are sited at the centre. 
Containers 2 and 3 (6m x 2.4m x 2.6m) are located in the eastern car park and a smaller 
container (container 1 2.4m x 2.4m x 2.6m) is next to the north elevation of the building 
adjacent to this car park.   
 
It is proposed to relocate container 1 to the west of the centre within the existing enclosed 
play area, remove container 2 and retain container 3 in the car park.    
 
Relevant Planning History 
None relevant 
 
Publicity 
Fifty four letters sent on 19/5/2016 to addresses at Grundy Lane, Rutland Drive, Rhiwlas 
Drive, Prestbury Close, Dorset Drive, Topham Street, Alfred Street.  
 
One letter of objection received from No 34 Dorset Drive raising the following issues: 
• Confused as to why the containers need to be moved from the back of the building 

(affect no one) to the front on the green where kids play football etc, and would be right 
outside my house; 

• Already noise from constant kicking of footballs against the centre shutters until all hours 
which disturbs children's sleep, without putting 2 containers under the window; 

• The containers would be used as football nets creating noise; 
• Makes no sense to move them as they are already accessible to staff and out of the 

way; 
• Feels like it is intended to expand the back car park, but no one uses it and it will not 

stop on street parking. 
 
Letter sent on 1/6/2016 to inform residents of an amendment of the description proposal. 

Page 108



 
The objector has been informed of the Planing Control Committee meeting.   
 
Consultations 
None applicable. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Siting - Container 1 would be re-sited within the play area near to the centre's entrance.  
There is existing play equipment in this area and the container would not be dissimilar in 
size to some of the structures.  It would be fully contained within the site boundary and 
enclosed by a paladin boundary fence.  Whilst visible from outside the site, it is considered 
that due to the size and position, the relocation of container 1 would not be significantly 
harmful within its wider setting. 
 
Container 3 would remain in situ adjacent to the rear boundary of the site car park.  It is 
fully screened from the south by mature tree planting and the majority of the container 
screened by a close boarded timber fence to the east.  The container is visible from the car 
park entrance.  However, given it's position in the far corner of the site, and together with 
the removal of container 2,  it is considered container 3 is acceptable in this location.     
 
As such, the relocation and retention of 2 containers at the centre is considered to be 
acceptable, and would comply with UDP Policies CF1/1 and EN1/2.  
 
Residential amenity - 
Container 1 - The nearest residential properties would be those at the north end of Dorset 
Drive.   
 
The side gable of Nos 27 and 29 faces the site.  There are no habitable room windows 
which would overlook this area and at 28m away, these properties are considered not to be 
adversely affected. 
 
No 34 has an oblique relationship to the site and would not directly overlook the position of 
the proposed container.  There would be a distance of 26m from this house to the 
container, which would be fully enclosed within the confines of the boundary fence, and 
accessible only by the centre's staff.  It would be used for storage purposes only and would 
be the only container within this area.  
 
As such, it is considered the siting of container 1 would not have a detrimental impact to the 
amenity of any dwellings in the area, and woud therefore comply with CF1/1 and EN1/2.  
 
Container 3 - This is already in situ, and has been for a number of years.  It is located 
directly behind dwellings on Alfred Street and would be visible from the upper floors of the  
3 storey apartment building to the north east.  The view of the container is partly screened 
from these properties by the close boarded timber fence which runs along the boundary, 

Page 109



and is approximately 18m from the rear of the apartments and 11m from the rear elevation 
of No 168. 
 
There is no recent record of any complaints received from these properties and no 
objections received as a result of this application. 
 
As such, given the distance from these properties and the intervening boundary treatment, 
the retention of container 3 is considered to be acceptable and would comply with UDP 
Policies EN1/2 and CF1/1.  
 
Response to objector  
• The centre serves a number of different user groups, and container 1 would be re-sited 

to serve specific users of the building.  
• There would only be one container located in the play area, and not two as suggested 

by the objector. 
• There are no proposals within this planning application to expand the car park.  
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered KB REDVALES 01PLAN and the 

development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161 
253-5320

Page 110



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 60129

Redvales Childrens Centre
Dorset Drive
Bury



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

LB

129

89

85
87

86
90

88

56

2 to 12

19
2

113
121

101
111

18
4

123

17
8

13
4

12
4

12
6

13
6

16
8

13
2

15

13
8

1 6
6

13

65

55
31

18
6
56

66
64 63

67

68

41

150

52

11

Community Centre

15
17

34

29

36

38

35
33

27

42
45

49 47
43

51

48

26 28

65

29

33

Playground

DURHAM

DRIVE

TOPHAM

STREET

G
R
U
N
D
Y
 L

A
N
E

81.7m

80.4m

Viewpoints

5

4
2

3 1

Page 111



60129 

 

Photo 1

 

Photo 2

 

Page 112



60129 

 

Photo 3

 

Photo 4

 

Page 113



60129 

 

Photo 5

 

Page 114



Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117

Agenda Item 4a



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
28 June 2016 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
DELEGATED DECISIONS 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
DAVID MARNO 

  
 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
The report lists: 
Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to the note the report 
and appendices 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?  Yes   

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 
regarding risk management 

 
Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: 

 
N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
No  
 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 
 
 

 
Wards Affected: 

 
All listed 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
N/A 

 

Agenda 
Item 

 
REPORT FOR DECISION 

5 

Page 125

Agenda Item 5



TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  
 
 

   

    
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
This is a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning 
decisions made by the officers of the Council.  
 
2.0 CONCLUSION  
 
That the item be noted. 
 
 
 
List of Background Papers:-None 
 
Contact Details:- 
 
David Marno, Head of Development Management  
Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation 
3 Knowsley Place 
Bury BL9 0EJ 
 
Tel: 0161 253 5291 
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 
  
 
 

Page 126

mailto:d.marno@bury.gov.uk


Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers 
Between  and  16/05/2016 19/06/2016 

Bury East Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 31/05/2016 

Retrospective application for change of use of third floor of mill into a gaming venue 

Third Floor, Ela Mill, Cork Street, Bury, BL9 7BW 
FUL App. Type: 59745 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/06/2016 

Automatic number plate recognition camera - camera mounted on a 6 metre high column 
(retrospective) 

DW Sports, Angouleme Way, Bury, BL9 0BT 
FUL App. Type: 59794 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/06/2016 

Retention of 2 no. automatic number plate recognition cameras mounted on 6 metre high 
columns 

Moorgate Retail Park, Bury, BL9 7AQ 
FUL App. Type: 59799 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Change of use from office to restaurant (Class A3) with extractor flue at rear 

22 Market Street, Bury, BL9 0AJ 
FUL App. Type: 59904 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Change of use of first floor from Sui Generis to call centre (Class B1a) 

5 Broad Street, Bury, BL9 0DA 
FUL App. Type: 59908 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 13/06/2016 

Retrospective application to subdivide the ground floor into two shops and elevational 
alterations to  create two shop fronts 

George Hotel, Market Street, Bury, BL9 0BL 
FUL App. Type: 59918 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Split Decision 19/05/2016 

Proposal A : Dormer at rear; part single storey / part two storey extension at rear and single 
storey extension at rear 
 
Proposal B: Dormer at front 

63 Millett Street, Bury, BL9 0JB 
FUL App. Type: 59958 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 08/06/2016 

Installation of glazed screen below external canopy to create additional indoor seating and 
glazed wind-breaker to external seating area 

Side of 32 Princess Parade, Bury, BL9 0QL 
FUL App. Type: 59981 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Siting temporary single storey modular classroom within enclosed courtyard for 5 years 

East Ward County Primary School, Willow Street, Bury, BL9 7QZ 
REG3 App. Type: 59990 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 1 of 14 

Page 127



Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Listed building consent for change of use of first floor from Sui Generis to research and 
development call centre (Class B1a) 

5 Broad Street, Bury, BL9 0DA 
LBC App. Type: 60000 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Single storey rear extension 

12 Cook Street, Bury, BL9 0RP 
FUL App. Type: 60011 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side / rear 

13 Second Avenue, Bury, BL9 7RL 
FUL App. Type: 60029 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/06/2016 

Single storey porch extension to main entrance at front; Single storey extension at front to 
form additional toilet facilities and office space; Single storey extension to main hall at rear 

St Thomas Primary School, Pimhole Road, Bury, BL9 7EY 
FUL App. Type: 60050 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/06/2016 

Single storey extension at rear with balcony and steps to garden level 

10 Fourth Avenue, Bury, BL9 7RH 
FUL App. Type: 60068 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 31/05/2016 

Single storey extension at rear 

21 Maxwell Street, Bury, BL9 7QA 
FUL App. Type: 60079 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 08/06/2016 

Variation of condition no.2 of planning permission 91/25490 from "The petrol filling station 
shall be closed between 2200 hrs & 0700 hrs every day" to "The permitted opening hours of 
the petrol filling station shall be 06.00 - 23.00. The car wash facility operating hours shall be 
08.00 - 21.00". 

Hooley Bridge Service Station, 609-621 Rochdale Old Road, Bury, BL9 7TL 
FUL App. Type: 60093 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Raise No Objection 01/06/2016 

Article 18 consultation from Rochdale Council (ref.16/00311/FUL) for change of use of the 
ground floor to hairdressers (Class A1) 

22/24 Exchange Building, Heap Bridge, Bury New Road, Heywood, BL9 7HR 
CON App. Type: 60130 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Raise No Objection 09/06/2016 

Article 18 consultation from Rochdale Council (ref. 16/00579/FUL) for erection of detached 
bungalow 

Land at rear of 33a Waterfold Lane, Bury, BL9 7JY 
CON App. Type: 60164 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury East - Moorside Ward: 

17/06/2016 Page 2 of 14 

Page 128



Approve with Conditions 02/06/2016 

Erection of VW car showroom with external display, compound and customer parking across 
two levels including workshop and valeting facilities 

Land at Chamberhall Business Park, Chamberhall Green, Harvard Road, Bury, BL9 0AP 
FUL App. Type: 59673 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 07/06/2016 

Single storey extension at rear (resubmission) 

270 Hornby Street, Bury, BL9 5DS 
FUL App. Type: 60017 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 07/06/2016 

External alterations including existing automatic doors to be converted to window and 
Customer exit to be also used as customer entrance 

Wickes Building Supplies Ltd, Moor Street, Bury, BL9 5AQ 
FUL App. Type: 60036 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury East - Redvales Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 17/05/2016 

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear and new side boundary wall 
(existing) 

97 Wellington Road, Bury, BL9 9AG 
FUL App. Type: 59856 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/05/2016 

Replacement of section of existing boundary fencing (rear of Wellfield Close) with 3.3 metre 
high black paladin fencing 

Greenfields, Dumers Lane, Bury, BL9 9UT 
FUL App. Type: 59861 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Variation of condition no. 2 (approved plans) of planning permission 57934 to amend the 
proposed entrance porch roof 

Bury Baptist Church, 114 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 0TH 
FUL App. Type: 59941 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Change of use of ground floor from residential (Class C3) to 2 no. shop units (Class A1); single 
storey extension and access ramp at front; Alterations to windows/doors to side elevations 
(Renewal of planning permission 56061) 

1 Parkhills Road, Bury, BL9 9AU 
FUL App. Type: 59952 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 24/05/2016 

Prior notification of proposed single storey extension at rear 

57 Dorset Drive, Bury, BL9 9DN 
GPDE App. Type: 60019 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 19/05/2016 

Prior notification for proposed single storey extension at rear 

31 Gigg Lane, Bury, BL9 9HP 
GPDE App. Type: 60051 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 3 of 14 

Page 129



Approve with Conditions 16/06/2016 

First floor/two storey extension at rear; First floor extension at side; Loft conversion with rear 
dormers 

90 Brecon Drive, Bury, BL9 9LE 
FUL App. Type: 60054 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 08/06/2016 

Dormer at front 

9 Hampshire Close, Bury, BL9 9EZ 
FUL App. Type: 60106 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Single storey extension at rear 

27 Inman Street, Bury, BL9 0TP 
FUL App. Type: 60109 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 08/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at side/rear 

109 Radcliffe Road, Bury, BL9 9LD 
FUL App. Type: 60122 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury West - Church Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Single storey rear extension and two storey side extension 

16 Bourneville Drive, Bury, BL8 2UF 
FUL App. Type: 59925 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Single storey extension at side and rear (resubmission) 

1 Clayton Close, Bury, BL8 2TE 
FUL App. Type: 59998 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 27/05/2016 

Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single storey rear extension 

9 Heapy Close, Bury, BL8 2HW 
FUL App. Type: 60074 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury West - Elton Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Single storey family annexe in rear garden 

39 Holbeach Close, Bury, BL8 1XA 
FUL App. Type: 59894 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 07/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side/rear with balcony at front; Front porch; Single storey extensions 
at rear; Alterations to boundary wall/gates and widening of existing driveway with new 
vehicular access 

11 Cleadon Drive South, Bury, BL8 1EJ 
FUL App. Type: 59942 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 4 of 14 

Page 130



Refused 27/05/2016 

Two storey rear extension and rear dormer 

104 Walshaw Road, Bury, BL8 1LY 
FUL App. Type: 59973 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 03/06/2016 

Two storey side extension 

14 Westcombe Drive, Bury, BL8 1DN 
FUL App. Type: 60023 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

North Manor Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Single storey rear extension 

13 Brookfield Road, Bury, BL9 5LA 
FUL App. Type: 59966 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Variation of condition no. 2 of planning permission 59326 (demolition of existing conservatory, 
two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear) - Match materials to external 
finish 

17 Aviemore Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9WA 
FUL App. Type: 60018 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side with juliet balcony at rear and single storey extension at side; 
External alterations 

1 Summerdale Drive, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9XF 
FUL App. Type: 60038 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Single storey front extension 

2 Thames Close, Bury, BL9 6QX 
FUL App. Type: 60146 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prestwich - Holyrood Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Two storey extension at side and single storey rear extension at rear to incorporate existing 
outbuilding; Front porch/single storey extension; Loft conversion with rear dormer 
(resubmission) 

26 Brooklawn Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2GS 
FUL App. Type: 60013 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 20/05/2016 

Single storey front extension 

19 Raglan Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6US 
FUL App. Type: 60015 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Two storey side and single storey rear extension 

23 St Margarets Close, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2LY 
FUL App. Type: 60028 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 5 of 14 

Page 131



Approve with Conditions 13/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side and rear with single storey rear element 

2 Newlands Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3BU 
FUL App. Type: 60041 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 08/06/2016 

Single storey rear extension and dormer loft conversion 

19 Nursery Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3DU 
FUL App. Type: 60080 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 03/06/2016 

Lawful development certificate for proposed extension and modification of storm porch at front 

17 Maple Grove, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3DQ 
LDCP App. Type: 60088 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/06/2016 

Single storey extension at front/two storey extension at side 

48 Derby Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6TN 
FUL App. Type: 60090 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 09/06/2016 

Prior notification of proposed single storey extension at rear 

190 Heywood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1LD 
GPDE App. Type: 60096 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prestwich - Sedgley Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Two and single storey extensions at front/side/rear; Loft conversion with dormers at front and 
rear; Basement conversion with lightwell at rear (revised scheme) 

1 East Meade, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JJ 
FUL App. Type: 59939 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 26/05/2016 

Single storey and basement extension at rear with steps to garden level 

14 Richmond Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0NA 
FUL App. Type: 59946 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Two storey extension at side/front and front porch; Two storey/first floor extension at 
side/rear; Roof extension with dormers at front and rear 

12 Danesway, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0FS 
FUL App. Type: 59948 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/05/2016 

Single storey extension at front/side 

2 Dovedale Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BU 
FUL App. Type: 59954 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Two storey extensions to side and rear 

3 West Meade, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JD 
FUL App. Type: 59962 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 6 of 14 

Page 132



Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Two storey extension at side/rear and first floor extension at rear 

12 Canterbury Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0HY 
FUL App. Type: 59978 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 23/05/2016 

Single storey succah extension at rear 

1 Parksway, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JE 
FUL App. Type: 59980 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 16/06/2016 

Single storey extension at side and conservatory at rear. 

46 Meade Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DJ 
FUL App. Type: 60031 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 08/06/2016 

Single storey rear extension 

69 Kings Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0LQ 
FUL App. Type: 60037 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Single storey extension at side and rear 

109 Kings Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JS 
FUL App. Type: 60125 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prestwich - St Mary's Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 26/05/2016 

Variation of Condition 18 of planning permission 47336  'details of boundary wall running 
along the rear of 32 to 36 Church Lane including the siting, materials, height and copings shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority' to permit the erection 
of an alternative boundary treatment comprising an 2.1m high timber panel and concrete post 
fence 

Rear of 32-36 Church Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1AJ 
FUL App. Type: 59831 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Two storey extension at side with demoltion of existing garage and widening of driveway 

52 Ruskin Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GL 
FUL App. Type: 59917 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

1 no. non-illuminated free standing information board 

Land at Bury New Road (adjacent 5-21 The Coppice), Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1AW 
ADV App. Type: 59949 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

2 no. non-illuminated free-standing information boards 

Grass verge opposite 530/532 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3BD 
ADV App. Type: 59950 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 7 of 14 

Page 133



Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Two storey extension at side 

11 Prestwich Hills, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PY 
FUL App. Type: 59960 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Two storey extension to side/rear and single storey rear extension 

60 Chapel Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9SR 
FUL App. Type: 59968 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Internally illuminated fascia signs 

554-556 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3BD 
ADV App. Type: 59975 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Two storey side extension 

520 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3AN 
FUL App. Type: 59994 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at front 

10 Swarbrick Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TD 
FUL App. Type: 59995 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required and Granted 03/06/2016 

Prior approval for proposed change of use from shop (A1) to cafe/restaurant (A3) 

255 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PB 
P3CPA App. Type: 60001 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Alterations to doors/windows to front and rear elevations: Addition of 6 no. 
air-conditioning/chiller plant units to right side elevation 

468 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1AX 
FUL App. Type: 60006 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Change of use from shop (Class A1) to cafe (Class A3); Installation of flue at rear and 
alterations to front elevation 

11 Longfield Centre, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1AY 
FUL App. Type: 60063 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Radcliffe - East Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 07/06/2016 

Alterations to shop front to include replacement of window with door/window to form new 
entrance 

23 Blackburn Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1NN 
FUL App. Type: 59999 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Two storey side extension & single storey front extension 

41 Shetland Way, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4UH 
FUL App. Type: 60087 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 8 of 14 

Page 134



Radcliffe - North Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Retrospective application for engineering operation - Hardstanding/reconstruction of loading 
area; Reconstruction of drains; topsoiling to prevent flooding and reconstruction of access 
track around mill buildings 

Moorside Mill, Church Street, Ainsworth, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 5RD 
FUL App. Type: 59911 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

New 2.4m high paladin fencing and gates 

Genesis House Stopes Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL3 1NP 
FUL App. Type: 59991 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/06/2016 

Single storey extension at rear 

24 Ashcombe Drive, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3NL 
FUL App. Type: 60053 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 13/06/2016 

Demolition of existing conservatory to be replaced with a single storey extension to side and 
rear. 

16 Plymouth Grove, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3WU 
FUL App. Type: 60076 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Radcliffe - West Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 03/06/2016 

4 no. internally illuminated signs; 1 no. non illuminated fascia sign; 59 no. replacement store 
signs 

Asda Stores Ltd, Pilkington Way, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3DA 
ADV App. Type: 59782 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Single storey extension at rear (retrospective) 

5 Black Moss Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3XH 
FUL App. Type: 59935 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Loft conversion incorporating front and rear dormers. 

3 North Woodley, Stand Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1JB 
FUL App. Type: 59987 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Single storey extension at front with garage conversion 

16 Woodvale Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1UA 
FUL App. Type: 59993 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Single storey extension at rear and erection of front porch (amended scheme) 

1 Willowbank, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1YW 
FUL App. Type: 60035 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington Ward: 

17/06/2016 Page 9 of 14 

Page 135



Approve with Conditions 23/05/2016 

Single storey extension at rear 

2 Brownhills Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3LF 
FUL App. Type: 59961 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

First floor extension at front and single storey side extension with balcony/veranda 

Four Acre Farm, Harwood Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3PT 
FUL App. Type: 59963 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Two storey side extension 

Smithy Cottage, 4 Watling Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QS 
FUL App. Type: 60016 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 07/06/2016 

Replacement garage at side 

36 Hilda Avenue, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3JE 
FUL App. Type: 60067 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 16/05/2016 

Replacement windows to front and rear and replacement doors to rear (retrospective) 

87 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9HY 
FUL App. Type: 59857 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 24/05/2016 

Erection of fence (retrospective) 

Irwell Street Metals, Kenyon Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0AB 
FUL App. Type: 59924 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Extension to existing dormer at front 

12A Ringwood Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9PW 
FUL App. Type: 59933 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 13/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side and extension to existing front dormer; Widening of driveway 
with new vehicular access 

12 Coniston Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9YE 
FUL App. Type: 59944 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 26/05/2016 

Retrospective application for agricultural building for housing livestock 

Twine Valley Farm, Church Road, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0EH 
FUL App. Type: 59947 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 03/06/2016 

Lawful development certificate for proposed replacement of flat roof with pitched roof 

72 Victoria Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9EB 
LDCP App. Type: 59977 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 10 of 
 

Page 136



Approve with Conditions 01/06/2016 

Erection of 1 no. internally static illuminated hanging sign 

Aldi Store, 4 Railway Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9AL 
ADV App. Type: 59979 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 27/05/2016 

1 No. internally illuminated ATM surround 

Morrisons Supermarket, King Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9AA 
ADV App. Type: 59982 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 13/06/2016 

Two storey/single storey side/rear extensions & remodelling of existing house. 

Heatherslade, Green Acre Close, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0HD 
FUL App. Type: 60003 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Raise ridge height of roof with roof extension at rear and new dormer at front; Single storey 
extension at rear; Alterations to doors/windows to side elevation 

5 Windermere Drive, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9YB 
FUL App. Type: 60014 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Single storey extension at rear 

23 Smithills Hall Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9FF 
FUL App. Type: 60044 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Lawful Development 19/05/2016 

Certificate of lawfulness for proposed reinstatement of windows and doors in basement; Door 
in former window position and window in former door position 

65 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9HY 
LDCP App. Type: 60048 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 13/06/2016 

Single storey extension at front/side and porch at front 

5 Nuttall Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9LQ 
FUL App. Type: 60059 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side; Raised decking at rear with steps to garden level 

361 Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9QZ 
FUL App. Type: 60066 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/06/2016 

Single storey extension at rear 

89 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9HY 
FUL App. Type: 60077 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 09/06/2016 

Prior notification for proposed single storey extension at rear 

45 Lancaster Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9QA 
GPDE App. Type: 60116 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 11 of 
 

Page 137



Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Single storey extension to detached garage 

6 Booth Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3BU 
FUL App. Type: 60117 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Change hip roof to gable roof; Two storey side extension; dormers at rear and side; removal of 
front garden wall and block paving area for additional parking (resubmission) 

44 Kenmore Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8FS 
FUL App. Type: 59903 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Two storey extension at side 

25 Brightwater Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8SE 
FUL App. Type: 60060 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Repositioning of existing storage container and new connecting canopy (open ended) between 
buildings. 

Whitefield County Primary School, Victoria Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6DP 
FUL App. Type: 60135 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Two storey extension at rear (Retrospective) 

Twelve Trees, Clough Grove, Radcliffe, Manchester, M45 7RU 
FUL App. Type: 59921 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 24/05/2016 

Two storey side extension; first floor extension and alteration to existing roof at side and 
canopy at front 

44 Ringley Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LR 
FUL App. Type: 59965 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Single storey rear extension 

19 Wentworth Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7GQ 
FUL App. Type: 59986 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/05/2016 

Variation of conditions nos.4 and 5 of approved planning application 59238 - To allow for the 
insertion of an additional obscure glazed escape window to the first floor north west facing 
elevation, facing the rear of 5 Bleakley Street 

5 Bleakley Street, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7GU 
FUL App. Type: 59988 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/05/2016 

Single storey rear extension 

Charlecote, Cromwell Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M45 7RS 
FUL App. Type: 60024 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 12 of 
 

Page 138



Approve with Conditions 03/06/2016 

Erection of wall at rear of property 3050mm high 

8 Sunningdale Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7GW 
FUL App. Type: 60047 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/06/2016 

Single storey rear extension 

60 Park Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7QA 
FUL App. Type: 60073 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 08/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear 

13 Old Hall Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7QW 
FUL App. Type: 60121 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Ward: 

Refused 24/05/2016 

First floor rear extension 

4 Blundell Close, Bury, BL9 8LH 
FUL App. Type: 59972 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 23/05/2016 

Reconstruction of single storey extension at side/rear with additional window to rear and 
alterations to front elevation (revised scheme) 

18 Bowlee Close, Bury, BL9 8NQ 
FUL App. Type: 59985 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Single storey extension at side and rear 

16 Brookdene Road, Bury, BL9 8ND 
FUL App. Type: 60042 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 14/06/2016 

Single storey side extension, conversion of garage with new pitched roof and alterations to 
porch 

6 Leeds Close, Bury, BL9 8LD 
FUL App. Type: 60055 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side 

8 Whittle Brook Close, Bury, BL9 8NX 
FUL App. Type: 60058 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/06/2016 

Two storey extension at side/rear and front porch 

10 Mere Close, Bury, BL9 8NY 
FUL App. Type: 60089 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Raise No Objection 01/06/2016 

Article 18 consultation from Rochdale Council (ref.16/00455/FUL) for the erection of detached 
building for use as a garage and equipment store (resubmission of 15/00641/FUL) 

The Barn, The Boskins, Moss Hall Road, Heywood, OL10 2RE 
CON App. Type: 60101 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

17/06/2016 Page 13 of 
 

Page 139



 
 122  Total Number of Applications Decided: 

17/06/2016 Page 14 of 
 

Page 140



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
28 June 2016 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
PLANNING APPEALS 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
DAVID MARNO 

  
 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
Planning Appeals: 

- Lodged 
- Determined 

 
Enforcement Appeals 

- None to report 
 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to the note the report 
and appendices 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?  Yes   

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 
regarding risk management 

 
Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: 

 
N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
No  
 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 
 
 

  

Agenda 
Item 

 
REPORT FOR DECISION 

6 

Page 141

Agenda Item 6



Wards Affected: All listed 
 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
N/A 

 
TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  
 
 

   

    
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against 
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that 
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.  
 
Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be 
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that 
were upheld. 
 
2.0 CONCLUSION  
 
That the item be noted. 
 
 
List of Background Papers:-  
 
Contact Details:- 
David Marno, Head of Development Management 
Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation, 
3 Knowsley Place ,Bury     BL9 0EJ 
Tel: 0161 253 5291  
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 

Page 142

mailto:d.marno@bury.gov.uk


 

Planning Appeals Lodged  
 between 16/05/2016 and 19/06/2016 

Proposal 

Sheepgate Farm Cottage, Bradshaw Road, Walshaw, Bury, BL8 3PL Location 

Conversion and extension of existing garage/store to form specially adapted care 
provision accommodation for annexe to Sheepgate Farm Cottage 

Applicant: 

Appeal lodged: 03/06/2016  

Miss Justine Molyneux 

Decision level: DEL 
Recommended Decision: Refuse 

Appeal Type: Written Representations 
Application No.: 59402/FUL 

Proposal 

Twine Valley Farm, Church Road, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0EH Location 

Retrospective application for agricultural building for housing livestock 

Applicant: 

Appeal lodged: 09/06/2016  

SR and JR Brown Ltd 

Decision level: DEL 
Recommended Decision: Refuse 

Appeal Type: Written Representations 
Application No.: 59947/FUL 

Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 2 

Page 143



 
Planning Appeals Decided  

 between 16/05/2016 and 19/06/2016 

Proposal: 

609-621 Rochdale Old Road, Bury, BL9 7TL Location: 
A: 2 No. internally illuminated canopy fascia signs (Signs A & B); 6.5m high 
double sided internally illuminated free standing sign (retrospective) 
B: 1 No. non illuminated canopy fascia sign (Sign C) (Resubmission of application 
59312) 

Applicant: 

Date: 18/05/2016 

Mr Muhammed Mir 

Decision level: COM 
Recommended Decision: Approve with Conditions Appeal type: Written Representations 

Application No.: 59535/ADV Appeal Decision: Allowed 

Page 144



  

 

  
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 4 May 2016 

by Beverley Doward  BSc BTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date: 18 May 2016 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/T4210/Z/16/3143929 
Hooley Bridge Service Station, 609 Rochdale Old Road, Bury, BL9 7TL 

 The appeal is made under Regulation 17 of the Town and Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 against a refusal to grant express consent. 

 The appeal is made by Mr Muhammed Mir against the decision of Bury Metropolitan 
Borough Council. 

 The application Ref 59535, dated 3 December 2015, was refused by notice dated        
20 January 2016. 

 The advertisement proposed is described as “Non illuminated forecourt fascia”. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is allowed and express consent is granted for the display of            
1 No. non illuminated canopy fascia sign (Sign C) as applied for.  The consent 
is for five years from the date of this decision and is subject to the five 
standard conditions set out in the Regulations.   

Procedural Matters 

2. The description of the advertisement in the heading above is taken from the 
application form.  The Council’s decision notice indicates that the application for 
consent related to 2 No. internally illuminated canopy fascia signs (Signs A and 
B); 1 No. non illuminated canopy fascia sign (Sign C); and a 6.5m high double 
sided internally illuminated free standing sign.  The Council has issued a split 
decision notice, granting express consent for Signs A and B and the 6.5m high 
double sided internally illuminated free standing sign but refusing express 
consent for Sign C.  I shall refer only to sign C for which consent was refused in 
reaching my decision.  

3. I have used the description of Sign C given on the Council’s decision notice in 
my formal decision. 

Main Issue 

4. The main issue is the effect on the visual amenity of the surrounding area. 

Reasons 

5. The appeal site is a petrol filling station on Rochdale Old Road, a busy main 
road.  There is also a convenience store and car washing facility on the site.  
The forecourt of the petrol filling station is covered by a canopy.  There are 
residential properties on either side of the petrol filling station on Rochdale Old 
Road and to the rear on Winifred Avenue.  The rear of the site borders the rear 
gardens of Nos 4–10 Winifred Avenue.     

Page 145



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/Z/16/3143929 
 

 
                                                                            2 

6. Sign C has been installed on the eastern side elevation of the canopy about 
4.6m above ground level.  It is a non illuminated fascia sign of a simple design 
with white lettering on a red and black background.  The design is similar to 
the fascia signs on the front and western side elevation of the canopy, albeit 
those signs are illuminated.  The sign is not overly large and although visible 
from Rochdale Old Road and the rear of Nos 8 and 10 Winifred Avenue it does 
not appear visually intrusive, being set sufficiently far from the adjacent 
dwellings so as not to appear unduly dominant.  I note that, because the sign 
was originally installed with illumination, it has not been possible to remove the 
wiring and the lamps although the circuit has been disabled to ensure that the 
illumination cannot be inadvertently switched on.  In any event, the proposal is 
for a non illuminated canopy fascia sign.  If Sign C was, at some time in the 
future, to be illuminated this would be in breach of the consent which could 
duly be enforced.  

7. To conclude therefore Sign C is not harmful to the visual amenity of the area.  
The Council refers to policy EN1/9 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 
which it considers to be relevant to this appeal.  However, powers under 
Regulations to control advertisements may be exercised only in the interests of 
amenity and public safety, taking account of any material factors.  In my 
determination of this appeal the Council’s policy has not therefore been 
decisive, but is a material consideration.  The sign complies with policy EN1/9 
of the UDP which seeks to ensure that advertisements are controlled in the 
interests of amenity and public safety. 

8. For the reasons set out above and having regard to all other matters raised, I 
conclude that the appeal should be allowed.  

Beverley Doward 

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 146



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

DECISION OF: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

DATE: 28 JUNE 2016 

SUBJECT: SECTION 106 OBLIGATIONS 

REPORT FROM: DEVELOPMENT MANAGER 
CONTACT OFFICER: FRAN SMITH 
  

TYPE OF DECISION: COUNCIL  

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain  

SUMMARY: The report outlines the contributions made by S106 
obligations since 1 April 2015 and summarises 
agreements that are outstanding. 

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

The Committee is recommended to note the report. 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?  N/A  

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 
regarding risk management           N/A 

Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: N/A 

Equality/Diversity implications: N/A 

Considered by Monitoring Officer: N/A 

Wards Affected: ALL 

Scrutiny Interest: N/A 
 
TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  
 
 

   

    

Agenda  
Item        7      

 
REPORT FOR DECISION 

Page 147

Agenda Item 7



 
1.0 Background 
 
1.1 Section 106 (s106) planning obligations  are legal documents between the 

Local Planning Authority and the developer / landowner which include 
obligations on the landowner/developer that are essential to allow the granting 
of planning permission in certain circumstances. These obligations are then 
secured as a local land charge on any successive land owner of the application 
site, should the site be sold on and developed by someone else. 

 
1.2 The details of the obligations are controlled by statute and must pass the 

following three tests if they are to be considered when determining an 
application for planning permission: 
a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
b) directly related to the development; and 
c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 
1.3 Obligations often involve the payment of financial contributions, for example 

recreation contributions, compensation for the loss of employment land and 
contributions towards ecological enhancements. On receipt by the Council, 
these contributions are effectively held on trust by the Council, to be spent in 
accordance with the terms of the individual s106s. S106 planning obligations  
signed after 6 April 2015 also have to identify which specific infrastructure 
project the contribution will be spent on and the Council can only enter into a 
maximum of five obligations for each individual infrastructure project. 
 

1.4 Section 106 Agreements may also include non-financial obligations such as 
provision of on-site affordable housing, access paths or in some cases the 
transfer of land. 

 
1.5 This report outlines the contributions provided by S106 obligations in the 12 

months from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 and identifies those Agreements 
where obligations are outstanding and those where triggers have not yet been 
reached. 

 
 
2.0 Schemes Provided and Obligations Complied With 
 
2.1 A list of schemes provided as a result of financial contributions is attached to 

this report at Appendix A, together with a list of contributions received and 
obligations complied with between 1 April 2015 and 31st March 2016 at 
Appendix B.  

 
2.2 Table 1 below identifies contributions received in the twelve months from 1 

April 2015 to 31st March 2016, and unspent contributions as at 31st March 
2016.  

 
2.3 Over the twelve month period from 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 a total of 

£1,341,272.37 has been collected from 17 separate sites. The overall income 
and expenditure is broken down in Table 1 overleaf. 

 
2.4 The total amount of s106 contributions held by the Council as of 31 March 2016 

is also included in the table below, and stands at £4,048,657.98. It is 
important to note that a time lag between receipt and expenditure of 
contributions is to be expected, as funds have to be allocated to specific 
schemes , and in some cases contributions are for the long term maintenance 
of land that has been or is awaiting transfer to the Council.  

 Page 148



2.5 Since 1 April 2016 a further £48,382.96 has been received, which breaks 
down as £23,382.96 of recreation contributions from two sites and £25,000 for 
the Olives Brook Link contribution. These are excluded from the table below, 
but are detailed in Appendix B and will be added to the amount received and 
total balance in the next S106 monitoring report. 

 
Table 1: S106 income, expenditure and unspent balance 
 
Expenditure 
type 

Contributions 
received 1 April 
2015 to 31 
March 2016 

Total amount 
spent 1 April 
2015 to 31 
March 2016 

Total value of 
unspent 
contributions as 
at 31 March 
2016 

Comments 

Recreation 
enhancement £736,197.84 £200,787.56 £1,135,050.80 

All allocated 
with the 
exception of 
contributions 
paid upfront 
that can’t be 
allocated until 
commencement 
of development 
and £59,332.66 
awaiting 
allocation.  
 
The balance 
includes 
£7,427.68 
interest accrued 
in 2015/16. 
 
£3,421.33 has 
been refunded 
for Carr Bank 
Avenue, 
deducted from 
the total 
balance. 

Recreation 
maintenance - - £150,733.77 

All allocated to 
maintenance of 
transferred land. 
The balance 
includes interest 
earned, 
£1,117.92 in 
2015/16. 

Local Nature 
Reserves - £33,218.06 £102,035.95 All allocated. 

Roch Valley 
Greenway 
maintenance 
fund & repair 
and 
maintenance 
of goyt 

- - £130,823.00 Awaiting 
transfer of land.  

Page 149



Shrewsbury 
House 
Woodland 
contribution 

- - £3,000.00 

To be used to 
improve and 
enhance existing 
woodland in the 
locality of 
Shrewsbury 
House, 
Prestwich. Tree 
removal and 
wild flower 
planting work 
have 
commenced but 
the costs have 
not yet been 
drawn down 
from the S106 
account. 

Public art - £27,050.00 £165,337.74 

The majority of 
expenditure was 
on the 
emergency 
meadow 
installation by 
Hilary Jack in 
Kirklees Valley. 
£4000 was 
spent on project 
management 
and installation 
costs for the 
Lawrence 
Weiner 
exhibition in the 
Bury Sculpture 
Centre.  A 
further £800 has 
been spent on 
design and 
research for Liz 
West’s public 
light work which 
is proposed as 
part of the Met 
refurbishment.   
The balance 
includes 
£1,263.92 
interest earned 
2015/16. 

Employment 
Land 
Development 
Fund 

£28,150.01 £15,188.63 £840,552.10 

£59,452.83 
allocated, 
remainder ring 
fenced. 

Page 150



Affordable 
Housing £544,924.52 - £1,464,710.77 

£617,000 
allocated to 
bring empty 
properties back 
into use as 
affordable 
housing across 
the Borough, 
remainder ring 
fenced for AH. 

Clerke Street 
study - £9,685.00 £3,374.10 

Contribution to 
a study to 
identify a reuse 
or 
redevelopment 
scheme for land 
at Clerke Street. 
Survey work has 
been completed 
and an area 
study has been 
prepared for the 
area.  

Highways - £33,285.63 £12,495.22 

The 1st of 2 
vehicle activated 
signs at Fletcher 
Bank has been 
provided but the 
contribution has 
not yet been 
drawn down 
from the S106 
contribution. 
£33,285.63 of 
the total of 
£35,780.85 for 
improvements 
to Redford 
Street has now 
been spent. 

Public Realm - - £10,000.00 

Contribution for 
public realm 
improvements 
to improve the 
linkages 
between Aldi 
and Prestwich 
town centre. 
This contribution 
will be part of 
the wider 
Prestwich 
highways 
improvements. 

Page 151



Heat Pipeline 
feasibility 
study 

£32,000.00 £1,455.47 £30,544.53 

Commuted sum 
from Pilsworth 
quarry to 
establish the 
feasibility of 
establishing a 
local heat 
network. 

TOTAL £1,341,272.37 £320,670.35 £4,048,657.98  
 

Please note that the figures in the table above represent a snap shot in time and may 
not be entirely consistent with previous reports as expenditure from S106 contributions 
is confirmed at financial year end and interest is added to the balance. Income figures 
are based on the twelve month period from 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016, and total 
balances are as at 31 March 2016.  

 
 Recreation 
2.6 In the twelve months from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 £200,787.56 of 

recreation contributions has been spent. This has gone towards improvements 
at a number of sites  including: 

 
• Play areas at Kershaw Avenue, Gardener Mount, Peel Brow, Hoyles Park, 

Limefield, Clarence Park, Duke Street, Bradley Fold, Bright Street and 
Whitefield Park; 

• Allotments at Lancaster Avenue and Walnut Avenue; 
• Hollinhurst Park 
• Bailey Street bowling pavilion; 
• St. Mary’s flower park improvements; 
• Ramsbottom skate park; 
• Ramsbottom civic hall garden; 
• Peel Tower improvements; 
• Kirklees Valley maintenance; 
• Kirklees Lodge fencing; 
• Ball zones at Hoyles Park and Tottington; 
• New croquet facility at Whitehead Park; and 
• Contribution to Radcliffe Heritage project (related recreation works). 
 

2.7 In terms of future spending, funding has also been allocated to a number of 
projects across the Borough, including works to play areas, ball zones, new 
outdoor gyms, improvements to parks, and allotments. The priority is to ensure 
that S106 recreation contributions are allocated within the area where the 
development took place.  
 

2.8 Following the introduction of the S106 pooling restrictions it is now necessary 
to identify projects up front when the S106 Agreement is signed. For 
contributions paid from S106 Agreements completed prior to 6 April 2015, the 
recreation project could to some extent be identified after the contribution is 
received. Potential project ideas are identified based on Green Space Strategy, 
the Play Strategy, local priorities, opportunities for maximising the money by 
attracting external funding, etc. Ward Councillors are consulted by email, and 
feedback from them informs the final list of schemes. However, some of the 
contributions received are related to S106 Agreements where the projects are 
identified up front, so there is no scope to reallocate these contributions to 
alternative projects. 
 

2.9 A contribution of £3,421.33 that was paid upfront for 1 dwelling at Carr Bank 
Avenue, Ramsbottom has been refunded because an alternative permission for 
an identical scheme was granted prior to commencement of the original Page 152



application and after the change in the rules, which now prevents the Council 
requiring contributions on new applications for small schemes. 

 
 

Local Nature Reserves 
2.10 From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016, £19,206.44 of S106 contributions from 

developments at Kirklees Bleachworks and Radcliffe Paper Mill has been used, 
as specified in the agreements, to improve the adjacent natural environment. 
This funding has supported the development of Local Nature 
Reserves, including physical works and the time charges of a Project Officer. 
The LNR officer is currently undertaking projects in the Kirklees Valley LNR and 
Chapelfield LNR, Radcliffe.  
 

2.11 In the Kirklees Valley, £9,953.62 of s106 contributions have been spent in 
2015/16 as match funding in a successful application for £120,519.00 of 
Woodland Improvement Grant (WIG) from the Forestry Commission (total 
scheme value £150,648.75, 20% match funded through s106). In 2015/16 the 
WIG Grant and S106 match funding have been spent on access improvement 
and footpath surfacing works, including a kissing gate and new footpath 
through Kingsbury Wood. Spending plans for 2016/17 include access 
improvement works, interpretation, car parking facilities and bench seating 
throughout the valley. 
 

2.12 A further £4,058.00 of S106 contributions has been spent between 1 April 2015 
and 31 March 2016 at Chapelfield LNR on the first stage of entrance 
improvement works at Crompton Close. The intention for 2016/17 is to apply 
for grant funding for a community grow your own and landscaping project, 
which will provide improved access, raised beds, landscaping and fencing. If 
the grant funding application is successful the total cost of this project is 
estimated to be £30,000, of which £6,000 will be S106 match funding. 
 

 
Public Art 

2.13 In relation to provision of public art projects, £27,050.00 has been spent 
between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016.  This is from historical funds already 
collected. 
 

2.14 A proposal by the artist Hillary Jack for a contemporary artwork entitled 
“Emergency Meadow” has been installed in the Kirklees Trail using the Olives 
Paper Mill contribution. £22,250.00 was spent on this project between 1 April 
2015 and 31 March 2016. £4,000 was spent on project management and 
installation costs for the Lawrence Weiner exhibition in the Bury Sculpture 
Centre, delivered as a interpretation and legacy for Mr Weiner’s commissioned 
works in Radcliffe.  A further £800 has been spent to date on design and 
research for Liz West’s public light work which is proposed as part of the Met 
refurbishment. 
 

2.15 Going forward, a proposed commission for a new sculpture by Dutch artist 
Auke de Vries is currently being developed for Burrs Country Park, the 
maquette for which is viewable in the exhibition of his work in the Sculpture 
Centre.  A project for Ramsbottom will shortly begin in consultation with the 
Ramsbottom Township Forum and a project in Radcliffe is proposed to dovetail 
with the new plans for a Civic Centre. 

 
2.16 Following the publication of Government guidance which advised that planning 

obligations should not be sought if they are not considered necessary to make 
a development acceptable in planning terms, financial contributions for public 

Page 153



art are not currently being and will no longer be sought for new planning 
applications. 
 
 
Employment Land Development Fund 

2.17 A total of £221,643.15 of expenditure from the Employment Land Development 
Fund has been agreed by the Executive Director in consultation with the 
Resources and Regulation Portfolio Holder, following recommendations from the 
Strategic Sites Officers Group. As of 1 April 2016, £162,190.32 of the allocated 
funds has been spent.  
 

2.18 The following allocations have been approved from the ELDF: 
 
Project Details Amount 

allocated 
Total spent at 1 
April 2016  
(expenditure for 
past 12 months in 
brackets) 

Chamberhall Site marketing, the removal 
of Japanese Knotweed, tree 
thinning to assist with the 
formation of development 
plots and topographical 
survey work 

£62,461.15 £37,485.88 
 

(£745.85) 

Townside Marketing and site 
investigation work 

£12,000.00 £2,485.85 
 

(£185.85) 
Bradley Fold Contribution to demolition of 

existing dilapidated 
buildings and site 
preparation to create 
development opportunities 
and for site investigations / 
feasibility work 

£127,182.00 £122,218.59 
 

(£14,256.93) 

Invest in 
Bury website 

Website to highlight the 
availability of development 
opportunities for 
employment and sets out a 
range of initiatives that 
promote Bury as a location 
for business investment 

£20,000.00 £0.00 

TOTAL  £221,643.15 £162,190.32 
 

 
Affordable Housing 

2.19 Section 106 Agreements have also required developers to make provision on 
site for affordable housing.  As of 31 March 2016 217 affordable dwellings have 
been identified as completed as a result of planning policy requirements 
through S106 agreements since the adoption of SPG5 in 2004. To date, 172 of 
these have been sold, rented out or are under offer to people on the Affordable 
Housing Scheme. In addition, some of these properties have been subsequently 
re-sold, re-let or are under offer, again to households on the Affordable 
Housing Scheme. 

 
2.20 The planning agreements allow the affordable housing units to be sold on the 

open market in certain circumstances, subject to 25% of the sale proceeds 
being given to the Council to spend on affordable housing elsewhere. Between 
1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016, 16 properties were sold in this way, with 

Page 154



contributions totalling £544,924.52 received by the Council. In total up to 31 
March 2016 52 properties have now been sold this way, amounting to 
£1,464,710.77 in commuted sum payments being received for affordable 
housing. These contributions will be spent in accordance with Bury’s Affordable 
Housing Strategy 2011-2016, which identifies a range of initiatives for 
expenditure. Spending of Affordable Housing contributions will be agreed by an 
officer group comprising of representatives from Planning and Housing 
Strategy, taking into account views of Portfolio Holders, and must be in 
accordance with the terms of each Section 106 Agreement.  
 

2.21 In August 2012 Cabinet agreed to spend £617,000 of the monies received on 
bringing empty properties back into use as affordable housing in the Radcliffe 
area, as a pilot exercise working with Registered Providers. However, funding 
for the Radcliffe pilot was secured from the HCA, who have also committed to 
further funding to increase the number of empty properties to be brought back 
into use in Radcliffe. As a result, in September 2014 Cabinet agreed to approve 
the use of the £617,000 of commuted sums in other townships across the 
Borough, providing the reallocation of resources does not detrimentally affect 
the outcomes of the Radcliffe pilot. This work will help reduce the number of 
long term empty properties and provide additional affordable housing. 
 

 
Highways 

2.22 £35,780.85 has been received for improvements to Redford Street, Bury, 
required as a result of the redevelopment of the former Elton Cop Dyeworks on 
Walshaw Road. £33,285.63 has been spent to date on resurfacing work, the 
replacement of the affected traffic calming and minor footway remedial works. 
The remaining balance will be spent in 2016/17. 
 

2.23 Plans are also progressing to use the £10,000 Fletcher Bank contribution for 
the installation of vehicle activated signs on the A56 Manchester Road / 
Whalley Road. The first of two signs has been installed in the vicinity of 
Marshalls Quarry Entrance, but the costs have not yet been drawn down from 
the S106 account. 
 
 
Pilsworth Heat Network Feasibility Study 

2.24 £32,000 has been received from Viridor for Pilsworth South Quarry to establish 
the feasibility of establishing a local heat network. Consultants Ove Arup have 
been engaged to produce a technical feasibility report. £1,455.47 has been 
spent up to 31 March  2016, with the remainder to be spent in 2016/17 on 
completing the technical feasibility study and developing a robust business case 
and delivery model options. 
 

 
3.0 Outstanding Obligations 
 
3.1 A list of all outstanding obligations is attached to this report at Appendix C.  

These are divided into those where triggers have been reached (Appendix C – 
Part 1), identifying the actions that are being taken to recover overdue 
contributions and non-financial obligations; and those where triggers have not 
yet been reached, for example because development has not started or 
insufficient dwellings have been completed (Appendix C – Part 2). 

 
Outstanding S106 obligations where triggers have been reached 

3.2 In summary, 14 developments have been identified as having outstanding 
obligations that are now due and are being pursued by the Council.  Of these, 
11 require financial contributions, totalling £433,770.94 (compared to Page 155



£148,936.42 outstanding in the June 2015 report). These contributions can be 
broken down as shown in the table below: 

 
Requirement Total amount negotiated 
Recreation £404,182.62 
Wildlife link maintenance contribution 
(due when the land is transferred) 

£29,588.32 

TOTAL £433,770.94 
 

3.3 Transfer of land is outstanding from two schemes, and landscaping works and 
provision of paths are also due. The outstanding contributions and on-site 
provisions are being pursued initially by contacting the parties involved and, if 
necessary, debt recovery proceedings or court injunctions will be considered. 
Dealing with transfers of land required through a s106 can be a lengthy 
process, as outstanding issues may need to be resolved before the land can be 
transferred. 
 

3.4 In addition, in the specific case of the recreation contributions for the former 
garden centre, Tottington Road, Bury (£5,563.76) and the former Sainsbury’s 
Site, Fairfax Road, Prestwich (£1,779.60) due to the liquidation of the 
developer in the case of Tottington Road, difficulties in tracing the parties 
involved and the low value of the Fairfax Road contribution it is not considered 
expedient to take further action. A public art contribution for Manchester 
Maccabi (£10,000) and on-site public art on two sites are also outstanding but 
are not being actively pursued. These should be considered to be exceptional 
cases, as the Council is keen to take every effort to pursue outstanding 
obligations. 
 
 
Section 106 Agreements not yet triggered 

3.5 Appendix C Part 2 provides details of development sites where S106 obligations 
have been negotiated as part of the planning approval process, but the triggers 
have not yet been reached, for example because development has not yet 
commenced or insufficient dwellings have been completed. Recently lapsed or 
superceded permissions are included on the list for information but not included 
in the totals below. 

 
3.6 The total sum of financial contributions required under these Agreements is 

around £1.5 million. It is important to note that these developments may not 
all proceed as planned and there is, therefore, no guarantee that these funds 
will ever be received. Nine sites with S106 agreements not yet triggered, 
currently have two approvals for identical schemes.  The second permissions 
were granted prior to commencement of the original permissions and after the 
change in the rules which prevent the Council requiring contributions on new 
applications for small schemes.  It is highly unlikely that the original 
applications will be built and the S106 contributions paid (equating to 
£53,573.09).  The terms of each Section 106 obligation will also specify how 
these funds can be spent. These contributions can be broken down as shown in 
the table overleaf: 

 
Requirement Total amount negotiated 
Recreation £632,148.47 
Transport £275,200.00 
Footpaths £30,000.00 
Canal restoration contribution £120,000.00 
Ecology £57,000.00 
Affordable Housing contribution £346,000.00 
Education contribution £67,594.00 

Page 156



TOTAL £1,527,942.47 
 
3.7 In relation to non-financial contributions, these agreements require the 

following: 
• 137 affordable dwellings secured through planning policy, plus a further 68 

affordable dwellings on housing association developments; 
• Leachate management, aftercare / restoration of tip and reinstatement of 

public access following restoration at Pilsworth; 
• Riverside walkway at the East Lancashire Paper Mill site; 
• Metrolink crossing at Townside, subject to obtaining necessary consents; 
• Relocation of Tetrosyl from Bevis Green to a site within the Borough, 

otherwise a financial contribution for loss of employment land will be 
payable; 

• Restrictions on number of vehicles and fishing pegs at Elton Vale Road, Bury; 
• Provision of a cycle path and implementation of an ecological management 

plan at Spen Moor, Bury; 
• Phased / linked development of refurbishment of Shrewsbury House with the 

new build units. 
• Public access/recreation route at Salisbury Road. 

 
3.8 We will continue to monitor these developments to ensure that we secure the 

payments / provisions as and when they are required by the S106 agreement. 
 
 
4.0 Restrictions on pooling of S106 contributions 
 
4.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations have imposed new restrictions 

on pooling S106 contributions which came into effect from 6 April 2015. These 
restrictions prevent the pooling of more than five S106 contributions for a 
specific project or type of infrastructure. The current system of collecting 
generic ‘recreation’ or ‘employment’ contributions is no longer permitted.  

 
4.2 In order to continue to require S106 recreation or employment contributions, 

the Council now has to identify within the S106 agreement exactly what project 
the contribution will be spent on, and can then enter into up to five obligations 
for each individual project.  
 

 
4.3 Non-financial S106 obligations, such as on site provision of paths and transfers 

of land will be unaffected, and maintenance contributions are tied to specific 
areas of land, so are unlikely to reach the pooling limits provided of course that 
these would satisfy the criteria under the Community Infrastructure 
Regulations. However, the restrictions do not presently apply to affordable 
housing contributions. 

 
 
5.0 Conclusion 

 
5.1 Section 106 obligations have led to significant investment and improvement 

across the Borough, and the role of Planning in securing financial contributions 
and non-financial achievements should be noted. 

 
5.2 The proactive approach to ensuring S106 obligations are complied with has 

resulted in success in recovering outstanding contributions, and enabled 
prompt identification when triggers have been reached on new developments. 
This approach will continue, and should ensure that developers deliver their 
obligations. Where necessary and appropriate, legal action will be taken to 
ensure compliance with S106 obligations.  Page 157



 
 
 
List of Background Papers:-  
Appendix A – Schemes provided via Section 106 commuted sums 
Appendix B – Obligations complied with 1 April 2015 – 30 September 2015 
Appendix C – Outstanding obligations  
 
Contact Details:- 
Fran Smith 
Senior Planning Officer 
Strategic Planning and Economic Development 
Department of Resources and Regulation 
3 Knowsley Place 
Duke Street 
Bury 
BL9 0EJ 
 
Tel: 0161 253 7391 
Email: f.smith@bury.gov.uk 

Page 158

mailto:f.smith@bury.gov.uk


APPENDIX A – SCHEMES PROVIDED VIA S106 COMMUTED SUMS 
 
Type of 
contribution 

Scheme provided / location Money spent  
1 April 2015 – 31 
March 2016 

Recreation Hollinhurst Park £22,000.00 
Recreation Bailey Street bowling pavilion £4,789.22 
Recreation Lancaster Avenue allotments £2,600.00 
Recreation Walnut Avenue allotments £4,085.00 
Recreation Kershaw Avenue play area £49,761.00 
Recreation Gardner Mount play area £4,433.00 
Recreation St. Mary’s flower park £6,293.90 
Recreation Whitefield play area improvements £4,152.00 
Recreation Ramsbottom skate park £5,000.00 
Recreation Peel Brow play area £6,500.00 
Recreation Ramsbottom Civic Hall Garden £8,277.00 
Recreation Peel Tower improvements £2,164.00 
Recreation Hoyles play area swing and ball zone £600.00 
Recreation Limefield play area £4,000.00 
Recreation Clarence Park play area improvements £5,445.00 
Recreation Hoyles Park play area decommission £2,000.00 
Recreation Duke Street play area refurbishment £27,981.74 
Recreation Bradley Fold play area surfacing £11,299.00 
Recreation Kirklees Valley maintenance £750.00 
Recreation Bright Street play area improvement £1,220.00 
Recreation Bright Street play area surfacing £240.00 
Recreation Tottington ball zone £5,000.00 
Recreation Whitehead Park croquet £13,078.33 
Recreation Kirklees Lodge fencing £1,500.00 
Recreation St Mary’s Flower Park £198.37 
Recreation Radcliffe Heritage project contribution £22,000.00 

Public art Kirklees Valley Hilary Jack “Emergency Meadow” art 
work £22,250.00 

Public art 

Project management and installation costs for the 
Lawrence Weiner exhibition in the Bury Sculpture 
Centre, delivered as a interpretation and legacy for Mr 
Weiner’s commissioned works in Radcliffe 

£4,000.00 

Public art 
Liz West light commission – design and research for 
public light work proposed as part of the Met 
refurbishment 

£800.00 

Local Nature 
Reserves Local Nature Reserves Officer £19,206.44 

Local Nature 
Reserves Chapelfield LNR entrance improvement works £4,058.00 

Local Nature 
Reserves 

Kirklees Valley Woodland Improvem.ent Grant match 
funding £9,953.62 

Employment Chamberhall public notice of intent to dispose £185.85 
Employment Chamberhall weed eradication £560.00 
Employment Bradley Fold investigation and feasibility studies £14,256.93 
Employment Townside public notice of intent to dispose £185.85 
Clerke Street 
Study Clerke St study £9,685.00 

Highways Improvements to Redford Street, Bury £33,285.63 
Other Heat pipeline feasibility study £1,455.47 
TOTAL  £320,670.35 
 

Page 159



APPENDIX B – OBLIGATIONS COMPLIED WITH  
1 APRIL 2015 – 31 MARCH 2016 
 

Application Site Description Obligation complied with 
39700, 
53453 

Pilsworth South 
Quarry 

Extraction of sand, 
restoration to 
agriculture, woodland 
and amenity using 
controlled waste. 
Demolition of Hill Top 
and Captain’s Farms 
and outline 
application for single 
two storey 
replacement dwelling. 

£32,000 commuted sum to 
establish the feasibility of 
establishing a local heat network, 
paid 1/6/15. 

43101 Parkside Mews, 
Whitefield, M25 
6QX 

22 dwellings and 
three storey block of 
18 apartments 

£26,750 affordable housing 
contribution paid 19/10/15 for 36 
Parkside Mews 

44967 Old Dunsters 
Farm, Hebburn 
Drive, Bury 

Residential 
development – 22 no. 
apartments 

Instigation of debt recovery action 
has resulted in an instalment plan 
of £500 per month being agreed, 
including the Council’s costs and 
an interest contribution.  
 
£7,907.68 recreation payment, 
additional £500 interest plus 
£820.00 debt recovery costs now 
paid in full. 
 
£727.68 paid 2015/16. 
 
(£820.00 debt recovery costs 
transferred from recreation S106 
balance to planning). 

49667 
54802 

Olives Paper Mill, 
Tottington Road, 
Bury 

Development of 90 
residential units 
including landscaping 

Affordable housing contribution 
received: 
8 Valley Court: £35,500 – 
31/7/15 

54148, 
57016, 
57019, 
57024 

Land at James 
Street / Johnson 
Street, Radcliffe 

Residential 
development – 90 
dwellings. 

£47,135.50 of second instalment 
of recreation contribution received 
27/5/15.  
Final underpayment of £5,155.19 
paid 13/11/15. 
 

55301 Tonge Fold, 
Hawkshaw Lane, 
Hawkshaw, Bury, 
BL8 4LD 

Division of 1 dwelling 
into 2 dwellings; 
Single storey 
extension at rear 

£2,886.29 recreation contribution 
paid 18/2/16. 

Page 160



55312 Former Elton Cop 
Dye Works, 
Walshaw Road, 
Bury, BL8 1NG 

Residential 
development 
comprising of 111 
dwellings, access and 
associated works 

£348,617.36 recreation 
contribution paid 28/5/15, plus a 
further £10,659.09 interest due 
to late payment paid 5/6/15. 
Affordable housing contributions 
received: 
152 Scholars View: £39,600 – 
8/4/15 
9 Scholars View: £37,500 – 
8/4/15 
108 Scholars View: £39,998.75 – 
8/4/15 
25 Scholars View: £39,027.00 – 
13/5/15 
26 Scholars View: £41,192.00 – 
26/6/15 
28 Scholars View: £28,206.75 – 
26/6/15 
29 Scholars View: £29,748.75 – 
26/6/15 
30 Scholars View: £28,250.00 – 
26/6/15 
31 Scholars View: £28,498.81 – 
26/6/15 
64 Scholars View: £35,858.75 – 
26/6/15 

55815 Former Woolpack 
Hotel, 5 Stand 
Lane, Radcliffe 
(55815) 

Conversion, alteration 
& extension of 
existing public house 
and hotel to form 14 
no. 1 & 2 bedroom 
apartments and 
associated works 
(resubmission of 
55299) 

£11,969.04 recreation 
contribution received 22/2/16. 

55987 The Crown Hotel, 
128 Rochdale 
Road, Bury, BL9 
7AY 

Ground floor retail 
unit extension into 
former public house; 
Two storey extension 
at rear and creation of 
four flats at 
ground/first & second 
floor levels. 

£5,129.59 recreation contribution 
received 4/6/15 

56860 The Hollins, 
Haweswater 
Crescent, Bury, 
BL9 8LT (DTE 
House) 

Residential 
development – 21 
dwellings 

£71,847.99 recreation 
contribution and £28,150.01 
employment contribution paid 
27/10/15. 

56925 Plot No. 2 Ringley 
Chase, Whitefield, 
Manchester, M45 
7UA 

Erection of detached 
dormer bungalow with 
existing hard standing 
for car parking and 
maintaining the 
existing vehicular 
access to the site with 
associated 
landscaping. 

£3,421.33 recreation contribution 
paid 15/6/15. 

57089 Land at Hunt Fold 
House, off Hayfield 
Close,Greenmount, 
Bury BL8 4HU 

Erection of 1 no. 
bungalow 
 

£3,421.33 recreation contribution 
paid 17/6/15. 
 

Page 161



57170 Land between 16 
& 18 Ribble Drive, 
Whitefield, 
Manchester, M45 
8WJ 

Erection of 2 semi-
detached dwellings 
(resubmission of 
56495) 

£6,420.55 recreation contribution 
paid 30/11/15, plus £315.05 
interest and £605.00 debt 
recovery costs. 

57464 Land off 
Kingswood Road, 
Prestwich, 
Manchester, M25 
3BP 

Demolition of existing 
buildings for 
residential 
development of 6 
detached and 18 
semi-detached houses 
with associated 
external works. 

£78,312.94 recreation 
contribution paid 27/10/15.  

58022 Ramsbottom 
Cottage Hospital, 
Nuttall Lane, 
Ramsbottom, 
Bury, BL0 9JZ 

Demolition of existing 
buildings and erection 
of 13 no. dwellings 

£44,477.33 recreation 
contribution paid 29/2/16. 

58318, 
58319 

Bankside Mill, 
Chapelfield, 
Radcliffe, M26 1JH 

Demolition of existing 
mill and offices and 
erection of 13 no. 
dwellings with 
associated site 
access, parking and 
landscape works. 

£42,366.74 recreation 
contribution paid 18/9/15. 

58918 Land adjacent to 
15 Prestfield Road, 
Whitefield, 
Manchester, M45 
6BD 

Erection of 33 no. 
apartments in 2,3 & 4 
storey blocks with 
associated parking 
and a detached 
dwelling. 

£54,469.89 recreation 
contribution paid upfront 26/2/16 
– cannot be spent until lawful 
commencement of development. 
Allocated within S106 to Thatch 
Leach Lane Play Area and Ball 
Zone; Boz Park Play Area 
Improvements and cycle 
infrastructure improvement, 
Philips Park. 
8 affordable housing units to be 
provided on site (not yet 
triggered). 

 

Contributions received after 1 April 2016 are not included in the total values received 
or unspent in Table 1 of the main report, to simplify the collation of data from the 
Council’s financial systems.  
 

Contributions received after 1 April 2016 
 

Application Site Description Obligation complied with 
49667 
54802 

Olives Paper Mill, 
Tottington Road, 
Bury 

Development of 90 
residential units 
including landscaping 

£25,000 brook link contribution 
paid 4/5/16. 

58521 Former Red 
Bridge Inn, Bury 
Old Road, 
Ainsworth, 
Bolton, BL2 5PJ 

Refurbishment and 
conversion/change of 
use of vacant public 
house to form 2 no. 
cottages and 8 no. 
apartments and 
erection of block of 10 
no. apartments 

£15,060.03 1st instalment 
recreation contribution paid 
12/4/16.  
To be spent on improvements to 
the Bradley Fold Play Area (Phase 
1). 
 

53562 12-22 Warwick 
Street, Prestwich 

Demolition of existing 
building and erection 
4 no. 2-bed houses, 4 
no. 3-bed houses and 
4 no. 2-bed houses 

£8,322.93 recreation contribution 
paid 25/5/2016. 

36632 
40345 

Land off Gigg 
Lane 

152 dwellings Transfer of land completed – 
15/06/2016 Page 162



APPENDIX C – OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS 
 
Part 1: S106 obligations where triggers have been reached 
 
Application Site Description Outstanding Obligations Action 
38586, 
40942 

Former Bibby and 
Baron Premises, 
Dumers Lane, Bury 

Residential and mixed use 
employment development 

On site public art. Not expedient to take any further action. 

40174 Former Garden 
Centre, Tottington 
Road, Bury (now 
known as Riverbank 
apartments), BL8 
1JY 

17 apartments £5,563.76 recreation payment. Developer is in liquidation. Not expedient to 
take any further action. 

40190 Former Sainsbury’s 
Site, Fairfax Road, 
Prestwich 

Demolition of existing 
buildings and new build 
mixed use development 
comprising of retail, food 
and drink and leisure on the 
ground floor 

£1,779.60 recreation payment  
(underpayment - £51,608.40 has 
been received, but £53,388 was 
due). 

Previous letters have been ignored. 
Not expedient to take any further action. 

40947 Manchester Maccabi 
AFC, Bury Old Road, 
Prestwich 

Erection of sports 
clubhouse, 2 no. floodlit 
external all weather 
pitches, associated car 
parking, servicing and 
landscaping, ball stop 
fencing to grass pitches 

£10,000 public art payment. Payment remains outstanding. Not expedient 
to take any further action. 

43920 George Hotel, 
George Street, 
Prestwich (now 
known as Sedgley 
Gardens) 

Retail development and 24 
apartments 

On site public art. 
£1,000 public art maintenance 
payment. 

No art has been provided on site to date, not 
expedient to take any further action. 

P
age 163



Application Site Description Outstanding Obligations Action 
38312, 
39060, 
49447, 
53180, 
53263 

Land east of 
Brandlesholme Road 
and west of Woodhill 
Road, Bury 

38312: 2 dwellings 
39060: 5 detached houses 
49447: 3 detached houses 
53180: 2 detached 
dwellings 
53263: Change of use from 
public open space to 
domestic garden. 

The S106 requires the provision of 
recreational path / cycleway link, 
landscaping, transfer of wildlife 
corridor following completion of 
landscaping works, maintenance and 
ongoing access rights. 
 
The recreational path has been 
surfaced but some of the 
landscaping works have not been 
completed. 

Ongoing dialogue with the developer 

49310, 
52012 

Former railway track 
off Ainsworth Road, 
Radcliffe 

Erection of 13 dwellings 
(Phase 1) 

£16,688.90 wildlife link maintenance 
contribution, formation of wildlife 
link and transfer of land, 
construction of a cycleway. Due prior 
to occupation of 11 dwellings. 

Development completed. Recreation 
contribution has been paid and the cycleway 
has been provided, negotiations are underway 
regarding transfer of land, subject to 
satisfactory completion of landscaping works.  

50315, 
52764 

Former railway 
track, Ainsworth 
Road, Radcliffe 

Erection of 10 no. dwellings 
(Phase 2) 

£12,899.42 wildlife link maintenance 
contribution and transfer of land 
within 6 months of completion, 
construction of a cycleway, public 
access along road in absence of 
adoption. 

Development completed. Recreation 
contribution has been paid and the cycleway 
has been provided, negotiations are underway 
regarding transfer of land, subject to 
satisfactory completion of landscaping works.  

P
age 164



Application Site Description Outstanding Obligations Action 
49667 
54802 

Olives Paper Mill, 
Tottington Road, 
Bury 

Development of 90 
residential units including 
landscaping 

Transfer of recreation land due prior 
to occupation of the 45th dwelling. 
 
Provision of Brook Link. 
 
(Other obligations have been 
complied with or are not yet 
triggered). 
 
On site affordable housing – 18 units 
(financial contributions received in 
respect of 7 of these units) 

The Council are continuing to work with 
Persimmon to secure the transfer of the 
recreation land. The boundary of the land was 
incorrect on the transfer plan provided by 
Persimmon, so a replacement plan is required.  
 
The brook link contribution and provision of 
the Brook Link were due when a formal right 
to access the land was obtained on 13/1/16.  
 
Persimmon applied to remove the obligation 
to provide the Brook Link. The application was 
refused on 20/4/16. The Brook Link 
contribution was paid on 4/5/16 and the 
Council is awaiting details from Persimmon of 
when the Brook Link will be provided. Further 
action will be taken if necessary. 

52821, 
55235 

Land adjacent to 
103 Walmersley 
Road, Bury 

Erection of 11 no. flats in 
3/4 storey block together 
with parking 

£5,017.32 recreation payment due 
upon commencement. 

Under construction. Contribution now due. 
Letter requesting payment sent 4/9/14, 
developer has requested additional time to 
pay.  

55512 Birtle Barn, School 
House Farm, Castle 
Hill Road, Bury 

Conversion of an existing 
barn to two storey dwelling 
including erection of carport 
and store. 

£3,421.33 recreation contribution 
due on commencement. 

Under construction – approaching completion. 
Contribution now due. Letter requesting 
payment sent 30/7/14. Owner has requested 
additional time to pay.  

56511 Black Moss Farm, 
Bolton Road, 
Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
3QG 

Application to extend the 
time limit for 
implementation planning 
permission 52224 for 
demolition of 
storage/workshop 
buildings, erection of block 
of 7 terraced houses and 
associated parking area 

£20,204.01 recreation contribution 
due on commencement. 

Excavations commenced March 2016, 
Contribution now due. 

P
age 165



Application Site Description Outstanding Obligations Action 
57255 Land off Radcliffe 

Road/Inglewhite 
Close, Bury, BL9 9JT 

Erection of  34 no. 
dwellings (resubmission) 

£55,000 recreation contribution due 
prior to 1st occupation. 8 affordable 
dwellings on site, 25% discount. 

Under construction, 12 units occupied – debt 
recovery action has been requested following 
failure to pay the outstanding recreation 
contribution. 
Construction of the affordable housing units is 
at the early stages. 

58810 Land at Spen Moor, 
Bury and Bolton 
Road, Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
4JY 

Reserved Matters for 
appearance, landscaping, 
layout and scale following 
grant of Outline planning 
permission 55003 for 
residential development of 
191 dwellings, creation of 
ecological enhancement 
ponds and access off Bury 
and Bolton Road 

£475,070.93 recreation contribution 
payable in instalments – 1st 
instalment of £165, 000 due prior to 
or upon commencement (10 projects 
specified in S106). 
 
Ongoing requirement to implement 
Ecological Management Plan (in 
progress, work to ponds required 
prior to commencement has been 
carried out). 

1st instalment of the recreation contribution is 
now due. 

56201 
57487 
58318 
58319 

Bankside Mill, 
Chapelfield, 
Radcliffe, M26 iJH 

Demolition of existing mill 
and offices and erection of 
14 no. Dwellings with 
associated site access, 
parking and landscape 
works. 
 
Alternative application 
submitted for 13 dwellings 
with a reduced requirement 

£42, 366.74 recreation contribution 
due prior to or upon 1st occupation. 
 
Further £2,999.22 due if the 14th 
dwelling is commenced 

13 dwellings occupied, recreation contribution 
is now due.  

56973 Manor House, 
Fletcher Fold, Bury, 
BL9 9RT 

Erection of 3 no. Dwellings 
and garages 
(retrospective); Erection of 
2 no. Dwellings and 
garages. 

1st instalment of £10, 264 paid 
8/10/14.  Further £6,752.67 due on 
commencement of the 4th dwelling. 

4th dwelling now commenced, recreation 
provision now due.  

57459 Land at Heap Street, 
Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
4LA 

Erection of 2 no. Dwellings £6,420.55 recreation contribution 
due on commencement. 

Under construction, recreation contribution is 
now due.  

P
age 166



Application Site Description Outstanding Obligations Action 
58233 Land off Salisbury 

Road, Radcliffe, M26 
4WG 

Residential development for 
86 dwellings and associated 
infrastructure. 

£100,000 recreation contribution 
due on commencement.  Project 
provision of the Moss Shaw section 
of the Bolton Bury railway path and 
improvements to the Bolton Road 
Infrastructure phase 1.  17 
affordable housing units on site with 
overage clause.  Public 
access/recreation route prior to 
occupation of the 68th dwelling. 

Under construction, recreation contribution is 
now due.   

P
age 167



Part 2: S106 obligations not yet triggered 
 
Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
39700, 
53453 

Pilsworth South 
Quarry 

Extraction of sand, restoration to agriculture, 
woodland and amenity using controlled waste. 
Demolition of Hill Top and Captain’s Farms and 
outline application for single two storey 
replacement dwelling. 

£32,000 commuted sum to establish the 
feasibility of establishing a local heat network, 
paid 1/6/15 
Leachate management, aftercare / restoration 
of tip and reinstatement of public access 
following restoration. 

Infilling has 
commenced, 
financial 
contribution paid. 
Ongoing long term 
management and 
restoration 
obligation. 

45274 Former P J Power 
Site, Millett Street, 
Bury, BL9 0JA 

Demolition of offices & services yard; erection 
of 21 apartments in four storey block & new 
office accommodation within three storey block 

£7,548.24 recreation payment due upon 1st 
occupation. 

Material start 
made. Site is 
currently on the 
market. 

45598, 
55901 

Former East Lancs 
Papermill Site, Cock 
Clod Street, 
Radcliffe (Radcliffe 
Riverside) 

Hybrid outline application for mixed use 
development comprising Class B1, B2, B8, 
industry, residential development, water 
feature, open space and full application for 
secondary school and highway infrastructure. 
 
Application 55901 extends the time limit for 
the outline element and condition 2 of the 
original application. 

£37,000 ecological payment, £20,000 
environmental monitoring payment, £196,440 
Metrolink payment, £10,000 Irwell Bridge 
payment (paths) due prior to commencement 
(excluding preparatory works). Transfer of 
riverside walkway prior to occupation of 30% 
of the dwellings, and payment of £10,000 
maintenance sum (paths). £120,000 canal 
restoration payment and £53,760 GMPTE car 
park improvement prior to occupation of 60% 
of the dwelling. All payments index linked. 

Not commenced. 

47200 Townside Fields, 
Bury 

Mixed use development Layout and maintain footpaths and to use best 
endeavours to provide Metrolink crossing. 

Development 
commenced. 
Some elements 
completed. 

P
age 168



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
50058, 
50948 

Former Albert Inn, 
Ribble Drive, 
Whitefield, (Albert 
Place) 

Erection of 6 retail units with 15 flats above; 
associated access, parking, servicing and 
landscaping. 

£6,176.40 recreation payment due upon the 
sale of the 3rd market unit. 
On site affordable housing – 3 dwellings. 

Development 
completed but 
none sold 
individually. 
Original developer 
went into 
receivership. All 
sold to 1 new 
owner. 

50775 
54550 
58359 

Former Thrush 
Hotel, Thrush Drive, 
Bury, BL9 6JD 

14 no. dwellings with associated car parking 
and landscaping. 

£13,674.08 recreation payment due in 3 
phases, upon 1st occupation of each block. 

Not commenced. 

51623 Former Elton Vale 
Works, Elton Vale 
Road, Bury 

Residential development – 16 dwellings. Ongoing requirement regarding reservoir 
maintenance. 

Development 
completed. 

53231, 
57085 

Holcombe Brook 
Tennis Club, 
Longsight Road, 
Ramsbottom, Bury, 
BL0 9TD 

Erection of 55 sheltered flats for the elderly. £346,000 affordable housing contribution 
(plus additional index linked contribution) 
payable in instalments. First instalment due 
on occupation of the 13th dwelling.  

Under 
construction. 
Trigger not 
reached. 

53353 Whitefield House, 
Pinfold Lane, 
Whitefield 

60-bed care home within ancillary clinic / rehab 
facilities, car parking and landscaping. 

£50,000 recreation contribution due upon 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 

53762 Bevis Green Works 
(Tetrosyl),  Mill 
Road, Bury, BL9 6RE 

Outline residential development at Bevis Green 
(275 dwellings) with associated access, car 
parking, landscaping, and recreational open 
space shown illustratively. 

Relocation of Tetrosyl to a site within the 
Borough, otherwise a financial contribution for 
loss of employment will be due if the site is to 
be redeveloped for residential. 

Not commenced, 
no reserved 
matters 
application 
submitted. 
Permission expired 
in January 2016. 

P
age 169



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
54148, 
57016, 
57019, 
57024 

Land at James 
Street / Johnson 
Street, Radcliffe 

Residential development – 90 dwellings. £99,427.14 recreation contribution payable in 
2 instalments, on substantial completion of 
the 30th and 70th dwellings. 1st instalment 
paid, 2nd instalment paid 27/05/2015 and 
13/11/2015. 
 
5 affordable units on site, with potential for an 
overage payment dependent upon actual 
Gross Development Value. 
£18,750 commuted sum paid 17/12/14 for 
plot 61 in lieu of on-site provision. 

First instalment of 
£47,136.50 
received 11/3/13. 
Part of 2nd 
instalment 
(£47,135.50) 
received 27/5/15. 
Remaining 
underpayment of 
£5,155.19 paid 
13/11/15. 
 
Ongoing 
affordable housing 
requirement. 

54717 Land at Elton Vale 
Road, Bury, BL8 2RZ 

Residential development - 4 no. dwellings, 1 
no. water bailiffs cottage and 2 no. units for 
temporary accommodation for fishing lodges 

Restricted to 15 parked vehicles, 45 fishing 
pegs, advise fisheries users that they must 
not park in Elton Vale Road or Foulds Avenue, 
keep records of lettings for fishing lodges. 

Under 
construction. 
Ongoing 
obligation. 

54804 Land to rear of 60 
Sandy Lane, The 
Downs, Prestwich, 
Manchester, M25 
9NB 

Erection of 1 no. dwelling with detached garage £3,421.33 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 
Alternative 
permission 
granted with no 
recreation 
requirement 
(58503). 

54975 Halter Inn Works, 
Holcombe Brook, 
Ramsbottom 

Demolition of existing industrial buildings and 
erection of 3 detached dwellings. 

£10,264 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 
Permission expired  

P
age 170



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
54993 7-9 Prestwich Park 

Road, Prestwich 
Erection of one new dwelling. £3,421.33 recreation contribution due on 

commencement. 
Alternative 
application 
approved 
23/11/15 with no 
recreation 
requirement 
(59311) 

55003 Land at Spen Moor, 
Bury and Bolton 
Road, Radcliffe, M26 
0JZ 

Outline – Residential development of  191 
dwellings, creation of ecological enhancement 
ponds and access off Bury and Bolton Road 

£67,594 education contribution due prior to 
occupation. Provision of cycle path. 
Implement ecological management plan. 

Under 
construction. 

58810 Land at Spen Moor, 
Bury and Bolton 
Road, Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
4JY 

Reserved Matters for appearance, landscaping, 
layout and scale following grant of Outline 
planning permission 55003 for residential 
development of 191 dwellings, creation of 
ecological enhancement ponds and access off 
Bury and Bolton Road 

£475,070.93 recreation contribution payable 
in instalments – 1st instalment of £165,000 
due prior to or upon commencement (10 
projects specified in S106). 
 
On site public open space. 
48 affordable housing units. 
Permission for the Council to construct a 
public access track, with the Owner to ensure 
that public access is maintained. 

1st instalment is 
now due.  
 
Other obligations 
not yet triggered. 

55170 118 Rectory Lane, 
Prestwich, M25 1DJ 

Mixed use development comprising of 2 storey 
building with a ground floor retail unit (Class 
A1) and 3 no. flats (Class C3) at first floor with 
associated car parking and service yard facility 

£5,129.59 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced.  
Permission 
expired. 

55175 The Rowans, 120 
Tottington Road, 
Bury, BL8 1LR 

Erection of two dwellings. £6,420.55 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 

55198 Land adjacent to 1 
Ribchester Drive, 
Bury 

Residential development of 5 no. 3-storey 
townhouses. 

£14,431.44 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 
Permission 
expired. 

P
age 171



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
55312 Former Elton Cop 

Dye Works, Walshaw 
Road, Bury, BL8 
1NG 

Residential development comprising of 111 
dwellings, access and associated works 

£288,600 employment contribution paid 
10/5/13. 
£35,780.85 highways contribution paid 
4/8/14. 
 
£348,617.36 recreation contribution paid 
28/5/15. Interest on late payment remains 
outstanding. 
 
25% on site affordable housing (28 units). 
Commuted sums have been received for 4 of 
the affordable units. (£156,125.75 paid after 
31/3/15) 

On going 
affordable housing 
obligations. 

55374 Former Red Bank 
Health Centre, 
Unsworth Street, 
Radcliffe 

Demolition of existing health centre and 
erection of 11 2-storey residential houses. 

£32,397.14 recreation contribution due in 3 
installments: £11,000 on commencement, 
£11,000 on occupation of the 5th unit and 
£10,397.14 on occupation of the 8th unit. 

Not commenced.  

55429 Workshop adjacent 
to 40 Manchester 
Road, Ramsbottom, 
Bury, BL0 0DH 

Change of use and extension and alterations to 
workshop (Class B1) to form dwelling (Class 
C3) - resubmission 

£3,421.33 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Alternative 
application 
approved with no 
recreation 
requirement 
(58247). 

55580 194 Hornby Street, 
Bury, BL9 5BA 

Change of use from offices (Class B2) to 2 no. 
flats (Class C3) 

£3,419.73 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced.  
Permission expired 
December 2015.  

55583 Land off Morris 
Street, Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
2HF 

Erection of 14 no. three-storey dwellings with 
raised gardens, including extension to Morris 
Street and associated pedestrian footpaths. 

£41,703.97 recreation contribution due on 
commencement, but only if the riverside park 
assoc with 55584 has not been landscaped, 
laid out and made available for use by the 
public. 

Not commenced, 
but the riverside 
park has been 
provided. 

P
age 172



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
55584 Land at Dumers 

Lane and Morris 
Street, Radcliffe 

Mixed use development comprising 11 x Class 
B1 (b), B1 (c) and B8 units totalling 3,368 sqm 
(GIA) of floorspace and 239 dwellings, riverside 
park and habitat creation scheme, associated 
land raising, access and estate roads, sub-
station, landscaping and flood mitigation 
measures. 

Phased completion of employment units 
(completed) and on site recreation (riverside 
park provided). 
24 units on-site affordable housing and 
affordable housing overage clause. 

Under 
construction. 
Practical 
completion of 
employment units 
signed off and 
riverside park 
provided. Some 
affordable units 
sold or currently 
being marketed. 

55608 Old Bartles 
Farmhouse, Watling 
Street, Affetside, 
Bury 

Conversion of building to dwelling and rebuild 
of garage on footprint of cart store; erection of 
stables to replace existing chicken shed 

£3,421.33 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Alternative 
application 
approved with no 
recreation 
requirement 
(58191). 

55610 Huntley House, 
Chesham Fold Road, 
Bury 

Erection of 4 no. dwellings (resubmission) £12,841.10 recreation contribution due prior 
to commencement. 

Not commenced. 

55741 Thurston Fold Farm, 
Castle Road, Bury, 
BL9 8QS 

Change of use and extension of existing barn 
building to 5 no. self contained dwellings 
together with removal of existing double-height 
garage and reinstatement of windows and 
erection of new porch to existing farmhouse 
(resubmission) 

£14,431.44 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 

55815 Woolpack Hotel, 5 
Stand Lane, 
Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
1NW 

Conversion, alteration & extension of existing 
public house and hotel to form 14 no. 1 & 2 
bedroom apartments and associated works 

£11,969.04 recreation contribution due on 1st 
occupation – paid 22/2/16. Overage clause to 
require an additional contribution up to 
£11,969.04 depending on overall GDV. 

Some units 
occupied. Overage 
clause cannot be 
calculated until all 
units have been 
sold. 

55858 Shrewsbury House, 
Lowther Road, 
Prestwich, 
Manchester, M25 
9QG 

Refurbishment and extension of Shrewsbury 
House and construction of 4 no. detached 
dwellings with access and associated works. 

£13,685.33 recreation (Paid), £3,000 
woodland contribution (Paid), phased / linked 
development of refurbishment of Shrewsbury 
House with the new build units. 

Under 
construction. None 
completed. 

P
age 173



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
55915 Site of former 

Cussons Sons & Co 
Ltd, Kersal Vale 
Road, Prestwich, M7 
0GL 

Outline - residential development of 122 
houses including means of access from Kersal 
Vale Road 

£42,691 education contribution due on 
occupation of the 60th unit. 

Not commenced – 
outline only. 
Permission 
expired. 

56276 Masons Arms, 241 
Walmersley Old 
Road, Bury, BL9 6RU 

Change of use from Public House to dwelling 
and 4no. new dwellings (Re submission) 

£12,080.19 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 
Alternative 
application 
approved 21/4/16 
for change of use 
to mixed use 
development, no 
recreation 
requirement 
(59592). 

56466 Castle Leisure 
Centre, Bolton 
Street, Bury, BL9 
0EZ 

Outline application (Means of Access to be 
approved at outline stage) for demolition of 
existing on-site structures and development of 
up to 12,077 sq.m (130,000 sq.ft) gross Class 
A1 retail floorspace (provided by a single large 
foodstore unit together with the option for unit 
shops of a maximum of 1,850 sq.m, this 
floorspace being part of the 12,077sqm) with 
Petrol Filling Station, car parking, landscaping 
and other associated elements 

Enabling agreement (Council owned site). 
S106 to be signed on completion of the 
transfer of the site from the Council to Ask 
Real Estate limiting foodstore maximum gross 
floor area of 10,227 sq.m; maximum net sales 
area of 6,136 sq.m.; maximum 4,357 sq.m. 
convenience goods; maximum 1,779 sq.m. 
comparison goods. 

Outline application 
only. 
Demolition of 
police station 
carried out under 
alternative 
permission 
(56479). 

56744 Land at Bury 
Road/York Street, 
Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
2WH 

Hybrid full planning application for the erection 
of 153 no. dwellings together with associated 
works inc laying out public open space, 
remediate, raise levels, emergency access, 
development platform for future commercial 
devt. Outline for B1/B2 B8 7435m2 

On site recreation provision. 
15 affordable housing units on site plus 
overage clause. 
Employment development or ELDF 
contribution. 

Not commenced. 

56781 Land at 1 Woodhill 
Drive, Prestwich, 
Manchester M25 
0BD 

Erection of 1 detached dwelling. £3,421.33 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 
Non material 
amendment 
application 
approved (59840). 

P
age 174



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
56874 Land at Hazel 

Street/Bolton Road 
West, Ramsbottom, 
Bury, BL0 9PT 

Residential development – 46 dwellings. All units to be affordable housing. Nearing 
completion. 
Ongoing 
obligation. 

56899 Site of former petrol 
station, adjacent 
253 Bury and Bolton 
Road, Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
4FP 

Erection of 2 no. semi detached dwellings £6,420.55 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 
Amended 
application 
approved (58220) 
with no S106. The 
contribution will 
only be payable if 
the first 
permission is 
implemented. 

56953 Land at rear of 
Keswick 
Drive/Derwent 
Drive, Bury, BL9 9LT 

Erection of 6 no. dwellings All units to be affordable housing. Alternative 
application 
approved (58297) 
with no AH 
requirement. 

56965 Former Chapel, 
Chapel Road, 
Prestwich, 
Manchester, M25 
9SS 

Demolition of existing chapel and erection of 4 
no. dwellings and creation of 4 no. parking 
spaces. 

£11,545.15 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 

57097, 
58229 

Site of former Beech 
Grove, Danesmoor 
Drive, Bury, BL9 
6HA 

Erection of 16 no. independent living 
apartments for the over 55's and 3 no. 
bungalows with shared communal space and 
creation of 11 no. car parking spaces. 

All units to be affordable housing. Site now cleared 
and ground works 
underway. 

57162 Former Bank Lane 
Friendly Burial 
Society building, 
Spring Street, 
Shuttleworth, 
Ramsbottom, Bury, 
BL0 0DS 

Conversion of building and external alterations 
to form 2 no. dwellings 

£6,420.55 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Alternative 
application 
submitted with no 
recreation 
requirement 
(58366). 

P
age 175



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
57198 Land at rear of 353-

365 and Beechwood 
Bungalow, Bury 
Road, Tottington, 
Bury, BL8 3DS 

Residential development - 30 dwellings 
 

£100,529.40 recreation contribution paid 
4/9/14. Affordable housing to be provided on 
site (8 dwellings) alongside completion of the 
other dwellings. 

Ongoing 
obligation. 

57224 Land adjacent to 41 
Station Close, 
Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
4GW 

Erection of 11 no. detached dwellings with 
access road and demolition of existing bridge 
structure (resubmission) 

£37,634.66 recreation contribution payable in 
2 installments prior to commencement and 
occupation of the 5th unit. Projects: 
Improvements to Snape Street play area 
(phase 1) and Improvements to Young Street 
play area (phase 1). 
Cycleway provision. 

Not commenced. 

57317 Land adjacent to 
Hardman Fold Farm, 
Hardman Street, 
Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
4GY 

Erection of 1 no. detached dwelling 
 

£3421.33 recreation contribution due prior to 
or upon commencement 
 

Not commenced. 

57340 Land at rear of 62 
Peveril Close, 
Whitefield, 
Manchester, M45 
6NR 

Erection of detached dwelling £3421.33 recreation contribution due on 
commencement 
 

Not commenced. 
Alternative 
application for 
erection of 2 
dwellings 
approved with no 
S106 requirement 
(59713). 

57379 Land between 
Kenyon Lane and 
Henry Street, 
Prestwich, 
Manchester, M25 
1HY 

Erection of 6 no. dwellings Recreation contribution due in 2 installments: 
£8982.85 on commencement; £8982.85 on 
1st occupation. 
 

Not commenced. 

57508 Spenside, Bury and 
Bolton Road, 
Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
4LA 

Erection of 4 no. detached dwellings. 
 

£13,685.33 recreation contribution due on 
commencement. 

Not commenced. 

P
age 176



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
57524 Land off Hollinhurst 

Road, Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
1LF 

Erection of 4 no.dwellings 
 

£11,545.15 recreation contribution due on 
commencement 

Not commenced. 
Alternative 
application 
approved (58362) 
with no S106 
requirement. 

58233 Land off Salisbury 
Road, Radcliffe, M26 
4WG 

Residential development for 86 dwellings and 
associated infrastructure. 

£100,000 recreation contribution due on 
commencement.  Project provision of the 
Moss Shaw section of the Bolton Bury railway 
path and improvements to the Bolton Road 
Infrastructure phase 1.  17 affordable housing 
units on site with overage clause.  Public 
access/recreation route prior to occupation of 
the 68th dwelling. 

Under 
Construction.  
Recreation 
contribution now 
due.  Other 
contributions not 
yet triggered. 

58324 Land adjacent to 
Eton Business Park, 
Bury Road, Radcliffe, 
Manchester, M26 
2XF 

Residential development of 18 no. dwellings £37,342.00 recreation contribution on 
commencement, plus recreation overage 
clause. Project: Improvements to the 
footpaths, play area and ballzone at Close 
Park. 

Not commenced. 

58413 Land to the West of 
149 Brandlesholme 
Road, Bury, BL8 1BA 

Reserved Matters application following Outline 
planning approval 54738 for construction of 39 
houses and 18 flats, junction improvements, 
new access  road and associated landscaping 

On site recreation provision, 13 affordable 
housing units 

Not commenced. 

58521 Former Red Bridge 
Inn, Bury Old Road, 
Ainsworth, Bolton, 
BL2 5PJ 

Refurbishment and conversion/change of use of 
vacant public house to form 2 no. cottages and 
8 no. apartments and erection of block of 10 
no. apartments 

£15,060.03 1st instalment recreation 
contribution paid 12/4/16.  
2nd instalment of £15,060.03 payable on 
occupation of the 10th unit. 

Under 
construction. 2nd 
instalment not yet 
triggered. 

58587, 
59650 

Land off Lowes 
Road, Bury, BL9 
6QS 

Residential development for 24 no. dwellings, 
memorial/community forest and wider public 
open space with associated infrastructure 
(resubmission) 

On site recreation. 
£25,000 index linked highways contribution 
for traffic calming and 20mph zone on roads 
that form the access and £10,000 index linked 
bridleway contribution for improvement to 
bridleway 37 due on commencement. 

Not commenced. 

P
age 177



Application Site Description Requirements Current Status 
58655 Land at Valley Park 

Road/Clifton Road 
Prestwich, 
Manchester, M25 
3TG 

Erection of 97 no. residential units (Class C3) 
comprising 67 no. dwellings and 30 no. 
apartments with associated landscaping, access 
arrangements and car parking and substation 
and creation of pond and woodland walk and 
seating area 

On site recreation provision 
24 affordable housing units 

Not commenced. 

58832 The Hearth Of The 
Ram, 13 Peel Brow, 
Ramsbottom, Bury, 
BL0 0AA 

Extension to existing car park and landscaping 
of land adjacent 

Enabling Agreement 21/3/16. S106 to be 
signed on transfer of the land 

Not commenced. 

58918 Land adjacent to 15 
Prestfield Road, 
Whitefield, 
Manchester, M45 
6BD 

Erection of 33 no. apartments in 2,3 & 4 storey 
blocks with associated parking and a detached 
dwellinghouse. 

Recreation contribution £54,469.89 paid 
upfront 26/2/16. Projects: The Thatch Leach 
Lane Play Area and Ball Zone Improvements, 
Boz Park Play Area Improvements, Cycle 
Infrastructure Improvement in Philips Park 
8 affordable housing units on site. 

Recreation 
contribution paid 
upfront – cannot 
be spent until 
lawful 
commencement of 
development. 

59600 Site of Civic Centre, 
Thomas Street/New 
Church Street, 
Radcliffe, M26 2UD 

Demolition of existing Civic Centre and erection 
of 40 no. dwellings with associated car parking 
and landscaping 

Enabling Agreement 01/4/16. S106 to be 
signed on transfer of the land 

Not commenced. 

 

P
age 178


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 May, 2016
	4 Planning Applications
	Plan 4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Plan 5.pdf
	Alderley Edge Elevations
	Alderley Edge Floor Plans
	Appleton 2 Elevations
	Appleton 2 Floor Plans
	Bramhall Elevations
	Bramhall Floor Plans
	Bridgemere Elevations
	Bridgemere Floor Plans
	Severn Elevations
	Severn Floor Plans
	Stratford A Elevations
	Stratford A Floor Plans
	Willington Elevations Side Aspect
	Willington Elevations
	Willington Floor Plans Side Aspect
	Willington Floor Plans


	4a Supplementary Agenda
	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals
	7 Section 106 Obligations



